
           
            

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
TUESDAY, 13TH JANUARY, 2015 at 13:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: See attached 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  (PAGES 1 - 2)  
 
 The Chair welcome those present to the meetings and introductions will then be 

made.  
 

2. APOLOGIES    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
dealt with at agenda item 14). 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

5. QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS, PETITIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, Paragraph 

29 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 3 - 14)  
 
 To consider and agree the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 30 September 

2014.  
 
 

7. STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK FOR PRIMARY CARE 
TRANSFORMATION IN LONDON  (PAGES 15 - 16)  

 
8. PRIMARY CARE TASK AND FINISH REPORT  (PAGES 17 - 22)  
 
9. HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2015-2018 - LAUNCH OF 

CONSULTATION  (PAGES 23 - 28)  
 
10. HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION UPDATE  (PAGES 29 - 36)  
 
11. LSCB ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14  (PAGES 37 - 88)  
 
12. MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS CARE CONCORDAT  (PAGES 89 - 94)  
 
13. HWB GOVERNANCE: BOARD MEMBERSHIP APPOINTMENT AND CHANGE TO 

VOTING RIGHTS  (PAGES 95 - 98)  
 
14. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 3 above. 

 



 

3 

15. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 Members of the Board are invited to suggest future agenda items. 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for 19 March 2015 but is subject to confirmation and 
possible rescheduling. 
 

 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Philip Slawther 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 02084892957 
Email: Philip.slawther@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Monday, 05 January 2015 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Organisation  Representation Role Name 

Local Authority Elected 
Representatives 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officers’ 
Representatives 

3 Leader of the 
Council 
 

Cllr Claire 
Kober 

Cabinet Member for  
Children and Young 
People 
 

Cllr Ann 
Waters 
 
 

 Cabinet Member for 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Peter 
Morton 

3 Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 

Beverly Tarka 
 

Interim Director of 
Children and Young 
People’s Services 

Jon Abbey 
 

Director of Public 
Health 

Dr Jeanelle de 
Gruchy 
 

NHS Haringey Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group (CCG) 
 
 

4 Chair 
 

Dr Sherry Tang  
 

GP Board Member Dr Helen 
Pelendrides  
 

Chief Officer  
 

Sarah Price 

Lay Member 
 

Cathy Herman 

Patient and 
Service User 
Representative 
 

Healthwatch 
Haringey 

1 Interim Chair Sharon Grant 

Voluntary Sector 
Representative 
 

HAVCO 1 Interim 
Representative 

Gill Hawken 

 

Agenda Item 1Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



           
 
MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 

 

Board 

Members 

Present: 

Councillor Claire Kober (Chair), Dr Jeanelle de Gruchy (Director of Public 

Health, LBOH), Zina Etheridge (Deputy Chief Executive LBOH), Sir Paul Ennals 

(Chair of Haringey LSCB), Sharon Grant (Chair, Healthwatch Haringey), Gill 

Hawken (HAVCO), Cathy Herman (Lay Member, Haringey CCG), Councillor 

Peter Morton (Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing), Dr Helen 

Pelendrides (Chair, Haringey CCG), Sarah Price (Chief Office, Haringey CCG), 

Lisa Redfern (Director of Children’s Services), Dr Sherry Tang (GP Board 

Member, Haringey CCG), Beverley Tarka (Interim Director Adult Social Care) 

and Cllr Ann Waters (Cabinet Member for Children, LBOH).  

 

 

Officers  

Present: Xanthe Barker (Principal Committee Coordinator LBOH), Stephen Lawrence 

Orumwense (Assistant Head of Legal Services), Neil Roberts (Head of Primary Care 

NHS England), Mike Wilson (Director Healthwatch Haringey).  

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 

BY 

 

CNCL101.

 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 The Chair welcomed those present to the meeting and noted that there was a 

deputation and two public questions in relation to Item 10: ‘GP Access in 

Tottenham Hale: Capacity Study’.  

 

Therefore, with the Board’s agreement, as soon as representatives from NHS 

England were present to respond to questions, this report would be brought 

forward.   

 

 

 

CNCL102.

 

APOLOGIES  

 There were no apologies for absence.  

 

 

 

CNCL103.

 

MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2014 be confirmed as a correct 

record.  

 

 

 

CNCL104.

 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 The Chair noted that there was one item of urgent business, ‘Implications of  

Agenda Item 6Page 3



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

the New Care Act 2014’. This report was for information only and would be 

taken under Item 13 (the report had been circulated to members of the Board 

on 24 September 2014).  

 

 

CNCL105.

 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 There were no declarations of interest made.  

 

 

 

CNCL106.

 

FIVE BOROUGH FIVE YEAR PLAN 2014/15 - 2018/19 - BARNET, ENFIELD, 

HARINGEY, CAMDEN AND ISLINGTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS 

(CCGS) 

 

 The Board considered a report, previously circulated, which provided an 

update on the strategic planning undertaken by the NHS and progress 

towards the next submission of the North Central London (NCL) Strategic 

Planning Group (SPG) Five Year Plan, which aligned plans across Barnet, 

Camden, Enfield and Islington CCGs, Public Health and NHS England. The 

submission was due to be submitted to NHS England in late October.  

 

In response to points made with regard to need to ensure that Haringey was 

not placed at any disadvantage, given that other boroughs within the group 

may have different priorities and needs and different levels of resourcing; the 

Board was advised that individual borough’s priorities could not be altered. 

With regard to resourcing the Board was assured that Haringey would not be 

placed at any disadvantage.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the content of the report, the progress made to date and the 

next steps outline in the report, be noted.  

 

ii. That the Board placed on record its support for the North Central 

London Plan.  

 

 

 

CNCL107.

 

QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS, PETITIONS  

 As set out above the Chair noted that a deputation and two public questions 

had been accepted in relation to Item 10: ‘GP Access in Tottenham Hale: 

Capacity Study’. These had been received from: 

 

Deputation 

From Ms Vicky Ladizhinskaya  

 

Public Questions 

Michael Polledri, Chairman of Lee Valley Estates (represented by Chris 

Shellard) 

Nuala Kiely, Service User Engagement Coordinator, Mental Health Support 

Association 

 

Deputation 

 

 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

Ms Ladizhinskaya began by thanking the Board for hearing her deputation and 

noted that in addition to the people that had signed the original deputation 

request, over seventy additional people had also signed her deputation 

statement noting their support for this. For residents living in Bream Close, 

Hale Village and Ferry Lane, the difficulties attached to obtaining a GP 

appointment and the quality of the service provided by the local practice had 

become acute.  

 

Ms Ladizhinskaya stated that new developments, including the Hale Village 

scheme, had seen the population of Tottenham Hale rise by 32% in the last 

three years and during this time there had been no increase in the provision 

of GP practices. In addition, the area’s largest practice, Tynemouth Road, was, 

by the NHS’s own admission, in the bottom ten practices in the country 

according to a survey undertaken in 2014. The same survey also showed that 

42% of patients were unable to make an appointment when they telephoned 

the practice.  

 

Ms Ladizhinskaya noted that prior to the new development at Hale Village 

being built there was an existing problem with the quality and provision of GP 

services in Tottenham Hale and that this had been compounded by a 

significant rise in the local population. It was noted that as part of the original 

planning permission granted by the Council for the Hale Village development 

it had been specified that a GP practice should be included within the scheme 

and that Lea Valley Estates had worked with the NHS to secure this. However, 

it had not been possible to find GPs willing to set up a practice in the area and 

as a consequence the space allocated for health care had been used for a 

kidney dialysis unit serving the wider north London area rather than 

addressing the primary care needs of the local community. Given the 

likelihood of further significant development in the area in medium to long 

term Ms Ladizhinskaya argued that it was essential that provision for primary 

care was properly considered and reflected in the plans currently being 

developed in order to prevent the problem worsening.  

 

Ms Ladizhinskaya recounted her own experiences of attempting to obtain a 

GP appointment at the Tynemouth Road practice and a series of errors that 

had led to her test results being delayed by six weeks. She noted that many of 

her neighbours had experienced similar difficulties in obtaining a GP 

appointment and delays in hospital referrals. There was a general lack of 

communication and follow up from the Tynemouth Road practice and that 

was putting patients at unacceptable risk. She noted that the recent 

Healthwatch report had highlighted the issues at the Tynemouth Road 

practice, the lack of GP practices and quality of primary health care in 

Tottenham Hale. In conclusion Ms Ladizhinskaya noted that residents did not 

want preferential treatment and that they simply wanted GP provision across 

the borough to be equal and of the standard enjoyed by the majority of 

people living in the UK.  

 

The Chair thanked Ms Ladizhinskaya for her deputation and for sharing her 

personal experiences with the Board and invited Councillor Reith, one of the 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

local Ward Members, to set out her concerns.  

 

Councillor Reith began by noting that the lack of GP services and the quality of 

existing GP services had been an issue that pre-dated the development of 

Hale Village. In her previous role as Deputy Leader of the Council she had 

attended meetings with the former Primary Care Trust (PCT) where the need 

for improved services in the area had been discussed along with the specific 

provision of a GP practice within the Hale Village development.  

 

Councillor Reith reminded the Board that NHS England was responsible for 

commissioning GPs and ensuring that there were adequate GP services in 

place. This was a challenge that NHS England had to resolve both in the short 

and longer term. She contended that NHS England and the Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG) should, as a matter of urgency, map need in the 

area and put together proposals around how they intended to meet this. She 

underlined that although the Local Authority could lobby for this work to be 

undertaken it had no power to require this to happen.  

 

Councillor Reith noted that her own experience of obtaining an appointment 

at the Tynemouth Road practice echoed that of Ms Ladizhinskaya’s and the 

issues highlighted within the Healthwatch report. She noted that poor 

primary care significantly impacted on people’s health  and advised that there 

had been cases where people had presented at Accident and Emergency 

(A&E) in the advanced stages of cancer because their symptoms had either 

not been picked up by their GP or because of a failure to obtain an 

appointment with their GP. There had also been instances where women had 

received no ante-natal care and had presented at A&E in labour.  

 

In conclusion Councillor Reith noted that without the necessary provision of 

primary health care services in the area the expected growth in population 

and regeneration of the Tottenham would be impaired. She underlined the 

need for partners to work together to resolve this issue and suggested that a 

Working Group ought to be established as soon as possible to address the 

immediate lack of GP facilities. 

 

The Chair formally responded to the deputation and noted that this was an 

issue that was of concern to her both in terms of the impact this was currently 

having upon residents and in the medium to long term as the population of 

the area was likely to grow significantly. The success of the Council’s 

aspirations for the regeneration and development of the area would rely 

upon services of this type being in place to serve residents and the Council’s 

planning policy documents reflected this; however, the commissioning of GP 

services was not in the gift of the Council or the Clinical Commissioning Group 

(CCG). The power and responsibility to resolve these issues lay with NHS 

England and the Council would support residents in their calls for action.  

 

As set out above two questions (set out in Appendix 1) had been formally 

submitted to the Board from Mr Michael Polledri, Chairman of Lea Valley 

Estates (represented by Mr Chris Shellard) and Ms Nuala Kiely, Service User 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

Engagement Coordinator, Mental Health Support Association. The Chair asked 

both Mr Shellard and Ms Kiely to read their questions to the Board and 

members of the public present. 

 

In response to the first question from Mr Polledri the Chairman of Lea Valley 

Estates, the Chair reiterated that NHS England held the power to commission 

GP practices and that the Council had no authority to compel them to do so. 

She noted that NHS England had agreed to explore the feasibility of 

establishing a GP practice at Hale Village; however, this would take between 

twelve and fifteen months and, given the acute need for GP services in the 

area, this was not satisfactory.  

 

In response to the second question from Ms Kiely the Chair noted that as 

suggested by the question there was a postcode dimension to the discharge 

of patients from secondary to primary health care; however, this was a 

complex issue that primarily needed to be addressed by the relevant health 

care providers.  
 

CNCL108.

 

GP ACCESS IN TOTTENHAM HALE: CAPACITY STUDY  

 The Board received a presentation, previously circulated within the agenda 

pack, from Sharon Grant, Chair of Healthwatch Haringey. Following the 

presentation the Board discussed the group’s findings. 

 

The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, Councillor Morton, began by 

noting that this issue had been discussed by the Council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and that it also shared the concerns outlined above with 

regard to GP services in Tottenham. He noted that he strongly supported 

proposals to establish a Task and Finish group to look how these issues might 

be resolved. 

 

There was agreement that the provision of adequate GP services was 

essential to the community and particularly in relation to children and 

families. The Cabinet Member for Children and Families, Councillor Waters, 

noted that the Council’s approach to supporting families focussed heavily on 

the importance of ensuring that all children received the best start in life and 

this was reflected in its focus on children aged from nought to five years of 

age. She noted that GPs played a crucial role in the development and 

wellbeing of children in this age group and added that it was essential that 

they had access to good quality GP services.  

 

In response to a question, the Chair of Healthwatch Haringey confirmed that 

it was the organisation’s view that immediate action was required to address 

the lack of GP services in Tottenham Hale. Waiting for twelve to fifteen 

months for a feasibility study to be undertaken was not a viable option given 

the acute need in the area.    

 

It was noted that Neil Roberts of NHS England would respond to the points 

made under the next item. 

 

 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the findings outlined in the Healthwatch report relating to poor 

access to GP services for residents in the Tottenham Hale area, 

highlighted in both qualitative and quantitative evidence, be noted;  

 

ii. That the findings outlined in the report relating to the poor access to 

GP services for residents in the North East GP collaborative area, 

highlighted in both qualitative and quantitative evidence, be noted;  

iii. That the findings outlined in the Healthwatch report relating to the 

relatively poor access to GP services in Haringey compared to the 

national benchmark and in comparison with Camden, reflected in the 

number of actual GP appointments per week, be noted;  

 

iv. That Healthwatch’s call for immediate steps to be taken to 

supplement the GP capacity in Tottenham Hale, pending the proposals 

arising from the recommendation below, be endorsed; 

 

v. That Healthwatch’s call for a working group to be set up as a matter of 

urgency to review the evidence and to make recommendations to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board, within three months, for immediate 

action to improve access to GP services in the short term for the 

residents in Tottenham Hale and surrounding Wards be endorsed (the 

membership should include NHS England, Haringey CCG, Public Health, 

patient representatives and other partners that that the Health and 

Wellbeing Board may wish to nominate); and 

 

vi. That Healthwatch’s call for a planning group to be established to 

develop a strategy and plan for GP services in Haringey over the next 

five years, with priority being given to the North East and South East 

GP collaborative areas, be endorsed (the membership should include 

NHS England, Haringey CCG, Public Health, patient representatives and 

other partners that that the Health and Wellbeing Board may wish to 

nominate).  

 

CNCL109.

 

GP SERVICES IN HARINGEY  

 The Board received a verbal update from Neil Roberts, Head of Primary Care 

at NHS England, on the provision of GP services in Haringey and particularly in 

Tottenham Hale. Mr Roberts also responded on points made as part of the 

deputation and formal questions submitted under Item 6 in relation to the 

lack of GP services in Tottenham Hale.  

 

Mr Roberts began by noting that the issue of access to GP services was of 

concern to many people across the UK and that this was not particular to 

Haringey. He noted that the Healthwatch report on the capacity of GPs in 

Tottenham Hale was alarming and he accepted that the position appeared to 

be worsening based on the Healthwatch report and the experiences that had 

 

 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

been shared by residents with the Board that evening. Mr Roberts advised 

that GP’s could not be compelled to establish practices and noted that the 

funding arrangements in place for GP practices were based on population 

rather than an analysis of the needs of an area. As a consequence establishing 

a practice in an area of significant need was likely to be less ‘profitable’ and 

more demanding and therefore was less attractive to GPs. 

 

With regard to specific criticism of the Tynemouth Road Practice Mr Roberts 

noted that NHS England had been working with the practice to improve the 

quality of the services it offered and the systems in place there. Though it was 

disappointing that the impact of this improvement work did not appear to 

have taken full affect NHS England would continue to work with the practice 

to improve standards.  

 

In terms of the regeneration work being undertaken in Tottenham Hale and 

the impact of additional population of Hale Village, Mr Roberts noted that 

NHS England had only been in place since April 2013 and that discussion 

around Hale Village and the regeneration of Tottenham Hale pre dated its 

existence. Therefore work was required to assess how the regeneration work 

and needs of a growing population would be addressed and it was proposed 

that this could be done in part by a Task and Finish group chaired by Mr 

Roberts and including representatives from the CCG, Council and 

Healthwatch.  

 

In relation to the twelve to fifteen month period referred to in terms of 

procuring a new GP practice Mr Roberts noted that there were procurement 

rules that NHS England were required to follow and that this timescale was 

based on the need to adhere to these. Therefore ‘growing’ existing practices 

was an important alternative and NHS England was working closely with 

practices in the area to achieve more capacity and improve the quality of 

services. Mr Roberts also made reference to the average number of patients 

on a GP practice list and the importance of having sufficient nursing capacity 

and skills mix within a practice.  

 

The Chair thanked Mr Roberts for attending and responding to the points 

made earlier. She opened discussion by noting that the average number of 

patients on a GP’s list was a misleading measure of their capacity; for example 

there may be a larger than average population of elderly people or high levels 

of social deprivation meaning that there were likely to be more demanding 

health needs and this would not be detected by looking at the average 

number of patients on a GPs list.  The Chair also noted that if the provision of 

GP services were to be discussed using private sector terminology then the 

lack of adequate GP services in Tottenham Hale could be seen as market 

failure on the part of NHS England.  

 

In response to a question with regard to what action NHS England intended to 

take as a matter of urgency, in order to respond to the acute problems 

residents were experiencing in registering with GPs and obtaining GP 

appointments; Mr Roberts advised that NHS England was putting measures in 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

place to address the immediate problems. These included discussion with the 

CCG around solutions that would provide quick action; however, simply 

providing cash injection to address the problems in the short term was not a 

viable option and would set a precedent that could not be met.  

 

The Board was in agreement that new and innovative approaches had to be 

adopted in order to address the acute need that was evident in the area. 

There was a general consensus that as a matter of urgency examples 

elsewhere in the country where this type of scenario had been successfully 

addressed should be identified and looked at. It was also noted that it would 

be important that the proposed Task and Finish Group considered and quickly 

identified measures that could be quickly put in place as well as considering 

the long term healthcare needs of the area over the next twenty years.   

 

In response to concerns expressed with regard to the need to plan for the 

wider healthcare needs in the north east of Haringey, as these were likely to 

significantly increase over the next decade; Mr Roberts agreed that a clear 

strategy for recruiting GPs in the medium to long term was required and that 

improving the viability of existing practices and planning with GPs would form 

an important part of this.  

 

At the conclusion of discussion there was a general consensus that the Board 

should escalate this issue and formally write to NHS England outlining its 

concerns with regard to GP services in Tottenham Hale and the Tynemouth 

Road clinic. There was agreement that the letter should call for immediate 

action to be taken by NHS England and for the proposed Task and Finish 

group to commence as soon as possible. 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the information and proposed actions presented by NHS England 

be noted; 

 

ii. That a Task and Finish Group be established as soon as possible to look 

at how the immediate and long term health care needs of Tottenham 

should be met.  

 

iii. That a letter should be sent by the Chair, on behalf of the Board, to 

NHS England formally setting out its concerns with regard to the 

provision and quality of GP services in Tottenham Hale and the 

Tynemouth Road practice, calling for immediate action to be taken 

and for it to outline how it intended to do this.  

   

CNCL110.

 

HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION  

 The Board considered a report, previously circulated, which set out proposals 

with regard to the establishment of a Health Care Integration Programme in 

order to enable the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to 

jointly achieve better outcomes for local residents, improve the user 

 

 

Page 10



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

experience and to deliver efficiencies and value for money.  

 

There were five appendices included within the report, as set out below and 

these were considered in turn: 

 

Appendix 1 – Healthcare Integration Programme (presentation) 

Appendix 2 – Value Based Commissioning for Older People with Frailty  

Appendix 3 – Mental Health Framework  

Appendix 4 – Better Care Fund Re-Submission 

Appendix 5 – Scrutiny Review and Response Report  

 

Healthcare Integration Programme (presentation) 

The Board received a presentation setting out the vision and scope of the 

Integrated Care Programme and the Board then discussed this. In response to 

a question the Board was advised that one of the principles that underpinned 

the work around the programme had been to focus on building and 

developing existing structures and relationships rather than using time and 

resources to create a new set of structures.  

 

There was agreement that the proposals formed a good example of multi-

agency working and that in order to support the work and ensure that it was 

properly embedded training across the various organisations would be 

needed.   

 

Value Based Commissioning for Older People with Frailty 

The Board considered a report that provided an update on progress in 

developing an outline business case for Value Based Commissioning (VBC). 

The Board was advised that VBC was an important part of delivering 

integrated care and that Haringey was leading in the development of work in 

this area.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

That the proposals set out in the report be noted. 

 

Mental Health Framework  

The Board was advised that the Mental Health and Wellbeing Framework 

(MHWF) was being devised in order to bring together all of the existing 

strategies and to set out a clear vision for improving the mental health and 

wellbeing of Haringey’s residents from early years throughout adulthood and 

into older age.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

That the Mental Health and Wellbeing Framework scoping document be 

noted and that approval be given to the process for developing the MHWF 

outlined in the report.  

 

Better Care Fund Re-Submission 

Page 11



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

The Board considered a report seeking endorsement of the revised Better 

Care Fund (BCF) Plan, which was submitted on 19 September, as the agreed 

vision for improving the health, wellbeing and the independence of Haringey’s 

residents, through the delivery of integrated health and social care services. It 

was also noted that the Lead of the Council would formally note the revised 

BCF Plan on 3 November.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the revised BCF Plan, submitted on 19 September 2014, be 

endorsed as the agreed vision to improve health, wellbeing and the 

independence of Haringey’s residents, through the delivery of 

integrated health and social care services.  

 

ii. That it be noted that revisions made to the Plan, as required by NHS 

England, were set out in Appendix 3 of the report.   

 

Scrutiny Review and Response Report 

The Board received a report setting out the proposed responses to 

recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels on Mental and 

Physical Health and Mental Health and Accommodation.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the responses to the recommendations made by the Overview 

and Scrutiny Panel’s, as set out in Appendices 1 and 2 of the report, be 

noted.  

 

ii. That it be noted that the report and Appendices 1 and 2 would be 

presented to Cabinet on 14 October 2014 and that any proposals for 

change would be taken to Cabinet at a future date as necessary for 

adoption and agreement, after further work to identify resources, 

costs and risks.  

 

Following discussion of the five Appendices to the report the Board agreed 

the recommendations set out in the substantive report: 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That the proposal for the Health and Care Integration Programme, as 

set out in Appendix 1 of the report, be noted;  

 

ii. That it be noted that some of the existing integration initiatives would 

be incorporated into the Programme – updates for key integration 

initiatives currently in progress were set out in Appendices 2 to 6 of 

the report; 

 

iii. That it be agreed that the Health and Wellbeing Board would provide 

strategic oversight of the programme, although key decisions would 

Page 12



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

be made through the Council or CCGs respective decision making 

structure; and 

 

iv. That it be agreed that a follow up report would be submitted to the 

next meeting, which would also include a proposals around how the 

Health and Wellbeing Board would be involved in this Programme.  

 

CNCL111.

 

ANNUAL PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT  

 The Board considered a report, previously circulated, which presented the 

Annual Public Health Report and planned local anti-stigma and Mental Health 

and Wellbeing campaign for October 2014.  

 

The Board was advised that the 2014 report focused on the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy outcome ‘Improving Mental Health and Wellbeing’ and 

that it explored what was meant by ‘wellbeing’ and how this was linked to 

both physical and mental health. The Annual Public Health Report focussed on 

communicating messages that would engage all residents in Haringey 

regardless of their mental health and wellbeing state. It was envisaged that 

the report would initiate and open discussions about people’s own mental 

health and wellbeing, promote early recognition of signs and symptoms and 

encourage people who required help to access the appropriate services.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

That the Annual Public Health Report and planned local anti-stigma and 

mental health and wellbeing campaign for October 2014 be noted.  

 

 

 

CNCL112.

 

PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT  

 The Board considered a report, previously circulated, which set out the 

progress made to date with respect to the development of a new 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) and the timetable for this.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

i. That progress made to date with respect to developing the PNA be 

noted; 

 

ii. That development of the PNA be delegated to the Director of Public 

Health; 

 

iii. That approval be given to PNA Steering Group’s Terms of Reference 

and membership; and 

 

iv. That the timetable, as outlined in paragraph 5.9 of the report for 

consulting on, approving and publishing the PNA be noted and agreed.  

 

 

 

CNCL113. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

Page 13



MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

TUESDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

 

 As set out under CNCL104 above an information report entitled ‘Implications 

of the New Care Act 2014’ was considered as a new item of urgent business.  

 

RESOLVED: 

 

That the report be noted.  

 

 

 

CNCL114.

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 It was noted that the date of the next meeting was 13 January 2015 and that 

the meeting currently scheduled for 21 April 2015 may need to be 

rescheduled. 

 

 

 

 

The meeting closed at 9.15pm. 

 

 

COUNCILLOR CLAIRE KOBER 

 

 

 

............................................... 

 

Chair 

 

 

 

Page 14



       
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13 January 2015 

 

Title: Primary Care – A Strategic View 

 

Organisation: 
 
Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

Lead Officer: 
Cassie Williams, Assistant Director of Primary Care Quality and 
Development 
 

 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

In October 2014 Healthwatch provided a report to the Health and Wellbeing Board 
which described concerns in terms of access to GP appointments and patient 
satisfaction in the east of the borough. NHS England have provided a report to this 
Board describing the actions which have been taken as a result. A presentation will be 
given to the Board to give an overarching summary view of the current strategic 
direction of primary care nationally, in North Central London as well as our local 
strategy. The Board is being asked to give its views on this strategic approach. 

 
A number of significant documents have been published recently which provide an 
indication of the future direction of Primary Care. In addition there are organisational 
changes, such as the introduction of co-commissioning, which will potentially have an 
impact on how primary care is commissioned. This presentation will provide an 
overview of these reports and re-organisations and their implications for Haringey. The 
main areas of focus will be as follows: 

 

• Five Year Forward View: published by Simon Stevens of NHS England in October 
2014. This document highlights how far the NHS has progressed in 10 years and 
describes possible ways of moving forward in the next 5 years. It highlights the 
need to stabilise funding for general practice and provide new funding for innovation 
and improved access. It suggests that new models of care will be important to 
consider in future including multi-service providers. 

 

• Strategic Commissioning Framework for Primary Care Transformation in 
London: is being developed by the London Primary Care Transformation 
Programme chaired by Dr Clare Gerada. This document provides a vision for 
primary care in London and highlights the need to improve access and make care 
more coordinated and proactive. 

Agenda Item 7Page 15



       
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

• Co-commissioning: CCGs have been invited to make expressions of interest in 
relation to having a more collaborative role in commissioning primary care with NHS 
England. The goal is to create a more joined up, clinically led commissioning 
system which delivers seamless, integrated primary care services based around the 
needs of the local population. This will be managed at a north central London level. 
The goal is to produce more consistency and efficiency and a more collaborative 
approach to meeting the challenges of the next few years. 

 
This presentation will finally describe the strategic approach of Haringey CCG. The 
mission is to make primary care and care closer to home effective for Haringey 
residents, focusing on improving health outcomes. The focus is on actively promoting 
self-management, integration and looking for innovative ways of providing health care. 
It will aim to ensure that healthcare is more joined up and holistic and that GPs have an 
overall responsibility for health in Haringey.  
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

The Board is asked to give its views on the strategic view of the CC to developing 
primary care in the borough.  
 
 

Page 16



           
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13th January 2015 

 

Title: Primary Care Task and Finish Group  

 

Organisation: 
 
Neil Roberts, NHS England 

 

Lead Officer: Sarah Barron, NHS England 

 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

1.1. Following discussion at the Health and Wellbeing Board of 30th September 2014, it 
was recommended that a Primary Care Task and Finish Group be established.  Its key 
aims were to address primary care provision in specific regeneration areas of Haringey 
and to look at ways of improving the quality of primary care access across the borough.  
The Task and Finish Group was asked to report its interim findings at this January Board.  
The attached paper sets out progress that has been made in this period.  
 
1.2. Haringey has a number of significant regeneration schemes and housing 
developments which have been planned, particularly for the East of the borough.  
Schemes of various sizes are planned in a number of areas and it is predicted that the 
schemes will deliver an increased population of circa 15,000 people by 2020 increasing to 
circa 28,000 by 2025 and the potential of continuing increased demand in capacity.  About 
half of this increased population will be in the Tottenham area and the other half spread 
across the borough.  

 
1.3. In order to fully assess what primary care capacity is required within these 
regeneration and development schemes, and to understand the various options available 
to meet this requirement, an options appraisal will be undertaken through the NHS 
Strategic Partnering Agreement (SPA).  A partner has been appointed to undertake the 
options appraisal, GB Partnerships Ltd, who will attend the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
13th January 2015 to provide an update on progress.   

 
1.4. Next Steps  

 
1.4.1. To provide a further progress report in the form of a presentation by GB 

Partnerships Ltd, at the January Health and Well-being Board meeting 

Agenda Item 8Page 17



           
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1.4.2. To work with GB Partnerships Ltd, to complete an options appraisal by April 2015 
1.4.3. To report back to the Health and Wellbeing Board at their next meeting in April 2015 

on progress and recommendations  as a result of the options appraisal 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1. To be assured on the progress of the Task and Finish Group, and comment on the 
identified next steps.  
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

HARINGEY PRIMARY CARE TASK AND FINISH GROUP 

REPORT TO HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD DECEMBER 2014 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Following discussion at the Health and Wellbeing Board of 30th September 2014, it was 

recommended that a Primary Care Task and Finish Group be established. Its key aims were 

to address primary care provision in specific regeneration areas of Haringey and to look at 

ways of improving the quality of primary care access across the borough. The Task and 

Finish Group was asked to report its interim findings at this January Board. This paper sets 

out progress that has been made in this period.  

A presentation will accompany this report.  

 

2. BACKGROUND 

Haringey has a number of significant regeneration schemes and housing developments 

which have been planned, particularly for the east of the borough. Schemes of various sizes 

are planned in a number of areas and it is predicted that the schemes will deliver an 

increased population of circa 15,000 people by 2020 increasing to circa 28,000 by 2025 and 

the potential of continuing increased demand in capacity. About half of this increased 

population will be in the Tottenham area and the other half spread across the borough.  

 

Each will have a significant impact on population and will therefore place significant 

additional pressure on Primary Care which cannot be managed within the current resource. 

The Task and Finish Group has decided to consider Primary Care premises in the context of 

all of these areas, but with specific emphasis on the Tottenham area, and Wood Green.  

 

Figure 1 below shows the key areas of development opportunity in Haringey as identified in 

the 2010 Borough Investment Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Page 2 of 4 

 

Figure 1 

 

 

It is acknowledged that Primary Care already faces significant capacity challenges in the 

east of the Borough. A recent Healthwatch report raised concerns that there was a shortfall 

in patient appointments in the Tottenham Hale area in the larger context of an overall 

shortfall in the east of the borough. It highlighted low patient satisfaction in relation to access 

in this area on the basis of the GP survey. It also identified that 32% of GPs in Haringey 

were over 60 years in age and a significant percentage were likely to retire within the next 10 

years.  

 

Haringey CCG further highlighted that a number of the current practice premises would not 

be viable in the future. There are various reasons for this, including leases expiring, some 

buildings which are not suitable for modernising, a building which is not currently CQC 

compliant and a number of practices being housed in small buildings which would not allow 

expansion of patient lists.  

 

3. DIRECTION OF TRAVEL  

It was recognised that immediate primary care issues need to be addressed but that it was 

also important to plan for the future. The following timescales were agreed to address: 

 

Page 20



Page 3 of 4 

• Long-term: The need for increased primary care capacity and premises due to 

growth in population  

• Medium-term: The need for increased primary care capacity and premises due 

to poor premises, practice closure and ongoing deficit in primary care provision  

• Short-term: Immediate access problems either due to lack of capacity or poor  

quality of access 

 

4 PROGRESS TO DATE 

• Long-term 

The Task and Finish Group initially focused on how to ensure that there is sufficient 

capacity to meet the needs of residents in the future, with particular regard to the 

regeneration in Tottenham.  

 

NHS England has a clear process for capital developments, which commences with the 

development of a Project Initiation Document (PID), which is submitted to their Finance, 

Investment, Procurement and Audit Committee (FIPA) for approval. The Haringey PID 

was submitted to FIPA in November 2014. The PID provides evidence to support the 

funding of an options appraisal.  

 

This options appraisal will be undertaken through the NHS Strategic Partnering 

Agreement (SPA) and a partner has been appointed to undertake the options appraisal, 

GB Partnerships Ltd. At the time of writing this report the options appraisal was being 

commenced. 

 

The options appraisal will do the following: 

• Undertake an assessment of current primary care premises and provision 

• Assess the likely future changes in primary care provision, such as retirement, 

practice closure, practice mergers 

• Assess the need for primary care provision due to development and regeneration 

schemes 

• Explore all possible options for future provision, having regard to the above 

• Examine the services provided by other healthcare providers in the area, such as 

Whittington Health, to understand the nature of their premises and explore any 

scope for utilisation and integrated working  

• Assess the pharmacy need in view of future population growth (drawing on the 

local Pharmacy Needs Assessment) 

Page 21



Page 4 of 4 

• Explore the need for temporary solutions until longer-term premises are 

completed 

  

• Medium-term 

As referred to in 4.1 above, the options appraisal will include the consideration of 

temporary solutions whilst primary care premises are being built within development 

areas. The Task and Finish Group is clear that there is a requirement to look at how 

primary care provision is both increased and improved in the medium term. The options 

appraisal will both assess this need and provide physical premises options to consider.  

 

• Short-term 

An Access Taskforce has been set up to consider current access issues and look at how 

to maximise current provision. This Taskforce reports into the Task and Finish Group. At 

the first meeting, it was acknowledged that access issues were significantly impacted by 

a lack of current premises provision and therefore these needed to be considered as part 

of the current premises work. It was agreed that the options appraisal would therefore 

include proposals for short to medium term solutions to offer additional space for primary 

care provision in the east of the borough. 

 

5 NEXT STEPS 

• To work with GB Partnerships Ltd, to complete an options appraisal by April 2015 

• To report back to the Health and Wellbeing Board at their next meeting after April 

2015 on progress and recommendations as a result of the options appraisal 

 

Page 22



       

Page 1 of 5 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13 January 2015 

 

Title: Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-2018: launch of consultation 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

Dr. Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public Health 

 

Lead Officer: Dr. Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public Health 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

1.1. Haringey’s current Health and Wellbeing Strategy comes to an end in 2015. In July 
2014, the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) launched a programme of activity to 
review and refresh the strategy for 2015 to 2018. 

 
1.2. The HWB is now asked to consider the draft strategy at its meeting on 13 January 

and approve it for public consultation. 
 
2. Cabinet Member introduction 
 

2.1. Everyone has the right to enjoy good health and wellbeing. However, in Haringey 
there are large inequalities across the borough. Residents in the poorest parts of the 
borough are not only more likely to die early, but they will also spend a greater 
proportion of their shorter lives unwell. This inequality is often established from birth 
(or even before) and develops further through life. 

 
2.2. In the current economic climate for the public sector, the challenge is to find new and 

different ways to build more resilient communities supported by services that make 
an evidenced and sustained improvement. 
 

2.3. Haringey already has a significant and ambitious programme of change which 
includes regeneration, children’s and adults’ services, housing and education. 
National legislation is introducing greater integration of health and social care, new 
ways for adults to fund their care, and welfare reform to name but a few. 
 

2.4. Against this backdrop, the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy will focus on some of 
the issues requiring system leadership if we are to deliver a real and sustainable 
difference. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 23



       

Page 2 of 5 

3. Recommendation 
 
3.1. That the HWB: 

• agrees the draft strategy and 

• endorses the start of a 3 month public consultation. 
 
4. Alternative options considered 
 

4.1. No other options are being considered. The Health and Wellbeing Board has a 
statutory duty to bring together bodies from the NHS, public health and local 
government, including Healthwatch as the patient’s voice, to plan how best to meet 
local health and care needs. These needs must be set out through a joint health and 
wellbeing strategy that offers a strategic framework in which the clinical 
commissioning group, council and NHS England can make their own commissioning 
decisions. 

 

5. Background information 
 

5.1. It is the statutory responsibility of the Health and Wellbeing Board to publish a Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and a Joint Strategy Needs Assessment (JSNA).  

 
5.2. Haringey’s current Health and Wellbeing Strategy is for 2012 to 2015. In July 2014, 

the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) launched a programme of activity to review 
and refresh the strategy for 2015 to 2018. An analysis of current need in Haringey (ie 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) was undertaken as well as a review of the 
current strategy through a series of meetings with key stakeholder groups, and a 
workshop, survey and focus groups of the voluntary sector and residents organised 
by HealthWatch and HAVCO. 
 

5.3. The review highlighted in particular that residents in Haringey are:  
o becoming overweight and obese from an early age,  
o developing long term health conditions at a relatively young age, and  
o there are significant numbers of people with mental health issues  
This contributes to significant health inequalities in the borough.  
 

5.4. This review informed the development of the draft strategy and its three priorities: 
1) Reducing obesity 
2) Increasing healthy life expectancy 
3) Improving mental health 

 

5.5. The strategy will enable:  
 

o all partners to be clear about our agreed priorities for the next three years 

o all members of the HWB to embed these priorities within their own organisations 

and ensure that these are reflected in their commissioning and delivery plans 

o key agencies to develop joined-up or integrated commissioning and delivery plans 

to address these priorities 

Page 24



       

Page 3 of 5 

o the HWB to hold member organisations to account for their actions towards 

achieving the priorities within the strategy 

o members of the board to work with and influence partner organisations to contribute 

to the priorities and the approaches for working agreed within this strategy 

5.6. The draft strategy acknowledges the importance of, and is aligned with, other closely 
related frameworks and programmes, including the CCG’s 5 year strategy; NHS 
North Central London’s 5-year strategy; health and social care integration; Haringey 
54,000; improving the quality of primary care. 
 

5.7. The draft strategy also acknowledges the key wider determinants of health and 
wellbeing including regeneration, housing, employment and education. This strategy 
complements the strategies and programmes that address these areas. In addition, 
the Health and Wellbeing Board will work to influence these policy areas, where 
appropriate, to support delivery of its new health and wellbeing strategy.   
 

5.8. The strategy will have strong synergy with the council’s Corporate plan, both in its 
priorities and through integrating the cross-cutting principles of: developing a 
preventative and early intervention approach; reducing inequalities; working with 
communities and developing partnerships.  
 

5.9. The purpose of this statutory consultation is to obtain views on: 
o the proposed priorities 
o the focus of the three priorities and ideas of how to deliver these outcomes 
o how organisations and individuals could contribute to the delivery of the 

outcomes, either by themselves or in partnership with others  
 

5.10. In addition, there will be more detailed engagement with residents and service users 
on the priorities to shape the development of the delivery plans. This consultation 
activity will vary for the respective priorities to ensure that we can most usefully 
inform the plans.  
 

5.11.  The consultation will engage with: 
o residents and users of relevant council and NHS services 
o community groups and the voluntary sector 
o partner organisations and partnership boards   
o NHS and Social Care providers 
 

5.12. The consultation will last for 3 months. The strategy and delivery plans will be 
brought to the June/July HWB.  

 
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 

6.1. There are no new financial implications directly arising from this report. The Health 
and Wellbeing strategy will be implemented using Public Health Grant and Council 
budgets and the budgets of other partners such as Health.  

 
6.2. The costs of the consultation will be met from within existing resources.  

Page 25



       

Page 4 of 5 

 
7. Comments of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and legal 

implications 
 

7.1. Section 196 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to exercise the functions of the local authority and the clinically 
commissioning group to prepare a joint health and wellbeing strategy (JHWS). The 
Statutory Guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2013 provides that “Local authorities and clinical commissioning 
groups have equal and joint duties to prepare JSNAs and JHWSs, through the health 
and wellbeing board. The responsibility falls on the health and wellbeing board as a 
whole and so success will depend upon all members working together throughout the 
process. Success will not be achieved if a few members of the board assume 
ownership, or conversely do not bring their area of expertise and knowledge to the 
process. As the duties apply across the health and wellbeing board as a whole, 
boards will need to discuss and agree their own arrangements for signing off the 
process and outputs. What is important is that the duties are discharged by the board 
as a whole” (Paragraph 3.1).  

 
In preparing the JHWS, the Board must involve the local Healthwatch organisation 
and the local community. The Guidance provides that when involving the local 
community, the Board “should consider inclusive ways to involve people from 
different parts of the community including people with particular communication 
needs to ensure that differing health and social care needs are understood, reflected, 
and can be addressed by commissioners. This should recognise the need to engage 
with parts of the community that are socially excluded and vulnerable48. Involvement 
should aim to allow active participation of the community throughout the process – 
enabling people to input their views and experiences of local services, needs and 
assets as part of qualitative evidence; and to have a genuine voice and influence 
over the planning of their services” (Paragraph 5).  

 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 

8.1. An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is currently being undertaken. The findings 
will be analysed and will inform the final strategy. 

 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 

9.1. The Procurement Service has been consulted about this report, and has confirmed 
that no comment is required. 
 

10. Policy Implication 
 

10.1. This strategy enables the HWB to fulfil its statutory duty to bring together bodies from 
the NHS, public health, local government and Healthwatch to plan how best to meet 
local health and care needs. These needs must be set out through a joint health and 
wellbeing strategy that offers a strategic framework in which the clinical 

Page 26



       

Page 5 of 5 

commissioning group, council and NHS England can make their own commissioning 
decisions. 

 
10.2. Key strategies and plans are:  

10.2.1. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
10.2.2. Council’s Corporate Plan  
10.2.3. NHS North Central London 5 year plan  
10.2.4. Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group 5 year plan   
10.2.5. Health and social care integration 
10.2.6. Haringey 54,000 programme 
10.2.7. Tottenham Strategic Regeneration Framework 
10.2.8. Housing and welfare reforms 
 

11.  Reasons for Decision  
 

11.1. The HWB takes the lead in promoting a healthier Haringey and this strategy provides 
its direction over the next four years. It is therefore vital that partners are involved in 
formulating and committed to commissioning and delivery in line with the proposed 
strategic approach. 
 

12. Use of Appendices 
 

12.1. Appendix 1: The Health and Wellbeing Strategy consultation draft will be tabled at 
the HWB on 13 January 2015. 
 

13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
13.1. None 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



           
 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13th January 2015 

 

Title: Health and Care Integration Update 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

Zina Etheridge – Deputy Chief Executive, Haringey Council 
and 
Sarah Price – Chief Officer, Haringey CCG 

 

Lead Officer: Asad Butt, Integration interim programme manager 

 

1 Describe the issue under consideration 

1.1 This paper provides an update to the report brought to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board of the 30th September 2014 and proposes a governance structure for the 
programme.  

 

2 Cabinet Member introduction 

2.1 Supporting everyone to be healthy and have a high quality of life for as long as 
possible is a core aim for the Council and its partners.  Integrating health and social 
care so that care is person centred, joined up and meets their needs is core to that 
vision.  The establishment of the health and social care programme is an important 
step towards delivering that integration.  The proposed governance model set out in 
this paper will ensure that the programme is effectively governed and has strong 
strategic input from the HWB. 

 

3 Recommendations 

3.1 The HWB is asked to note progress made to date. 

3.2 The HWB is asked to note and approve the proposed governance structure in 
Appendix A 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 29



           
 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

4 Alternative options considered 

4.1 None 

 

5 Background information 

5.1 The Health and Social Care Integration Programme has been established to support 
Haringey in meeting its vision for Integrated Care, i.e.: 

• We want people in Haringey to be healthier and to have a higher quality of life 
for longer.   

• We want everyone to have more control over the health and social care they 
receive, for it to be centred on their needs, supporting their independence and 
provided locally wherever possible. This means: 

• The individual’s perspective should be at the heart of any discussions 
about integrated care 

• When  planning and providing integrated care services the individual’s 
perspective should be the organising principle of service delivery 

5.2 The programme has agreed three key priorities (themes), integrated care for adults, 
children, and people with mental ill health as the focus for the first phase.  These 
themes align with the outcomes set out in Haringey’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy, 
the Council’s Corporate Plan and the 5 year strategy for CCGs in North Central 
London.   

5.3 Within each theme, a number of projects / programmes have been identified to 
deliver the agreed integrated care vision, for that theme.  Additionally, the Integration 
Programme includes cross cutting themes in the areas of technology and finance that 
will enable and support integration.  

5.4 Projects/programmes underway in the Adults theme are: 

• Better Care Fund: encompassing actions to tackle health inequalities and the 
life expectancy gap, through a focus on early interventions in long term 
conditions, and improving mental health and wellbeing, through a focus on 
choice, control and empowerment.  For the first year, focusing on integrated 
service for frail older people (65+) to enable them live independently. 

• Value Based Commissioning: establishing models and approaches to 
commission services based on values / outcomes rather than activity; working 
in partnership with Enfield CCG. 

5.5 Projects/programmes underway in the Childrens theme are: 

• SEND reforms Programme: implementing the changes set out in the Children 
and Families Act regarding special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 
which came into effect from September 2014.   

Page 30



           
 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

• Early Help Project (input): Providing input into the Childrens project 
considering the range of provision often described as prevention, early 
intervention and targeted early help, which may be delivered by universal 
services or by commissioned services.  

5.6 Projects/programmes underway in the Mental Health theme are: 

• Mental Health Strategic Framework: setting the strategic direction and 
implementation approach for integrated mental health services in Haringey, 
covering both adults and children (CAMHS).   

• Mental Health and accommodation: Creating a revised pathway for people 
with mental ill health who require housing support, supported housing or 
Residential Care.   

5.7 The theme leads are working to define the outcomes and outputs at the next level of 
detail and this progress will be included in the next update to the board.  

5.8 The Health and Care Integration Programme has consolidated existing Integration 
projects and proposes the governance framework (Appendix A) to enable greater 
collaboration and effectiveness across Haringey.   

5.9 The breadth and depth of the Integration Programme is such that it requires different 
levels of specialist and detailed attention and steer.  To ensure the appropriate 
people are involved, the governance structure consists of three layers,  

• Strategic 

• Set the vision and ambition for integration in Haringey 

• Provide guidance and strategic direction 

• Make strategic decisions (impacting vision and direction of travel) within 
the agreed scope and principles 

• Steering  

• Have the ultimate oversight of the Integration Programme 

• Steer the Integration Programme and associated projects 

• Ensure progress on track to achieve the agreed vision and goals set out 
for integration in Haringey 

• Make management decisions (enabling the programmes and projects to 
continue) within the agreed scope and principles 

• Operational 

• Manage and direct projects (at an operational level)  

• Agree proposals for operationalisation of the integration plan which are 
developed through the projects 

• Ensure the projects are on track and progressing as expected 

Page 31



           
 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

• Make operational project decisions, within the agreed scope and plan, 
enabling the project to continue to deliver 

5.10 This layered governance structure aligns with the existing governance that is already 
in place within the Council and the CCG.   

5.11 The governance structure will be supported by quarterly updates via presentation or 
paper to the Health and Wellbeing board 

 

Page 32



           
 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

6 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 

6.1 Not applicable at this stage.  As a next step further work will be completed to scope 
the Programme and associated projects, as well as to determine any financial 
implications.  This scope and financial implications will be discussed and agreed with 
the appropriate stakeholders in the respective organisations. 

6.2 The result of this scoping work with any comments from the Chief Finance Officer(s) 
will be included in the follow up presentation/ paper to the next meeting. 

7 Comments of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and legal 

implications 

7.1 The Council’s Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted about 
this report.  

7.2 The Health and Care Integration programme is conducive to the Board’s statutory 
duty to encourage integrated working between commissioners of NHS, public health 
and social care services for the advancement of the health and wellbeing of the local 
population (Section 195 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012). The Integration 
Programme is also conducive to the Council’s and the CCG’s statutory powers to 
promote integrated commissioning and provision of services in health and social 
care. These powers are set out in Sections 75 of the National Health Services (NHS) 
Act 2006 (as amended) (arrangements between NHS bodies and local authorities for 
the delegation of functions), Sections 13N and 14Z1 of the NHS Act 2006 (14Z1 
 Duty as to promoting integration), Sections 25 and 26 of the Children and families 
Act 2014 (Education, health and care provision: integration and joint commissioning) 
and Section 3 of the Care Act 2014 (Promoting integration of care and support with 
health services etc) 

8 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

8.1 The proposed Health and Care Integration Programme is designed to provide health 
and social care services that produce better outcomes and a better experience for all 
local people.  As a result it serves the interests of all protected groups, whose health 
and wellbeing it promotes, and is aligned with the Council’s commitment to equalities.  

8.2 Equality impact assessments will be carried out as part of the project planning and 
delivery process. 

 

9 Head of Procurement Comments 

9.1 N/A  There are no direct procurement implications arising out of this report however 
as and when the projects identify procurement requirements the appropriate 
processes will be followed. 

 

Page 33



           
 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

10 Policy Implication 

10.1 There are no direct policy implications arising out of this report however national 
policy is a key driver of integration especially from the Better Care Fund and Care Act 
Implementation and this programme of work will complement and add value to work 
under this remit. 

 

11 Reasons for Decision 

11.1 The proposed governance process provides clarity as to how the Health and 
Wellbeing Board will provide strategic direction and decisions for the Health and Care 
Integration Programme. 

12 Use of Appendices 

 

Appendix A: Proposed Governance Structure 
 
 

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

Page 34



DRAFT

Overall governance layers (Use existing meetings / forums where possible)

Scope and Governance

S
tr
a
te
g
ic Vision and ambition

Strategic direction 

Strategic decisions 

(impacting vision and 

direction of travel)

S
te
e
ri
n
g

Steer and guidance

Integration agenda for 

Haringey on track

Management decisions 

(enabling projects to 

continue)

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

Projects (at  operational 

Integration Programme 

Steering Board

Joint Integration 

Programme Project 

Lead & Support

Health and Wellbeing 

Board

Council Cabinet

CCG Governing Body

Programme Management and delivery

Interdependencies (internal and external)

Learning and best practices

Other programmes 

and projects in 

Council and NHS

E

E N

1

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

Projects (at  operational 

level)

Progress and project 

interventions

Operational project 

decisions

P
ro
je
c
ts

Operational 

Group 

– Children

Operational 

Group 

– Mental Health

Operational 

Group 

– Adults

Enablers – Working 

groups

SEND Reforms 

Programme

Input into Early Help 

Offer

Facing Future 

Together

MH Strategic 

Framework

Transformation CYP 

MH services

BCF projects

VBC project

MH and 

accommodation

Input / coordination into 

Tottenham Primary Care Access Project

Enablement model 

based on holistic 

outcomes

Integration – working 

age adults with 

disability

Integration –

“healthy lifestyles” 

(promotion 

prevention)

Interoperable IT –

Haringey vision

Self Management –

Telehealth solutions

Integrated Financial 

Management 

(e.g.pooled budget)

E NNN

E

N New

Existing

Key:

Project in progress

Project in pipeline

Input/link into project

P
a
g
e
 3

5



P
a

g
e
 3

6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  1
 

   
          

HHaarr
iinnggee

yy  SS
aaffeegg

uuaarr
ddiinngg

  CChh
iillddrree

nn  BB
ooaarr

dd  
  AAnnnn

uuaall  
RReepp

oorrtt  
oonn  

tthhee  
EEffffee

ccttiivv
eennee

ssss  oo
ff  SSaa

ffeegguu
aarrdd

iinngg  
CChhii

llddrree
nn  iinn

  HHaa
rriinngg

eeyy  22
001133

  --1144
  aanndd

  
BBuuss

iinneess
ss  PP

llaann  
220011

44--11
55  

    

Agenda Item 11Page 37



2

 

FFoorr
eewwoo

rrdd  ff
rroomm

  tthhee
  IInndd

eeppee
nnddee

nntt  CC
hhaaiirr

    
Dur

ing 
the 

yea
r un

der 
revi

ew,
 the

 Bo
ard 

was
 abl

y ch
aire

d by
 Gra

ham
 Ba

dma
n. I 

had
 the

 hon
our 

of ta
king

 ove
r fro

m h
im i

n M
ay 2

014
. Du

ring
 

D
u
r
in

g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r
 u

n
d
e
r
 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

th
e
 B

o
a
r
d

 w
a
s
 a

b
ly

 c
h
a
ir
e
d

 b
y
 G

r
a
h
a
m

 B
a
d
m

a
n
. 
I 
h
a
d

 t
h
e
 h

o
n
o
u
r
 o

f 
ta

k
in

g
 o

v
e , an

d fo
rged

 str
ong

 rela
tion

ship
s 

betw
een

 the
 age

ncie
s w

orki
ng i

n H
arin

gey
. His

 wis
dom

, hu
mou

r an
d te

nac
ity a

re a
ll m

uch
 mis

sed
. 

201
3-1

4 w
as a

 yea
r of

 cha
nge

 and
 cha

llen
ge w

ithin
 Ha

ring
ey. 

New
 org

anis
atio

nal 
stru

ctur
es e

mer
ged

, an
d m

any
 fac

es c
han

ged
. Th

e ne
w 

com
mis

sion
ing 

arra
nge

men
ts in

 hea
lth w

ere 
led 

by t
he C

linic
al C

omm
issio

ning
 Gro

up, 
whi

ch e
stab

lishe
d its

 wa
ys o

f wo
rkin

g ra
pidl

y, a
t a t

ime
 

of b
udg

et p
ress

ure 
and

 co
nsta

nt c
han

ge. 
The

 He
alth

 an
d W

ell-B
eing

 Bo
ard 

brou
ght 

toge
ther

 ag
enc

ies 
from

 ac
ross

 the
 Bo

roug
h, a

nd 
a 

o
f 
b
u
d
g
e

t 
p
r
e
s
s
u
r
e
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
s
ta

n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e
ll

B
e
in

g
 B

o
a
r
d

 b
r
o
u
g
h

t 
to

g
e

th
e
r
 a

g
e
n
c
ie
s
 f

r
o
m

 a
c
r
o
s
s
 t

h
e
 B

o
r
o
u , wi

th m
any

 
fam

iliar
 fac

es m
ovin

g o
n, a

nd 
ther

e w
as a

 pe
riod

 wh
ere 

sev
eral

 po
sts 

wer
e h

eld 
by 

inte
rim 

man
age

rs. 
The

 pro
bati

on 
serv

ice 
und

erw
ent 

prep
arat

ion 
for f

und
ame

ntal
 cha

nge
. Th

roug
hou

t the
se c

han
ges

 the
 Bo

ard 
rem

aine
d a 

stab
le p

oint
 wh

ere 
part

ners
hip 

wor
king

 wa
s st

rong
. 

s is
sue

d. It
 set

 out
 new

 acc
oun

tabi
litie

s fo
r th

e 
LSC

B in
dep

end
ent 

cha
ir, w

ith t
he l

oca
l au

thor
ity c

hief
 exe

cuti
ve a

ssu
min

g re
spo

nsib
ility 

for 
ens

urin
g th

at t
he B

oard
 is e

ffec
tive

ly m
ana

ged
. 

This
 cha

nge
 wa

s sm
ooth

ly n
ego

tiate
d; t

he r
elat

ions
hip 

betw
een

 Ch
air a

nd C
hief

 Exe
cuti

ve h
as b

een
 po

sitiv
e. A

ny a
nxie

ties
 tha

t th
is c

han
ge 

mig
ht in

volv
e a 

redu
ctio

n in
 the

 righ
tful 

inde
pen

den
ce o

f th
e LS

CB 
and

 Ch
air h

ave
 bee

n di
spe

lled
, thr

oug
h th

e op
en a

nd t
rans

par
ent 

way
 in 

whi
ch t

he r
elat

ions
hip 

has
 bee

n ha
ndle

d. in
d
e
p
e
n

e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C
B

 a
n
d

 C
h
a
ir
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 d
is
p
e
lle

d
, 

th
r
o
u
g
h

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n

 a
n
d

 t
r
a
n
s
p
a
r
e
n

t 
w
a
y
 i
n
 

e
n
d

offe
r, w

hich
 is a

 rela
tive

ly n
ew 

area
 of f

ocu
s fo

r the
 Bo

ard.
 

Bef
ore 

I as
sum

ed t
he c

hair
 of 

the 
Boa

rd, 
I ha

d b
een

 inv
ited

 dur
ing 

the 
autu

mn 
of 2

013
 to 

revi
ew 

the 
wor

k of
 the

 LS
CB.

 I fo
und

 an 
effe

ctiv
e 

grou
p of

 age
ncie

s, w
orki

ng w
ell t

oge
ther

, wi
th a

 cle
ar c

omm
itme

nt t
o pa

rtne
rshi

p w
orki

ng a
nd t

o sa
fegu

ardi
ng c

hild
ren,

 and
 an 

ope
nne

ss t
o 

con
side

r di
ffere

nt w
ays

 of 
wor

king
. To

geth
er w

e id
enti

fied
 so

me 
cha

nge
s to

 the
 go

vern
anc

e a
nd 

ope
ratio

n o
f th

e B
oard

, to
 the

 us
e o

f 
perf

orm
anc

e da
ta, a

nd t
o th

e de
gree

 of p
riori

ty g
iven

 to E
arly

 He
lp, w

hich
 are

 now
 bei

ng i
nco

rpor
ated

 into
 the

 run
ning

 of t
he B

oard
. 

Sho
rtly 

afte
r the

 end
 of 2

013
-14

, in 
May

 201
4, O

fste
d vi

site
d, to

 ins
pec

t LB
 Ha

ring
ey a

nd t
o re

view
 the

 wo
rk o

f the
 LSC

B. A
ltho

ugh
 the

 rev
iew 

fell 
just

 out
side

 the
 yea

r in 
que

stio
n, it

 wa
s re

flec
ting

 on 
wor

k un
dert

ake
n du

ring
 tha

t ye
ar, s

o pe
rhap

s th
e be

st w
ay t

o re
flec

t on
 our

 wo
rk la

st 
yea

r is 
to h

ighl
ight

 the
 con

clus
ions

 of O
fste

d. W
e w

ere 
the 

nint
h LS

CB 
to b

e re
view

ed, 
so t

he i
nsp

ecto
rs a

nd o
urse

lves
 we

re le
arni

ng f
rom

 the
 

y
e
a
r
 is

 t
o

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
c
lu
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
O

fs
te

d
. 
W

e
 w

e
r
e
 t
h
e
 n

in
th

 L
S
C
B

 t
o

 b
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
, 
s
o

 t
h
e
 i  - R

I
n
s
p
e
c

to
r
s
 a

n
d

 o
u
r
s
e
lv
e
s
 w

e
r
e
 l
e
a
r
n
in

g
 f
r
o
m

 t
h
e
 

note
d th

at th
ey h

ad f
oun

d ju
st 4

 are
as f

or im
pro

vem
ent,

 non
e ur

gen
t  a

 low
er n

umb
er th

an a
ny o

ther
 bo

ard 
who

 had
 rec

eive
d th

e R
I rat

ing.
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 f
o
u
n
d

 j
u
s
t 

4
 a

r
e
a
s
 f
o
r
 i
m

p
r
o
v
e
m

e
n

t,
 n

o
n
e
 u

r
g
e
n

t 
a
 l
o
w

e
r
 n

u
m

b
e
r
 t
h
a
n

 a
n
y
 o

th
e
r
 b

o
a

ese
nt O

fste
d do

 
not 

hav
e th

e lic
enc

e to
 com

men
t pu

blic
ly b

eyo
nd t

he h
ead

line
 rati

ng. 
To e

nab
le c

omp
aris

on, 
RI is

 the
 mo

st c
omm

on r
atin

g so
 far 

deli
vere

d by
 

Ofs
ted,

 wit
h m

ore 
than

 hal
f of 

Boa
rds 

so f
ar re

view
ed g

aini
ng t

his 
ratin

g. 

Page 38



3

 

Ofs
ted 

con
firm

ed 
that

 we
 we

re c
omp

lian
t w

ith 
the 

new
 Wo

rkin
g T

oge
ther

 arr
ang

eme
nts,

 ou
r go

vern
anc

e w
as e

ffec
tive

, we
 ha

d e
ffec

tive
 

bus
ines

s pl
ann

ing,
 and

 we
 pai

d at
tent

ion 
to th

e vo
ice 

of th
e ch

ild. 
We 

dem
ons

trate
d ch

allen
ge t

o pa
rtne

rs, a
nd s

upp
orte

d pa
rtne

rs in
 hol

ding
 

eac
h ot

her 
to a

cco
unt.

 Ou
r ran

ge o
f au

dit a
ctiv

ity w
as n

oted
, wi

th s
upp

ort f
or o

ur L
earn

ing 
and

 Imp
rove

men
t Fr

ame
wor

k an
d ou

r ap
proa

ch t
o 

Ser
ious

 Ca
se R

evie
ws.

 Ou
r tra

inin
g pr

ogra
mm

e, o
ur p

olic
ies,

 and
 our

 we
bsit

e, w
ere 

all c
omm

end
ed. 

Ofs
ted 

did 
how

eve
r ide

ntify
 fou

r ar
eas

 for
 imp

rove
men

t, al
l of 

whi
ch a

lrea
dy h

ad a
ppe

ared
 wit

hin 
our 

prio
ritie

s, a
nd o

n w
hich

 we
 hav

e be
en 

wor
king

. Ou
r wo

rk w
ith s

cho
ols 

requ
ired

 furt
her 

stre
ngth

enin
g, to

 ens
ure 

that
 sch

ools
 are

 mo
re fu

lly in
volv

ed a
t Bo

ard 
leve

l. O
ur g

uida
nce

 on 
w

o
r
k
in

g
. 
O

u
r
 w

o
r
k
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

 f
u
r
th

e
r
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
in

g
, 

to
 e

n
s
u
r
e
 t
h
a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
r
e
 m

o
r
e
 f
u
lly

 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d

 a
t 
B
o
a
r
d

 l
e
v
e
l.
 O

ly re
flec

ted.
 Ou

r 
stra

tegy
 on 

CSE
, wh

ich 
was

 bei
ng d

eve
lope

d on
 a L

ond
on-

wid
e ba

sis, 
nee

ded
 acc

eler
atin

g. A
nd O

fste
d w

ante
d us

 to b
e m

ore 
rigo

rous
 in o

ur 
revi

ews
 of w

ork 
with

 mis
sing

 chi
ldre

n, a
nd t

hos
e in

 priv
ate 

fost
erin

g. 
Our

 Bu
sine

ss P
lan 

for 
201

4-1
6 is

 set
 out

 in s
ecti

on 6
. It 

sho
ws 

how
 we

 are
 res

pon
ding

 to 
thes

e co
mm

ents
, an

d re
spo

ndin
g to

 the
 prio

ritie
s 

that
 the

 ag
enc

ies 
with

in H
arin

gey
 ha

ve 
join

tly a
gree

d u
pon

. Th
e y

ears
 ah

ead
 pro

mis
e a

s m
uch

 ch
allen

ge 
as 

the 
last

 on
es; 

the 
bud

get 
redu

ctio
ns t

hat 
alm

ost 
all s

tatu
tory

 age
ncie

s ha
ve f

ace
d so

 far
 are

 jus
t a 

prel
ude

 to 
the 

redu
ctio

ns t
hat 

mos
t ag

enc
ies 

face
 in t

he n
ext 

two
 

yea
rs. A

chie
ving

 mo
re w

ith l
ess

 is a
 con

stan
t the

me,
 and

 it is
 one

 wh
ich 

cha
llen

ges
 us 

all. 
Par

tner
ship

 wo
rkin

g ha
s ne

ver 
bee

n m
ore 

imp
orta

nt 
than

 now
. 

 

Sir P
aul 

Enn
als 

Inde
pen

den
t Ch

air, 
Har

inge
y LS

CB 
 

Page 39



4

 

CCoonn
tteenntt

ss  
Fore

wor
d fr

om 
the 

Inde
pen

den
t Ch

air ..
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
 2 

Con
tent

s....
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

.. 4 
Sec

tion
 one

 - In
trod

ucti
on .

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
. 5 

Sec
tion

 two
  S

umm
ary 

of k
ey a

reas
 of p

rogr
ess

 and
 ach

ieve
men

ts in
 201

3-1
4 ...

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

..... 7
 

Sec
tion

 thre
e  

Effe
ctiv

ene
ss o

f the
 LSC

B - 
Gov

erna
nce

 and
 acc

oun
tabi

lity 
arra

nge
men

ts ..
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
. 9 

Sec
tion

 fou
r  L

SCB
 sub

grou
p ac

tivit
ies 

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
.. 12

 
Sec

tion
 Fiv

e  
Lea

rnin
g an

d Im
prov

eme
nt F

ram
ewo

rk -
 Saf

egu
ardi

ng d
ata 

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

.. 17
 

Sec
tion

 Six
 - E

ffec
tive

nes
s of

 saf
egu

ardi
ng i

n H
arin

gey
 ......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

... 24
 

Sec
tion

 Sev
en -

 Prio
ritie

s fo
r 20

14-
 201

5 ...
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
.... 3

8 
Sec

tion
 Eig

ht -
 Bu

sine
ss P

lan 
201

4  
201

6 ...
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
. 39 

App
end

ices
 .....

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

......
......

 45 
App

rove
d on

: 4th  De
cem

ber 
201

4 
Har

inge
y Lo

cal 
Safe

gua
rdin

g C
hild

ren 
Boa

rd, R
iver

 Par
k H

ous
e, W

ood
 Gre

en, 
Har

inge
y, N

22 8
HQ 

ww
w.h

arin
gey

lscb
.org

  Te
l: 02

0 84
89 1

470
 

Page 40



  5
 

 

11..    
IInnttrr

oodduu
ccttiioo

nn    
 This

 is t
he F

ourt
h A

nnu
al re

port
 of H

arin
gey

 LS
CB.

 It h
as b

een
 com

pile
d by

 rep
rese

ntat
ives

 of t
he L

SCB
 and

 saf
egu

ardi
ng l

ead
 offi

cers
.  Its

 pur
pos

e is
 

to: 
 

prov
ide 

an o
verv

iew
 of L

SCB
 act

ivitie
s an

d ac
hiev

eme
nts 

duri
ng 2

013
/14 

 
prov

ide 
a su

mm
ary 

of th
e ef

fect
iven

ess
 of s

afeg
uard

ing 
acti

vity
 in H

arin
gey

,  
 

prov
ide 

the 
pub

lic, 
prac

titio
ners

 and
 ma

in s
take

hold
ers 

with
 an 

ove
rvie

w o
f ho

w w
ell c

hild
ren 

in H
arin

gey
 are

 pro
tect

ed, 
and

 
 

incl
ude

 pro
pos

als 
for a

ctio
n an

d le
sso

ns f
rom

 rev
iew

s un
dert

ake
n.   

Har
inge

y is
 an 

exc
epti

ona
lly d

iver
se a

nd f
ast-

cha
ngin

g b
orou

gh. 
We 

hav
e a 

pop
ulat

ion 
of 2

63,3
86 a

cco
rdin

g to
 the

 201
3 O

ffice
 for

 Na
tion

al S
tatis

tics
 

Mid
 Ye

ar E
stim

ates
. Al

mos
t tw

o-th
irds

 of 
our 

pop
ulat

ion,
 an

d o
ver 

70%
 of 

our 
you

ng 
peo

ple,
 are

 fro
m e

thni
c m

inor
ity b

ack
grou

nds
, an

d o
ver 

100
 

lang
uag

es a
re s

pok
en i

n th
e bo

roug
h. O

ur p
opu

latio
n is

 the
 fifth

 mo
st e

thni
call

y di
vers

e in
 the

 cou
ntry

.  
The

 bo
roug

h ra
nks

 as 
one

 of 
the 

mos
t de

priv
ed 

in th
e co

untr
y w

ith p
ock

ets 
of e

xtre
me 

dep
riva

tion
 in 

the 
eas

t. H
arin

gey
 is t

he 1
3th 

mos
t de

priv
ed 

boro
ugh

 in E
ngla

nd a
nd t

he 4
th m

ost 
dep

rive
d in

 Lon
don

.  
The

 po
pula

tion
 of 

Har
inge

y is
 gro

win
g. T

he p
revi

ous
 201

1 O
NS 

cen
sus

 po
pula

tion
 est

ima
te o

f 25
5,54

0 is
 pro

ject
ed 

to r
eac

h 2
86,7

00 b
y 20

21. 
This

 
wou

ld b
e a

 12
.2%

 inc
reas

e c
omp

ared
 to 

the 
actu

ally 
obs

erve
d in

crea
se o

f 17
.7%

 (ac
cord

ing 
to t

he 
com

pari
son

 be
twe

en 
200

1 a
nd 

201
1 C

ens
us 

figu
res)

. Th
e fa

stes
t gro

win
g po

pula
tion

 loc
ally 

is in
 age

 gro
ups

 30-
34 a

nd 4
5-49

. Th
e nu

mbe
r of 

peo
ple 

age
d 65

-69
 and

 ove
r 85

 dec
reas

ed s
ince

 200
1. 

RRooll
ee  aann

dd  ffuu
nnccttii

oonn  oo
ff  tthh

ee  LLSS
CCBB  

  
The

 LS
CB 

is th
e st

atut
ory 

bod
y fo

r ag
reei

ng 
how

 the
 rele

van
t or

gan
isat

ions
 wil

l co
-op

erat
e to

 saf
egu

ard 
and

 pro
mot

e th
e w

elfa
re o

f ch
ildre

n in
 the

 
Lon

don
 Bo

roug
h of

 Ha
ring

ey. 
The

 obj
ecti

ves
 of t

he B
oard

 are
: 

 
To c

o-o
rdin

ate 
wha

t is 
don

e by
 eac

h pe
rson

 or b
ody

 rep
rese

nted
 on 

the 
Boa

rd f
or t

he p
urpo

ses
 of s

afeg
uard

ing 
and

 pro
mot

ing 
the 

wel
fare

 of 
chil

dren
 in t

he a
rea 

 
To e

nsu
re th

e ef
fect

iven
ess

 of w
hat 

is d
one

 by 
eac

h su
ch p

erso
n or

 bod
y fo

r tha
t pu

rpos
e 

  

Page 41



6

 

SSccoo
ppee  

The
 sco

pe o
f the

 LSC
B ro

le fa
lls in

to th
ree 

cate
gori

es: 
1. 

To 
eng

age
 in 

acti
vitie

s th
at s

afeg
uard

 all 
chil

dren
, ai

m t
o id

enti
fy a

nd 
prev

ent 
abu

se, 
and

 en
sure

 tha
t ch

ildre
n g

row
 up

 in 
circ

ums
tanc

es 
con

sist
ent 

with
 saf

e ca
re. 

2. 
To l

ead
 and

 co-
ordi

nate
 pro

-act
ive 

wor
k th

at a
ims

 to t
arge

t pa
rticu

lar g
roup

s. 
3. 

To l
ead

 and
 co-

ordi
nate

 res
pon

sive
 wo

rk to
 pro

tect
 chi

ldre
n w

ho a
re s

uffe
ring

 or l
ikely

 to s
uffe

r sig
nific

ant 
harm

. 
FFuunn

ccttiioo
nnss  

Dev
elop

ing 
poli

cies
 and

 pro
ced

ures
 for 

safe
gua

rdin
g an

d pr
omo

ting
 the

 we
lfare

 of c
hild

ren,
 inc

ludi
ng p

olic
ies 

and
 pro

ced
ures

 in r
elat

ion 
to: 

 
Trai

ning
 

 
Safe

 wo
rkfo

rce:
 Saf

e re
crui

tme
nt, m

ana
gem

ent 
and

 sup
ervi

sion
 of p

eop
le w

ho w
ork 

with
 chi

ldre
n: 

 
Com

mun
icat

ion 
and

 rais
ing 

awa
rene

ss: 
Com

mun
icat

ing 
the 

nee
d to

 saf
egu

ard 
and

 pro
mot

e th
e w

elfa
re o

f ch
ildre

n, ra
ising

 the
ir aw

aren
ess

 of 
how

 
this

 can
 be 

bes
t do

ne, 
and

 enc
oura

ging
 ind

ivid
uals

 and
 par

tner
s to

 do 
so. 

This
 sho

uld 
invo

lve 
liste

ning
 to a

nd c
ons

ultin
g ch

ildre
n an

d yo
ung

 peo
ple 

and
 ens

urin
g th

eir v
iew

s ar
e ta

ken
 into

 acc
oun

t in 
plan

ning
 and

 del
iver

ing 
serv

ices
. 

 
Mon

itori
ng a

nd e
valu

atio
n: M

onit
orin

g an
d ev

alua
ting

 the
 effe

ctiv
ene

ss o
f wh

at is
 don

e by
 the

 Loc
al A

utho
rity 

and
 Bo

ard 
part

ners
 (ind

ivid
uall

y an
d 

coll
ecti

vely
) to 

safe
gua

rd a
nd p

rom
ote 

the 
wel

fare
 of c

hild
ren 

and
 adv

ise 
them

 on 
way

s to
 imp

rove
. 

 
Part

icipa
ting

 in 
plan

ning
 and

 com
miss

ionin
g: P

artic
ipat

ing 
safe

gua
rdin

g an
d pr

omo
ting

 the
 we

lfare
 of c

hild
ren 

into
 acc

oun
t:. 

 
Chil

d D
eath

 Rev
iew 

Fun
ctio

n Th
e LS

CB 
hold

s re
spo

nsib
ility 

for t
he c

omp
ulso

ry fu
ncti

ons
 reg

ardi
ng a

ll ch
ild d

eath
s. T

hes
e in

clud
e: 

o
 

Col
lect

ing 
and

 ana
lysin

g in
form

atio
n ab

out 
the 

dea
ths 

of a
ll ch

ildre
n no

rma
lly r

esid
ent 

in H
arin

gey
 wit

h a 
view

 to: 
o

 
Iden

tifyi
ng a

ny m
atte

rs o
f co

nce
rn in

clud
ing 

any
 cas

e th
at g

ives
 rise

 to t
he n

eed
 for 

a Se
riou

s Ca
se R

evie
w. 

o
 

Iden
tifyi

ng a
ny g

ene
ral p

ubli
c he

alth
 or s

afet
y co

nce
rns 

aris
ing 

from
 the

 dea
ths 

of c
hild

ren 
 

Page 42



7

 

22..    
SSuumm

mmaarr
yy  ooff

  kkeeyy
  aarree

aass  oo
ff  pprr

ooggrr
eessss

  aanndd
  aacchh

iieevvee
mmeenn

ttss  iinn
  220011

33--11
44  

. Pr
ogre

ss w
as a

chie
ved

 aga
inst

 eac
h of

 the
se p

riori
ties

, as
 set

 out
 bel

ow.
 

 
PPrriioo

rriittyy  
11::    EE

nnggaa
ggiinngg

  cchhii
llddrree

nn,,  yy
oouunn

gg  ppee
ooppllee

  aanndd
  tthhee

iirr  ffaa
mmiillii

eess  
An 

on-
line

 sur
vey

 wa
s un

dert
ake

n of
 the

 vie
ws 

of c
hild

ren 
and

 you
ng p

eop
le, w

ith l
imit

ed r
esp

ons
es. 

A se
t of 

stan
dard

s w
as p

rodu
ced

 on 
how

 
bes

t to
 sec

ure 
view

s, a
nd a

ll ag
enc

ies 
now

 rep
ort 

on t
heir

 eng
age

men
t wi

th c
hild

ren 
and

 you
ng p

eop
le in

 the
ir an

nua
l rep

orts
. An

 aud
it of

 the
 

curr
ent 

con
sult

atio
n m

etho
dolo

gies
 use

d by
 me

mbe
r ag

enc
ies 

thre
w u

p a 
very

 wid
e ra

nge
 of s

truc
ture

s an
d sy

stem
s; it

 wa
s ag

reed
 tha

t the
 key

 
issu

e fo
r the

 LSC
B is

 how
 to e

nsu
re th

at th
is w

ide 
lear

ning
 is a

ppr
opri

atel
y fe

d in
to o

ur w
ork.

 
 

PPrriioo
rriittyy  

22::    SS
ttrreenn

ggtthhee
nniinngg

  ggoovv
eerrnnaa

nnccee
  aanndd

  aacccc
oouunn

ttaabbii
lliittyy  

aarrrraa
nnggee

mmeenn
ttss  bb

eettww
eeeenn

  tthhee
  LLSSCC

BB  aann
dd  oott

hheerr  
ppaarrtt

nneerrss
hhiipp  

bbooaa
rrddss

  
LSC

G g
ove

rnan
ce h

as b
een

 str
eng

then
ed 

thro
ugh

 a r
evie

w o
f th

e m
emb

ersh
ip o

f th
e B

oard
 and

 sub
-gro

ups
, a 

revi
ew 

of t
he i

ndu
ctio

n an
d 

dev
elop

men
t pa

ck f
or m

emb
ers,

 suc
ces

sful
 rec

ruitm
ent 

of a
n ef

fect
ive 

and
 mo

tiva
ted 

lay 
mem

ber,
  s
u
b

g
r
o
u
p
s
, 
a
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d
u
c

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 

effe
ctiv

ene
ss. t 

p
a
c
k
 f
o
r

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l ir pa
rtne

rshi
ps h

as b
een

 stre
ngth

ene
d th

roug
h th

e in
volv

eme
nt o

f the
 Ch

air o
n th

e H
ealt

h an
d W

ell-
Bein

g bo
ard 

and
 the

 Ch
ild

and
 reg

ular
 me

etin
gs b

etw
een

 the
 Ch

air a
nd k

ey e
xter

nal 
offic

ers 
 

PPrriioo
rriittyy  

33::    MM
oonniitt

oorriinn
gg  tthh

ee  eeff
ffeecctt

iivveenn
eessss

  ooff  tt
hhee  MM

AASSHH
  aanndd

  EEaarr
llyy  HH

eellpp  
iinnttee

rrvveenn
ttiioonn

    
An 

exte
rnal

 rev
iew

 of 
MA

SH 
effe

ctiv
ene

ss p
rovi

ded
 enc

oura
ging

 fee
dba

ck. 
The

 Bo
ard 

has
 app

rove
d a 

thre
sho

ld d
ocu

men
t, an

d co
nfirm

ed t
he 

effe
ctiv

e us
e of

 the
 Co

mm
on A

sse
ssm

ent 
Fram

ewo
rk to

 sup
port

 dis
able

d ch
ildre

n.  
 

PPrriioo
rriittyy  

44::    EE
nnssuu

rriinngg
  tthhee

  lliinnkk
  bbeett

wweeee
nn  sscc

hhoooo
llss  aa

nndd  ss
aaffeegg

uuaarrdd
iinngg  

Boa
rd m

emb
ersh

ip h
as b

een
 stre

ngth
ene

d th
roug

h th
e A

D fo
r Sc

hoo
ls, t

hrou
gh t

he e
ffec

tive
 eng

age
men

t of
 two

 key
 hea

d te
ach

ers,
 and

 wo
rk 

with
 sch

ools
 has

 bee
n in

crea
sed

. 
 

PPrriioo
rriittyy  

55::    TT
hhee  ii

ddeenn
ttiiffiicc

aattiioo
nn  aann

dd  rree
ssppoo

nnssee
  ttoo  

cchhiill
ddrreenn

  aanndd
  yyoouu

nngg  pp
eeoopp

llee  aa
tt  rriiss

kk  ooff
  cchhii

lldd  ss
eexxuu

aall    ee
xxpplloo

iittaattii
oonn  ii

nncclluu
ddiinngg

  wwhh
eerree  

tthheerr
ee  iiss

  
ggaann

gg  aann
dd  ggrr

oouupp
  vviioo

lleenncc
ee  

The
 Bo

ard 
wor

ked
 wit

h th
e G

ang
 Ac

tion
 Gro

up t
o ag

ree 
thei

r str
ateg

y. T
he C

SE 
task

 gro
up e

volv
ed i

nto 
wor

ked
 inte

nsiv
ely 

on d
eve

lopi
ng g

uida
nce

 and
 a s

trate
gy, 

whi
ch a

ppr
oac

hed
 com

plet
ion 

at th
e ye

ar e
nd. 

 
PPrriioo

rriittyy  
66::    II

ddeenn
ttiiffiicc

aattiioo
nn  ooff

  mmiiss
ssiinngg

,,  uunn
kknnoo

wwnn  
oorr  oo

pptteedd
  oouutt

  yyoouu
nngg  pp

eeoopp
llee  

 
  

Page 43



8

 

KKeeyy
  aarree

aass  oo
ff  pprr

ooggrr
eessss

  aanndd
  aacchh

iieevvee
mmeenn

ttss  iinn
  220011

33--11
44  

 
Dev

elop
ed a

 Lea
rnin

g an
d im

prov
eme

nt fr
ame

wor
k 

 
Con

duc
ted 

mul
ti ag

enc
y au

dits
 

o
 

Poli
cy a

nd p
roce

dure
s au

dit 
o

 
Sch

ools
 s17

5/15
7 

o
 

Thre
sho

ld re
view

 
 

SCR
 pub

lishe
d O

ctob
er 2

013
 

 
Con

tinu
ed t

o de
liver

 and
 dev

elop
 hig

h qu
ality

 and
 up 

to d
ate 

mul
ti-ag

enc
y tra

inin
g 

 
Held

 a s
afeg

uard
ing 

con
fere

nce
  C

hild
 Sex

ual 
Exp

loita
tion

 Sep
tem

ber 
201

3 
 

Rev
iew

ed 5
 yea

rs o
f ch

ild d
eath

 in H
arin

gey
 

  Sec
tion

 4 in
clud

es m
ore 

deta
il on

 the
 wo

rk o
f the

 LSC
B an

d its
 par

tner
s. 

 

Page 44



9

 

33..    EE
ffffeecc

ttiivvee
nneess

ss  ooff
  tthhee

  LLSS
CCBB  

--  GG
oovvee

rrnnaa
nnccee

  aanndd
  aacccc

oouunn
ttaabb

iilliittyy
  aarrrr

aanngg
eemmee

nnttss  
CChhaa

iirriinngg
  aanndd

  mmee
mmbbee

rrsshhii
pp  aarr

rraanngg
eemmee

nntt  
The

 LS
CB 

has
 an

 ind
epe

nde
nt c

hair
 an

d e
ach

 sub
grou

p is
 ch

aire
d b

y a 
sen

ior 
mem

ber 
from

 ac
ross

 the
 pa

rtne
r ag

enc
ies.

 Th
e b

oard
 is 

atte
nde

d by
 rep

rese
ntat

ives
 from

 the
 par

tner
 age

ncie
s w

ith a
 hig

h le
vel 

of e
nga

gem
ent 

- Se
e ap

pen
dice

s Tw
o & 

Thre
e 

SSttrruu
ccttuurr

ee  cchh
aarrtt  

  
  

RReell
aattiioo

nnsshh
iipp  bb

eettww
eeeenn

  tthhee
  LLSS

CCBB  
aanndd

  ootthh
eerr  ss

ttrraatt
eeggiicc

  bboo
aarrdd

ss  
- 

From
 Ap

ril 2
013

 the
 arra

nge
men

ts fo
r pla

nnin
g an

d pr
ovid

ing 
hea

lth a
nd s

ocia
l ca

re c
han

ged
.  Tw

o ne
w b

odie
s  - 

the 
Har

inge
y Cl

inic
al 

Com
mis

sion
ing 

Gro
up (

CCG
) an

d th
e H

ealt
h an

d W
ellb

eing
 Bo

ard 
(HW

B) -
 we

re e
stab

lishe
d.  d

. 
 T

w
o

 n
e
w

 b
o
d
ie
s
  

th
e
 H

a
r
in -est

abli
she

d.  

Loc
al S

afeg
uard

ing 
Chi

ldre
n Bo

ard 
 

Ser
ious

 Cas
e 

Rev
iew

 Sub
 Gro

up 
 

 

Bes
t Pr

acti
ce S

ub 
Gro

up  
Trai

ning
, Le

arni
ng 

and
 Dev

elop
men

t 
Sub

 Gro
up  

Chi
ld D

eath
 

Ove
rvie

w P
ane

l  
Qua

lity A
ssu

ranc
e 

Sub
 Gro

up  
Disa

bled
 Ch

ildre
n 

Poli
cy a

nd P
ract

ice 
Rev

iew
 Sub

 Gro
up  

Vuln
erab

le C
hild

ren 
Sub

 Gro
up 

Exe
cuti

ve S
ub 

grou
p  

Page 45



1
0

 

 

- 
The

 CC
G is

 a n
ew 

NHS
 org

anis
atio

n th
at is

 res
pon

sibl
e fo

r pl
ann

ing 
and

 co
mm

issio
ning

 so
me 

of t
he 

hos
pita

l, m
enta

l he
alth

 an
d 

com
mun

ity c
are 

serv
ices

 for 
Har

inge
y re

side
nts.

   
- 

The
 HW

B in
clud

es o
ffice

rs f
rom

 Ha
ring

ey c
oun

cil a
nd 

the 
CCG

 wh
o w

ork 
toge

t
nee

ds, 
agre

e pr
iorit

ies 
and

 ens
ure 

that
 ser

vice
s ar

e of
fere

d in
 a m

ore 
join

ed u
p w

ay.  
- 

The
 Ch

air 
of t

he 
LSC

B a
tten

ds 
the 

HW
B a

nd 
He 

mee
ts r

egu
larly

 wit
h th

e C
hief

 Ex
ecu

tive
 an

d D
epu

ty C
hief

 
H
e
 m

e
e

ts
 r

e
g
u
la

r
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 D
e
p
u

ty
H

of t
he 

 Sev
eral

 boa
rd m

emb
ers 

sit o
n th

e C
omm

unit
y Sa

fety
 

Par
tner

ship
.   

AAcccc
oouunn

ttaabb
iilliittyy

  
The

 LS
CB 

cha
ir is

 acc
oun

tabl
e to

 the
 Ch

ief E
xec

utiv
e of

 the
 bo

roug
h fo

r his
 role

 in c
hair

ing 
the 

LSC
B a

nd o
vers

eein
g its

 wo
rk p

rogr
amm

e. 
How

eve
r, he

 is a
cco

unta
ble 

only
 to t

he B
oard

 for 
the 

dec
isio

ns h
e ta

kes
 in t

hat 
role

. 
FFiinnaa

nncciiaa
ll  aarrrr

aanngg
eemmee

nnttss  
  

The
 wo

rk o
f the

 Bo
ard 

is fi
nan

ced
 by 

con
tribu

tion
s fro

m p
artn

er a
gen

cies
, of 

whi
ch c

urre
ntly

 ove
r 80

% c
ome

s fro
m th

e co
unc

il. In
 add

ition
 to 

T
h
e
 w

o
r
k
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
r
d

 i
s
 f
in
a
n
c
e
d

 b
y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
s
 f
r
o
m

 p
a
r
tn

e
r
 a

g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 c

u
r
r
e
n

tl
y
 o

v
e
r
 8

0
%

 c
o
m

e
s
 f
r
o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n  wo

rk p
rogr

amm
e, 

and
 to s

upp
ort t

rain
ing 

deli
very

. Fu
ll bu

dge
t inf

orm
atio

n is
 con

tain
ed w

ithin
 AApp

ppeenn
ddiixx  

OOnnee
.    

HHaarr
iinnggee

yy  LLSS
CCBB  

ccoomm
mmuunn

iiccaatt
iioonn  

A k
ey m

etho
d o

f co
mm

unic
atio

n is
 the

 LS
CB 

web
site

. Th
e an

alys
is o

f us
age

 sho
ws 

an i
ncre

ase
 of 

122
% o

ver 
the 

last
 4 y

ears
, to 

a le
vel 

for 
201

3-1
4 of

 ove
r 85

,000
 pag

e vi
ews

. AApp
ppeenn

ddiixx  
FFoouu

rr  giv
es f

urth
er d

etai
ls. 

In M
ay 2

014
, OF

STE
D c

omm
ente

d 
In

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
, 
O
F
S
T
E
D

 c
o
m

m
e
n

te
d

 
.  

Har
inge

y LS
CB 

con
tinu

es t
o c

omm
unic

ate 
with

 loc
al p

eop
le v

ia th
e te

leph
one

, in 
ema

ils a
nd 

by s
ign 

pos
ting

 to 
serv

ices
  d

irec
ting

 loc
al 

peo
ple 

who
 are

 loo
king

 for 
info

rma
tion

 and
 adv

ice 
abo

ut s
ervi

ces
 or w

ho w
ant 

to m
ake

 com
plai

nts.
 

Page 46



1
1

 

 

 

VVooiicc
ee  ooff

  aa  LL
SSCCBB

  ppaarr
ttnneerr

  
"Sa

fegu
ardi

ng c
hild

ren 
is of

 par
amo

unt 
imp

orta
nce

 to T
otte

nha
m H

otsp
ur a

nd l
iaiso

n w
ith H

arin
gey

 LSC
B is

 par
t of 

our 
con

tinu
ed 

driv
e fo

r be
tter 

awa
rene

ss a
nd s

tand
ards

 in t
his f

ield.
" An

gela
 Sey

mou
r, H

ead
 of S

afeg
uard

ing,
 Tot

tenh
am 

Hot
spu

r, 20
14 

VVooiicc
ee  ooff

  aa  LL
SSCCBB

  ppaarr
ttnneerr

 
. Th

is p
osit

ion 
also

 
rela

tes 
to m

y st
udie

s an
d w

ork 
exp

erie
nce

s wi
thin

 the
 bor

oug
h.   

My 
exp

erie
nce

 with
 LSC

B so
 far 

is ve
ry e

xcit
ing 

and
 also

 ver
y de

man
ding

. My
 per

son
al ai

m fo
r LS

CB 
is to

 und
erst

and
 the

 nee
ds o

f the
 chi

ldre
n an

d 
you

ng p
eop

le w
ithin

 the
 bor

oug
h an

d to
 rem

ain 
focu

sed
 on 

cha
lleng

ing 
the 

ove
rall 

qua
lity o

f sa
fegu

ardi
ng w

ork 
by l

oca
l ag

enc
ies s

o th
at p

ract
ice 

con
tinu

es t
o im

prov
e.  

I fou
nd t

he m
eeti

ngs
 ext

rem
ely u

sefu
l an

d ef
fect

ive. 
Only

 by 
bein

g th
ere 

even
 if I 

only
 obs

ervi
ng a

nd l
isten

ing 
mak

es m
e un

ders
tand

 how
 the

 
orga

nisa
tion

 is w
orki

ng a
nd i

ts p
riori

ties.
 Sin

ce b
eing

 par
t of 

LSC
B, m

y pe
rcep

tion
 abo

ut H
arin

gey
 soc

ial a
gen

cies
 has

 rad
icall

y ch
ang

ed. 
Now

 I ho
nes

tly c
an a

rgue
 tha

t me
dia 

and
 also

 loc
al p

eop
le ar

e m
isjud

ging
 soc

ial s
ervi

ces 
and

 mo
st p

roba
bly 

I wo
uld 

hav
e fa

llen 
in th

e sa
me 

cate
gory

 
age

ncie
s is 

wor
king

 effi
cien

t tog
ethe

r to 
prot

ect 
child

ren 
and

 you
ng p

eop
le. 

My 
ove

rall 
exp

erie
nce

 with
 LSC

B, is
 a lif

e ch
ang

ing 
for m

e no
t on

ly b
eca

use
 I ha

ve t
he c

han
ce t

o lis
ten/

mee
t the

 hig
hes

t lea
ders

 and
 ma

nag
ers 

from
 

loca
l ag

enc
ies b

ut a
lso t

o le
arn 

 
AAnnaa

mmaarr
iiaa,,  LL

aayy  MM
eemmbb

eerr  22
001144

  

Page 47



1
2

 

 

44..  LL
SSCCBB

  ssuubb
ggrroo

uupp  aa
ccttiivv

iittiieess
   

44..11  
CChhii

lldd  DD
eeaatthh

  OOvv
eerrvvii

eeww  
PPaann

eell  ((CC
DDOO

PP))  CC
hhaaiirr

  --  AA
ssssiiss

ttaanntt
  DDiirr

eeccttoo
rr,,  PP

uubbllii
cc  HH

eeaalltt
hh  

RReemm
iitt:: T

o re
view

 the
 circ

ums
tanc

es s
urro

und
ing 

all c
hild

 dea
ths 

and
 ma

ke p
reve

ntat
ive 

reco
mm

end
atio

ns w
here

 pos
sibl

e; to
 ens

ure 
a ra

pid 
resp

ons
e to

 any
 dea

ths 
that

 are
 une

xpe
cted

. Th
is is

 a s
tatu

tory
 obl

igat
ion 

and
 is i

nten
ded

 to 
asc

erta
in a

ny l
ess

ons
 tha

t ma
y be

 lea
rnt 

for 
the 

futu
re. 

Dur
ing 

the 
yea

r 20
13/1

4, w
e p

ubli
she

d a
 rep

ort 
cov

erin
g th

e e
xpe

rien
ce 

of t
he 

first
 five

 yea
rs o

f Ha
ring

ey C
DOP

 fro
m 2

008
 to 

201
3. I

t 
reve

aled
 tha

t m
ost 

dea
ths 

in c
hild

ren 
are 

the 
resu

lt o
f pe

rina
tal 

and
 co

nge
nita

l, in
clud

ing 
inhe

rited
, co

ndit
ions

. Th
e H

arin
gey

 CD
OP 

has
 

iden
tifie

d fe
w m

odif
iabl

e fa
ctor

s ex
cep

t in 
cas

es o
f tra

uma
, Su

dde
n In

fant
 De

ath 
Syn

drom
e an

d in
tra-

part
um 

dea
ths.

 The
se m

odif
iabl

e fa
ctor

s 
hav

e b
een

 hig
hlig

hted
 to 

rele
van

t he
alth

care
 pro

fess
iona

ls. E
ven

 tho
ugh

 the
 rep

ort 
spa

ns f
ive 

yea
rs, 

the 
num

bers
 are

 sm
all, 

whi
ch m

ake
s 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
o

 r
e
le

v
a
n

t 
h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
r
e
 p

r
o

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls
. 
E
v
e
n

 t
h
o
u
g
h

 t
h
e

r
e
p
o
r
t 
s
p
a
n
s
 f
iv
e
 y

e
a
r
s
, 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r
s
 a

r
e
 s

m
a
ll

 mu
ch m

ore 
com

mon
 in 

som
e gr

oup
s of

 soc
iety

, th
ose

 wh
o ar

e so
cial

ly d
isad

van
tage

d a
nd 

thos
e fr

om 
Blac

k an
d E

thni
c m

inor
ity g

roup
s. A

s ha
s be

en 
c
o
m

m
o
n

 i
n

 s
o
m

e
 g

r
o
u
p
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ie

ty
, 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o

 a
r
e
 s

o
c
ia

lly
a
lly

 d
is
a
d
v
a
n

ta
g
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
o
s
e
 f

r
o
m

 B
a
lly

 
ie: d

eath
 in i

nfan
ts, c

hild
ren 

and
 you

ng p
eop

le in
 

the 
UK.

 Ma
y 20

14. 
Wol

fe I,
 Ma

cFa
rlan

e A
, Do

nkin
 A, 

Mar
mot

 M 
on b

eha
lf of

 the
 Ro

yal 
Col

lege
 of 

Pae
diat

rics
 and

 Ch
ild H

ealt
h, th

e N
atio

nal 
th

e
 U

K
. 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
. 
W

o
l

a
r
m

o
t 
M

 o
n

 b
e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 R

o
y
a
l 
C
o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic
s
 a

n
d

 C
h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
, 

t e w
ill h

ave
 a 

limit
ed e

ffec
t.  

Exp
erie

nce
 in 2

013
/14 

follo
wed

 the
 sam

e pa
ttern

. Du
ring

 this
 per

iod,
 46 

cas
es w

ere 
clos

ed, 
mos

tly f
rom

 pre
viou

s ye
ars,

 and
 the

re w
ere 

21 
dea

ths.
 Un

usu
ally,

 the
re w

ere 
two

 you
ng 

peo
ple 

who
 co

mm
itted

 sui
cide

 an
d o

ne 
died

 in 
a fir

e. O
ne 

of t
he 

cas
es o

f su
icid

e h
ad 

a lo
ng 

psy
chia

tric 
hist

ory 
and

 wa
s re

ferre
d to

 the
 SC

R P
ane

l an
d a 

SCR
 wa

s in
stitu

ted.
 The

 oth
er c

ase
 is s

till b
eing

 inv
esti

gate
d. A

 pre
sch

ool 
chil

d 
died

 in 
a h

ous
e fir

e w
hile

 in 
the 

care
 of 

her 
disa

bled
 gra

ndm
othe

r. T
he f

ire w
as c

aus
ed 

by 
clot

hing
 cat

chin
g fir

e fr
om 

a st
and

-alo
ne 

gas
 

hea
ter. 

Esc
ape

 fro
m t

he h
ome

 wa
s ha

mpe
red 

by t
he f

act 
that

 the
 do

or, 
thro

ugh
 wh

ich 
the 

occ
upa

nts 
wou

ld e
sca

pe, 
ope

ned
 inw

ards
 and

 
wou

ld b
e di

fficu
lt to

 ope
n as

 the
 gra

ndm
othe

r wa
s in

 a w
hee

lcha
ir. W

ith t
he r

ise 
in n

umb
ers 

of p
eop

le h
avin

g di
fficu

lty i
n pa

ying
 fue

l bil
ls, t

he 
risk

 of t
his 

sort
 of f

ire w
ill b

e gr
eate

r. Th
ese

 lea
rnin

g po
ints

 are
 bei

ng s
hare

d w
ith t

he r
elev

ant 
age

ncie
s. 

44..22  
QQuuaa

lliittyy  
AAssss

uurraann
ccee  ((

QQAA))
  SSuu

bb  GG
rroouu

pp      
CChhaa

iirr  --  
HHeeaa

dd  oo
ff  SSaa

ffeegguu
aarrdd

iinngg,,
  qquu

aalliittyy
  aassss

uurraann
ccee  aa

nndd  
ddeevv

eelloopp
mmeenn

tt,,  CC
YYPPSS

  
RReemm

iitt:: T
o m

onit
or t

he 
effe

ctiv
ene

ss o
f m

ulti-
age

ncy
 ch

ild 
pro

tect
ion 

wor
k th

roug
h d

ata 
ana

lysis
 an

d a
udit

 pro
ces

ses
. To

 mo
nito

r an
d 

scru
tinis

e th
e ef

fect
iven

ess
 of l

oca
l arr

ang
eme

nts 
to s

afeg
uard

 chi
ldre

n an
d th

roug
h th

is, t
o en

sure
 a d

emo
nstr

able
 imp

act 
on s

ervi
ces

.   
The

 QA
 sub

 gro
up 

ado
pted

 a n
ew 

perf
orm

anc
e fr

ame
wor

k (E
aste

rn r
egio

n m
ode

l), b
uilt 

arou
nd t

he L
SCB

s pr
iorit

ies 
and

 ena
bles

 dat
a an

d 
narr

ativ
e to

 ev
iden

ce 
safe

gua
rdin

g in
 Ha

ring
ey, 

taki
ng 

indi
cato

rs f
rom

 ac
ross

 the
 pa

rtne
rshi

p. H
owe

ver 
furth

er w
ork 

has
 no

w b
een

 
com

mis
sion

ed w
ith a

 vie
w to

 sim
plify

ing 
the 

data
 set

s. 

Page 48



1
3

 

 

In S
epte

mbe
r 20

13, 
the 

Mul
ti-ag

enc
y C

hild
 Se

xua
l Ex

ploi
tatio

n (C
SE)

 pro
toco

l wa
s la

unc
hed

 at 
the 

LSC
B a

nnu
al s

afeg
uard

ing 
con

fere
nce

. 
Cop

ies 
wer

e ci
rcul

ated
 to a

gen
cies

 for 
diss

emi
nati

on a
nd a

lso 
uplo

ade
d on

 to t
he L

SCB
 we

bsit
e. 

A re
view

 of C
SE 

prev
alen

ce w
as u

nde
rtak

en b
y th

e C
SE 

task
 gro

up. 
It w

as n
oted

 tha
t the

re h
ad b

een
 an 

incr
eas

e in
 refe

rrals
 on 

CSE
 and

 this
 

data
 is c

aptu
red 

in th
e LS

CB 
perf

orm
anc

e fra
mew

ork.
 The

 CS
E ta

sk g
roup

 cea
sed

 and
 has

 now
 evo

lved
 into

 a V
ulne

rabl
e C

hild
ren 

and
 you

ng 
peo

ple 
sub

 gro
up. 

 
A nu

mbe
r of 

indi
cato

rs w
ere 

iden
tifie

d ac
ross

 the
 par

tner
ship

 and
 hav

e be
en e

mbe
dde

d in
to th

e pe
rfor

man
ce f

ram
ewo

rk  
44..33  

SSeerr
iioouuss

  CCaa
ssee  RR

eevviiee
ww  SS

uubb  GG
rroouu

pp..    
CChhaa

iirr  --  
LLSSCC

BB  iinn
ddeepp

eenndd
eenntt  

cchhaa
iirr  

RReemm
iitt:: T

o c
ons

ider
 wh

en 
to u

nde
rtak

e a
 rev

iew
 on

 the
 de

ath 
of a

 ch
ild w

here
 ab

use
 or 

neg
lect

 are
 fac

tors
, or

 wh
ere 

ther
e a

re s
erio

us 
con

cern
s re

gard
ing 

inte
r-ag

enc
y w

orki
ng 

whe
re a

 ch
ild 

suff
ers 

pote
ntia

lly 
life 

thre
aten

ing 
con

cern
s, s

erio
us 

imp
airm

ent 
of h

ealt
h o

r 
dev

elop
men

t, an
d to

 mo
nito

r im
plem

enta
tion

 of a
ctio

n pl
ans

. 
Reg

ulat
ion 

5 of
 the

 Loc
al S

afeg
uard

ing 
Chil

dren
 Bo

ard 
(LSC

B) r
egu

latio
ns 2

006
 req

uire
s LS

CBs
 to u

nde
rtak

e re
view

s of
 ser

ious
 cas

es 
All n

ew 
SCR

s co
mm

enc
ed i

n 20
13/1

4 ha
ve b

een
 act

ione
d in

 line
 wit

h th
e W

orki
ng T

oge
ther

 gui
dan

ce. 
 SC

R p
roce

sse
s ha

ve b
een

 rev
ised

 to 
ena

ble 
flex

ibilit
y as

 rec
omm

end
ed i

n W
T 20

13. 
 

Chil
d T 

Chil
d T

 Se
riou

s C
ase

 Re
view

 wa
s pu

blis
hed

 on 
10th

 Oc
tobe

r 20
13. 

A L
SCB

 res
pon

se w
as a

lso 
pub

lishe
d a

nd 
is b

eing
 mo

nito
red 

by t
he 

SCR
 sub

grou
p. s

 C
a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n
 1

0
th

 O
c

to
b
e
r
 2

0
1
3
. 
A

 L
S
C
B

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n
d

 
b
e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
r
e
d

b
y
 t
h
e
 

care
. Le

arni
ng f

rom
 the

 rev
iew

 has
 led

 to 
imp

rove
men

ts in
 stra

tegy
 me

etin
gs, 

stre
ngth

enin
g of

 the
 Ear

ly H
elp 

offe
r, e

xpe
ctat

ion 
of a

ll N
ew 

Birt
h vi

sits
 bei

ng u
nde

rtak
en w

ithin
 nat

iona
l tim

esc
ales

, an
d im

pro
ved

 info
rma

tion
 sha

ring
 bet

wee
n ag

enc
ies.

 A p
athw

ay t
o g

uide
 GP

's in
 

thei
r as

ses
sme

nt a
nd r

efer
ral o

f mi
nor 

inju
ries

 wa
s de

velo
ped

. Ha
ring

ey l
eve

l 3 t
rain

ing 
201

1-1
2 fo

cus
ed o

n no
n-ac

cide
ntal

 inju
ry, a

nd c
hild

 
prot

ecti
on g

uida
nce

 for 
GP 

train
ers 

was
 dev

elop
ed: 

this
 wa

s ad
opte

d by
 the

 Lon
don

 De
ane

ry a
nd u

sed
 at t

rain
er w

orks
hop

s 
 

Chil
d C

H 
Chil

d C
H S

erio
us c

ase
 rep

ort 
has

 now
 bee

n co
mpl

eted
, Ap

ril 2
014

.  A
 LS

CB 
resp

ons
e is

 bei
ng p

ut t
oge

ther
 and

 pub
lica

tion
 wil

l tak
e pl

ace
 

whe
n cu

rren
t co

urt a
ctio

n is
 com

plet
ed. 

 

Page 49



1
4

 

 

 
Chil

d D 
Chil

d D
 Ser

ious
 Ca

se r
epo

rt h
as n

ow 
bee

n co
mpl

eted
, Ap

ril 2
014

. A 
sign

 off 
mee

ting
 is d

ue t
o ta

ke p
lace

 in M
ay 2

014
 and

 a L
SCB

 res
pon

se 
will 

be d
eve

lope
d an

d pu
blic

atio
n sh

ould
 tak

e pl
ace

 afte
r co

urt p
roce

edin
gs a

re c
onc

lude
d la

te 2
014

. 
44..44  

BBeess
tt  PPrr

aaccttii
ccee  SS

uubb  
GGrroo

uupp  
((BBPP

))..  CC
hhaaiirr

  --  DD
eessiigg

nnaattee
dd  NN

uurrssee
  ffoorr

  CChh
iilldd  PP

rroottee
ccttiioo

nn,,  HH
aarriinn

ggeeyy
  CCCC

GG  
The

 rem
it o

f th
e B

est 
Pra

ctic
e S

ub
grou

p is
 to 

imp
rove

 saf
egu

ardi
ng 

prac
tice

 by
 tra

nsla
ting

 na
tion

al a
nd 

loca
l po

licy,
 pro

ced
ures

 an
d 

guid
anc

e in
to e

ffec
tive

 pra
ctic

e ar
rang

eme
nts.

 The
 gro

up c
an p

ropo
se o

pera
tion

al c
han

ges
 to i

mpr
ove

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy t

rain
ing.

 
It w

as t
he m

ulti-
age

ncy
 foru

m fo
r ag

reei
ng p

roce
ss a

nd p
ract

ice 
cha

nge
s th

at re
late

 to t
he L

SCB
 cor

e bu
sine

ss. 
The

 201
3/14

 wo
rk p

lan 
had

 4 p
riori

ties
: 

a) 
Rev

iew 
of c

ases
 wh

ich 
did 

not 
mee

t the
 Ser

ious
 Cas

e Re
view

 thre
sho

ld 
 one

 cas
e w

as r
evie

wed
, a s

eco
nd w

as d
elay

ed d
ue t

o 
sing

le a
gen

cy p
roce

sse
s ta

king
 prio

rity 
b) 

Eng
agin

g ch
ildre

n, y
oun

g p
eop

le a
nd t

heir
 fam

ilies
  a

 sco
ping

 exe
rcis

e w
as u

nde
rtak

en 
to r

evie
w n

atio
nal 

bes
t pr

acti
ce a

nd 
rese

arch
. Lo

cali
sed

 pra
ctic

e gu
idan

ce w
ill b

e de
velo

ped
 in 2

014
/15 

c) 
Rev

iew 
of g

uida
nce

 on 
miss

ing 
child

ren 
 this

 wo
rk w

as n
ot c

omp
lete

d a
s th

e gr
oup

 wa
s aw

aitin
g th

e p
ubli

cati
on 

of t
he P

an 
Lon

don
 Pro

ced
ures

 to e
nsu

re a
lign

men
t.  

d) 
Mon

itori
ng o

f the
 effe

ctive
nes

s of
 the

 Mu
lti-A

gen
cy S

afeg
uard

ing 
Hub

 (MA
SH)

 and
 Ear

ly H
elp 

Inte
rven

tion
  T

his 
was

 ach
ieve

d: 
see

 bel
ow 

A re
port

 of t
he w

ork 
of th

e M
ultia

gen
cy S

afeg
uard

ing 
Hub

  (M
ASH

) wa
s re

ceiv
ed. 

In li
ght 

of th
e fin

ding
 tha

t lar
ge n

umb
ers 

of c
ase

s in
volv

ed 
risk

 from
 dom

esti
c ab

use
, co

nsid
erat

ion 
was

 giv
en b

y W
hitti

ngto
n H

ealt
h to

 a D
ome

stic
 Vio

lenc
e le

ad t
o be

 a s
ourc

e of
 exp

ertis
e.  

Foll
owi

ng d
iscu

ssio
ns r

ega
rdin

g do
mes

tic a
nd g

end
er b

ase
d vi

olen
ce a

cros
s th

e bo
roug

h an
d th

e st
rate

gic 
driv

e to
 imp

rove
 the

 res
pon

se t
o 

it, th
e m

enta
l he

alth
 Tru

st a
dap

ted 
thei

r ele
ctro

nic 
pati

ent 
reco

rd t
o in

clud
e a 

field
 for 

Dom
esti

c Ab
use

 as 
part

 of t
heir

 risk
 ass

ess
men

t. 
A c

ase
 rev

iew
 wa

s un
dert

ake
n w

hich
 ide

ntifi
ed c

urre
nt e

ffec
tive

 pra
ctic

e an
d m

ade
 rec

omm
end

atio
ns f

or im
pro

vem
ent 

in s
ome

 are
as. 

One
 

of t
he 

area
s id

enti
fied

 as 
a co

nce
rn w

as t
he 

cap
acit

y of
 the

 he
alth

 vis
iting

 ser
vice

, pa
rticu

larly
 in 

the 
eas

t of
 the

 Bo
roug

h, t
o w

ork 
in a

 
pro

acti
ve, 

prev
enta

tive
 wa

y. T
his 

was
 du

e to
 the

 hig
h le

vel 
of n

eed
 in t

he a
rea 

and
 the

 diff
icul

ty in
 rec

ruiti
ng t

o va
can

t po
sts.

 It s
hou

ld b
e 

note
d th

e ch
allen

ge i
n H

V re
crui

tme
nt w

as a
 nat

iona
l iss

ue n
ot o

nly 
spe

cific
 to 

Har
inge

y. T
he c

hall
eng

e w
as f

urth
er d

eba
ted 

at t
he m

ain 
boa

rd w
ith W

hitti
ngto

n H
ealt

h le
adin

g on
 a re

spo
nse

.  
The

 ac
tion

 pla
n d

eve
lope

d in
 res

pon
se 

to t
he 

reco
mm

end
atio

ns 
from

 the
 ca

se 
revi

ew 
will 

be 
take

n fo
rwa

rd t
hrou

gh 
201

4/15
 an

d 
imp

lem
enta

tion
 mo

nito
red 

via 
the 

LSC
B. 

Page 50



1
5

 

 

The
 LSC

B p
rofe

ssio
nal 

disa
gree

men
t pr

otoc
ol w

as r
evie

wed
 and

 refr
esh

ed i
n re

spo
nse

 to t
he C

hild
 T s

erio
us c

ase
 rev

iew
. Th

e pr
otoc

ol w
as 

re-la
unc

hed
 and

 all 
age

ncie
s w

ere 
enc

oura
ged

 to u
se i

t as
 req

uire
d. 

One
 of 

the 
cha

llen
ges

 for
 the

 sub
 gro

up w
as t

he l
imit

ed c
apa

city
 of 

mem
bers

 to 
carr

y ou
t th

e w
ork 

requ
ired

 bet
wee

n th
e m

eeti
ngs

, wh
ich 

som
etim

es d
elay

ed p
rogr

ess
 on 

spe
cific

 item
s. 

The
 oth

er m
ain 

cha
llen

ge 
was

 de
velo

ping
 a p

ropo
rtion

ate 
cas

e re
view

 mo
del 

whi
ch 

allo
wed

 for
 ma

xim
um 

lear
ning

 rel
eva

nt t
o c

urre
nt 

T
h
e
 o

th
e
r
 m

a
in

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e prin

cipl
es f

or le
arnir

ti
o
n
a

te
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

o
d
e
l 

w
h
ic

h
 a

ll oge
ther

 201
3. It

 wa
s ac

kno
wle

dge
d th

e gr
oup

 wa
s 

likel
y to

 nee
d to

 lim
it th

e nu
mbe

r of 
cas

es r
evie

wed
. 

The
re w

ere 
also

 cha
llen

ges
 in t

erm
s of

 me
mbe

rshi
p an

d re
gula

r att
end

anc
e as

 all 
age

ncie
s w

ent 
thro

ugh
 sig

nific
ant 

inte
rnal

 re-
orga

nisa
tion

.  
The

 sub
 gro

up p
rovi

des
 opp

ortu
nitie

s fo
r ag

enc
ies 

to b
e he

ld to
 acc

oun
t fo

r pr
acti

ce w
hich

 req
uire

s im
pro

vem
ent 

and
 for

 age
ncie

s to
 sha

re 
bes

t pr
acti

ce.  
44..55  

rroouu
pp..  CC

hhaaiirr
    

  
RReemm

iitt:: T
his 

wor
king

 gro
up w

as e
stab

lishe
d in

 res
pon

se t
o th

e D
CSF

 Pra
ctic

e G
uida

nce
 for

 Dis
able

d C
hild

ren,
 wh

ich 
reco

mm
end

ed t
hat 

the 
LSC

B c
ons

ider
 the

 sp
ecif

ic s
afeg

uard
ing 

nee
ds 

of D
isab

led 
chil

dren
 in 

a M
ulti-

age
ncy

 gro
up. 

In N
ove

mbe
r 20

12 
the 

wor
king

 gro
up 

was
 

acc
epte

d as
 a s

ub g
roup

. 
The

 gro
up 

con
side

rs th
e B

oard
s pr

iorit
ies 

in re
latio

n to
 how

 Dis
able

d ch
ildre

n ar
e sa

fegu
arde

d an
d co

nsid
ers 

the 
spe

cific
 vul

nera
bilit

ies 
of 

this
 gro

up o
f ch

ildre
n in

 diff
eren

t cir
cum

stan
ces

. 
n w

ithin
 the

 
boro

ugh
. Th

e gr
oup

 is b
uild

ing 
data

 fro
m c

omp
arat

ive 
neig

hbo
urs 

and
 acr

oss
 age

ncy
 and

 sha
ll be

 use
d to

 ide
ntify

 tre
nds

, ga
ps a

nd i
mpa

ct 
on s

afeg
uard

ing 
Disa

bled
 chi

ldre
n. T

he g
roup

 has
 con

side
red 

the 
issu

e of
 the

 ma
skin

g of
 abu

se f
or d

isab
led 

chil
dren

 by 
the 

use
 of a

utho
rise

d 
/ no

n au
thor

ised
 abs

enc
es, 

and
 has

 loo
ked

 at 
atte

nda
nce

 figu
res 

for 
all S

pec
ial S

cho
ols 

in H
arin

gey
, pa

ttern
s an

d tr
end

s an
d ex

plan
atio

ns. 
 

Lea
rnin

g w
as d

isse
min

ated
 thro

ugh
 the

 gro
up. 

  
Mul

ti-ag
enc

y au
dits

 hav
e b

een
 und

erta
ken

 to 
con

side
r th

resh
old 

crite
ria a

nd 
this

 info
rma

tion
 wil

l fee
d in

to t
he d

eve
lopm

ent 
of t

he s
ervi

ce. 
This

 inc
lude

d di
sab

led 
chil

dren
 in c

hild
 pro

tect
ion 

con
fere

nce
s. 

The
re h

as 
bee

n a
 foc

us 
on 

incr
eas

ing 
part

icip
atio

n o
f di

sab
led 

chil
dren

 in 
the 

boro
ugh

, in
clud

ing 
incl

usio
n in

 the
 yo

ung
 ins

pec
tors

 
prog

ram
me.

 In 
add

ition
 wo

rk c
omm

enc
ed 

on 
repo

rting
 arr

ang
emle

d
 
c
h
ild

r
e
n

 
in

 
th

e
 
b
o
r
o
u
g
h

in
c
lu
d
in

g
 
in

c
lu
s
io

n
 
in

 
th

e
 
y
o
u
n
g

 
in
s
p
e
c

to
r
s
 

revi
ew 

grou
p an

d to
 the

 You
th C

oun
cil. 

The
 gro

up h
ope

s to
 con

tinu
e to

 dev
elop

 acc
ess

ible
 wa

ys f
or D

isab
led 

chil
dren

 to i
npu

t the
ir vi

ews
 into

 
thes

e fo
rum

s an
d to

 be 
able

 to f
eed

bac
k th

e di
ffere

nce
 the

ir vi
ews

 hav
e m

ade
 to t

he o
utco

mes
/dec

isio
ns. 

Page 51



1
6

 

 

44..66  
TTrraa

iinniinn
gg  aa

nndd  
DDeevv

eelloopp
mmeenn

tt  SSuu
bb  GG

rroouu
pp..    

CChhaa
iirr  --  

HHeeaa
dd  oo

ff  SSaa
ffeegguu

aarrdd
iinngg,,

  QQuu
aalliittyy

  AAss
ssuurraa

nnccee
  aann

dd  PP
rraacctt

iiccee  
DDeevv

eelloopp
mmeenn

tt  
((CCYY

PPSS))
  

RReemm
iitt:: T

o ov
erse

e th
e de

liver
y an

d ev
alua

tion
 of 

a m
ulti-

age
ncy

 tra
inin

g p
rogr

amm
e an

d m
onit

or t
he d

egre
e to

 wh
ich 

part
ner 

orga
nisa

tion
s 

T
o

 o
v
e
r
s
e
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
r -

v
e
r
y
 a

n
d

 e
v
a
lu
a

ti
o
n

 o
v
e
r

  
The

 tra
inin

g su
b g

roup
 hav

e co
mpl

eted
 a t

rain
ing 

nee
ds a

naly
sis 

con
side

ring
 the

 nee
ds f

rom
 diff

eren
t se

rvic
es, 

loca
l an

d n
atio

nal 
revi

ews
 

and
 eva

luat
ions

 of c
ours

es. 
New

 cou
rses

 hav
e be

en i
den

tifie
d fo

r the
 new

 yea
r inc

ludi
ng b

esp
oke

 cou
rses

 for 
man

age
rs.  

As w
ell a

s on
e da

y tra
inin

g, t
he L

SCB
 is d

elive
ring

 tra
inin

g on
 line

 and
 in b

ite s
ized

 sem
inar

s. T
he L

SCB
 join

tly w
ith H

arin
gey

 cou
ncil

 hav
e 

bou
ght 

an i
nter

acti
ve p

ack
age

 of t
rain

ing 
that

 can
 be 

diss
emi

nate
d th

roug
h ag

enc
ies 

and
 use

d by
 ma

nag
ers 

with
 the

ir te
ams

 to 
sup

port
 and

 
buil

d co
nfid

enc
e w

hen
 res

pon
ding

 to c
hild

 pro
tect

ion 
and

 saf
egu

ardi
ng m

atte
rs.  

An 
imp

act 
repo

rt w
as c

omp
lete

d in
 the

 beg
inni

ng o
f 20

13. 
Due

 to t
he a

bse
nce

 of a
 trai

ning
 ma

nag
er f

or m
uch

 of t
he y

ear,
 this

 has
 not

 as 
of 

yet 
bee

n up
date

d. 3
 mo

nths
 pos

t ev
alua

tion
 of t

rain
ing 

beg
an i

n 20
13/1

4; th
is in

form
atio

n w
ill n

eed
 to b

e co
llate

d an
d co

mpi
led 

in a
n im

pac
t 

repo
rt. 

The
 sub

 gro
up u

nde
rtoo

k a 
rang

e of
 tas

ks a
ime

d at
 ens

urin
g th

at th
ere 

is a
n up

 to d
ate 

mul
ti-ag

enc
y tra

inin
g pr

ogra
m in

 pla
ce.  

Page 52



1
7

 

 

55..    
LLeeaa

rrnniinn
gg  aann

dd  IImm
pprroo

vveemm
eenntt  

FFrraa
mmeeww

oorrkk
    

A ke
y ro

le fo
r the

 LSC
B is

 to e
nsu

re th
at th

ere 
is a

 pos
itive

 lea
rnin

g an
d im

pro
vem

ent 
fram

ewo
rk, s

ome
 of w

hich
 is d

etai
led 

in th
is se

ctio
n. 

55..11  
MMuull

ttii  aa
ggeenn

ccyy  tt
rraaiinn

iinngg  
220011

33//11
44  

The
 LSC

B sc
hed

uled
 2200  

mmuull
ttii--aa

ggeenn
ccyy  tt

rraaiinn
iinngg  

ccoouu
rrsseess

 ove
r 4488

  sseess
ssiioonn

ss. In
 com

pari
son

 
boro

ugh
s, th

e LS
CB 

sch
edu

led 
the 

sec
ond

 hig
hes

t nu
mbe

r of
 cou

rses
, su

gge
stin

g th
ere 

is a
 hig

h d
ema

nd 
for 

mul
ti-ag

enc
y tr

aini
ng a

cros
s 

the 
boro

ugh
.  

In 2
013

-14 
 7700%%

 of t
he t

otal
 trai

ners
 we

re in
tern

al. I
nter

nal 
train

ers 
train

ed 55
00%%

  of t
he t

otal
 trai

ned
 (3388

88).  
 

PPrroo
ppoorr

ttiioonn
  ooff  

ttoottaa
ll  ttrraa

iinneedd
,,  2200

1133--
1144    

  
The

 use
 of 

inte
rnal

 tra
iner

s gi
ves

 tra
inin

g a 
feel

 for
 loc

al is
sue

s an
d se

rvic
es, 

enc
oura

ges
 net

wor
king

 acr
oss

 the
 ser

vice
s an

d m
axim

ises
 the

 
opp

ortu
nity

 for 
train

ers 
to d

eve
lop 

thei
r sk

ills.  
 

50%
47%

3%

Inte
rnal

 Tra
iner

s 
Exte

rnal
 Tra

iner
s 

Join
tly T

rain
ed

Page 53



1
8

 

 

Hom
e G

row
n T

rain
ers 

-- 
-

ld p
rote

ctio
n re

spo
nsib

ilitie
s to

 del
iver

 bas
ic C

hild
 Pro

tect
ion 

awa
rene

ss t
rain

ing 
with

in th
eir o

wn 
sett

ing 
(and

 wh
ere 

app
ropr

iate
 for

 the
 LS

CB)
. Al

l ca
ndid

ates
 for

 the
 co

urse
 are

 req
uire

d to
 de

liver
 a 

min
imu

m o
f tw

o b
asic

 aw
aren

ess
 Ch

ild 
Pro

tect
ion 

ses
sion

s pe
r fin

anc
ial y

ear 
and

 to c
omp

lete
 an 

ann
ual 

train
ing 

retu
rn.  

Har
inge

y LS
CB 

train
ed 11

77 ne
w s

ingl
e ag

enc
y tra

iner
s in

 201
3-1

4 (d
ecre

ase
 of 44

33%%
 sin

ce 2
011

-12
); 2233

 pla
ces

 we
re o

ffere
d (d

ecre
ase

 of 33
66%%

 
sinc

e 20
11-

12).
 In t

erm
s of

 val
ue f

or m
one

y, 88
..55 p

eop
le w

ere 
train

ed p
er tw

o-d
ay c

ours
e se

ssio
n.  

TTrraa
iinniinn

gg  UU
ppttaa

kkee  --
  The

 num
ber 

of c
ours

e se
ssio

ns s
che

dule
d in

 201
3-1

4 ha
s de

crea
sed

 by 
11%

 sin
ce 2

012
-13

. Ho
wev

er th
e ov

eral
l nu

mbe
rs 

train
ed h

as o
nly 

dec
reas

ed b
y 5%

 sug
ges

ting
 the

re is
 a c

onti
nuo

us d
ema

nd f
or t

rain
ing.

   
NNuumm

bbeerr
  ooff  

ccoouu
rrssee  

sseess
ssiioonn

ss  sscc
hheedd

uulleedd
  bbyy  

ffiinnaa
nncciiaa

ll  yyee
aarrss  

   
46

53
54

48
40455055

201
0-11

201
1-12

201
2-13

201
3-14

Page 54



  1
9

 

 

OOvvee
rraallll  

nnuumm
bbeerr

ss  ttrr
aaiinnee

dd  vvii
aa  LLSS

CCBB  
mmuull

ttii--aa
ggeenn

ccyy  cc
oouurr

sseess
  

  

 
   AAttttee

nnddaa
nnccee

  SSttaa
ttiissttii

ccss  
--  In

 201
3-14

 9977
88 a

ppli
cati

ons
 we

re r
ece

ived
 of 

who
m 77

8811 
peo

ple 
(8800%%

) att
end

ed 
(com

pare
d to

 7777
%% i

n 2
012

-13
). 

Atte
nda

nce
 wa

s ov
er 4

4 tr
aini

ng s
ess

ions
 fro

m 1
7 ag

enc
ies.

 1100
%% c

anc
elle

d th
eir p

lace
 lea

ving
 op

port
unit

ies 
for 

the 
LSC

B to
 off

er t
hes

e to
 

othe
rs. 66

%% w
ere 

affe
cted

 by 
the 

4 se
ssio

ns w
hich

 we
re c

anc
elle

d an
d 44%%

 of a
ppli

can
ts d

id n
ot a

tten
d ov

eral
l. 

 PPrroo
ppoorr

ttiioonn
  ooff  

aattttee
nnddaa

nnccee
  aanndd

  nnoonn
--aatttt

eenndd
aanncc

ee  rraa
tteess  

 
    

665544
770011

881188
778811

0200400600800100
0

201
0-11

201
1-12

201
2-13

201
3-14

80%

10%
6%

4%
Atte

nde
d

Can
celle

d
Cou

rse 
Can

celle
d

Did
 not

 atte
nd 

Page 55



  2
0

 

 

      AAttttee
nnddaa

nnccee
  bbyy  

mmuull
ttii--aa

ggeenn
ccyy  cc

oouurr
sseess

,,  2200
1133--

1144    

 
 The

 hig
hes

t at
tend

anc
e to

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy 

cou
rses

 wa
s fo

r In
trod

ucti
on 

to C
hild

 Pr
otec

tion
 (1133

..88%%
) an

d D
esig

nate
d L

ead
 an

d N
ame

d 
Pro

fess
iona

ls (11
33..66%%

).  
 AAttttee

nnddaa
nnccee

  bbyy
  IInndd

iivviidd
uuaall  

AAggee
nnccyy

  --  A
tten

dan
ce t

o co
urse

s w
as a

cros
s 17

 mu
lti-a

gen
cies

. Th
e hi

ghe
st a

tten
dan

ce b
y an

 ind
ivid

ual 
age

ncy
 

was
 by 

CYP
S (22

66%%
 of t

otal
 atte

nde
es),

 foll
owe

d by
 ear

ly ye
ars 

(1199%%
) an

d sc
hoo

ls (11
88%%

).   
    

2222
4411

4411

7766

4433

110066

2288
4433

1144
3344

2255

110088

4466
2288

4422

1144
2299

1177
2244

020406080100120

Page 56



2
1

 

 

AAttttee
nnddaa

nnccee
  bbyy  

IInnddii
vviidduu

aall  AA
ggeenn

ccyy  ((
220011

33--11
44))  

 
CYP

S an
d Ea

rly y
ears

 sho
wed

 the
 hig

hes
t rat

es o
f no

n at
tend

anc
e, fo

llow
ed b

y sc
hoo

ls a
nd t

he v
olun

tary
 and

 com
mun

ity s
ecto

r.  
Sinc

e 20
11-

12 t
here

 has
 bee

n an
 inc

reas
e of

 7788%%
  in s

cho
ol a

tten
dan

ce o
n co

urse
s.   

E--L
earn

ing 
-- In

 No
vem

ber 
201

3, th
e In

trod
ucti

on t
o C

hild
 Pro

tect
ion 

e-le
arni

ng w
as c

han
ged

 to 
g

 e-le
arni

ng. 
This

 wa
s to

 sup
port

 the
 Sa

fegu
ardi

ng t
hem

e of
 the

 Imp
rovi

ng H
arin

gey
 Ca

mpa
ign.

 For
 the

 firs
t tim

e, th
is e

-lea
rnin

g 
reso

urce
 cov

ered
 bot

h ch
ildre

n an
d vu

lner
able

 adu
lts s

afeg
uard

ing 
issu

es. 
 

Bet
wee

n A
pril 

201
3 a

nd 
Mar

ch 
201

4 22
339988

 on
line

 co
urse

s w
ere 

com
plet

ed, 
an 

incr
eas

e o
f 1100

2211%%
 sin

ce 2
012

-13 
whe

re 22
1144 

can
dida

tes 
com

plet
ed I

ntro
duc

tion
 to C

hild
 Pro

tect
ion.

  

77
2211

2222
22

220000
114466

88
2255

11
33

2255
33

114422
9933

6633
1133

77
1

0
0

0
10

13
0

1
0

0
2

0
7

4
0

0
0

050100150200250

Atte
nde

d
Non

 Att
end

anc
e

Page 57



  2
2

 

 

    UUpptt
aakkee

  ee--ll
eeaarrnn

iinngg  
bbyy  aa

ggeenn
ccyy,,  

220011
33--11

44  
 

  
 EEvvaa

lluuaatt
iioonn  

ttoo  TT
rraaiinn

iinngg  
CCoouu

rrsseess
  --  E

valu
atin

g th
e ef

fect
iven

ess
 of 

train
ing 

on p
ract

ice 
is a

 cor
e pa

rt o
f the

 Tra
inin

g, L
earn

ing 
& D

eve
lopm

ent 
Sub

grou
p. L

SCB
 cou

rses
 are

 eva
luat

ed u
sing

 eva
luat

ion 
form

s as
 we

ll as
 ver

bal 
feed

bac
k to

 trai
ners

 on 
the 

day
. 

  
Cou

rses
 me

t the
 exp

ecta
tion

s of
 9988%%

 of c
and

idat
es  

 
The

 con
tent

 of t
he c

ours
e w

as a
bou

t rig
ht fo

r 9900
%% o

f ca
ndid

ates
  

 
9988%%

 felt
 the

 trai
ning

 pro
vide

d a 
safe

 foru
m fo

r dis
cus

sion
 

 
Foll

owi
ng t

he t
rain

ing 
ses

sion
s,  99

99%%
  felt

 con
fide

nt to
 und

erta
ke m

ulti-
age

ncy
 chi

ld p
rote

ctio
n w

ork 
 

9999%%
 we

re li
kely

 to r
eco

mm
end

 cou
rses

 to c
olle

agu
es 

 
  

593

119
7

541

39
40

42
25

3
1

0200400600800100
0

120
0

140
0

Page 58



2
3

 

 

    
55..22  

AAllllee
ggaattii

oonnss
  aaggaa

iinnsstt
  pprroo

ffeessss
iioonnaa

llss  
  LLAA

DDOO
  

  
A re

port
 is p

rodu
ced

 ann
uall

y w
hich

 pro
vide

s an
 ove

rvie
w a

nd a
naly

sis 
of th

e w
ork 

of th
e Lo

cal 
Aut

hori
ty D

esig
nate

d O
ffice

r (LA
DO)

.  Th
e 

LAD
O is

 res
pon

sibl
e fo

r the
 ma

nag
eme

nt a
nd o

vers
ight

 of i
ndiv

idua
l ca

ses
 wh

ere 
alle

gati
ons

 of a
bus

e an
d m

altre
atm

ent 
of c

hild
ren 

hav
e 

bee
n m

ade
 ag

ains
t in

divi
dua

ls w
orki

ng 
with

 ch
ildre

n in
 an

 em
ploy

ed 
or v

olun
tary

 ca
pac

ity. 
The

 rep
ort 

outl
ines

 ke
y d

eve
lopm

ents
, 

prov
ides

 an 
ove

rvie
w o

f all
ega

tion
s w

hich
 hav

e b
een

 inv
esti

gate
d, a

nd 
prov

ides
 a s

umm
ary 

of c
ons

ulta
tion

 and
 ad

vice
 off

ered
 by 

the 
LAD

O. 
 Dur

ing 
the 

twe
lve 

mon
th p

erio
d fr

om 
Apr

il 20
13 t

here
 are

 rec
ord

s th
at t

he L
ADO

 wa
s co

nsu
lted

 on 
a to

tal o
f 33

 occ
asio

ns. 
 The

re m
ay 

hav
e be

en f
urth

er in
stan

ces
 of 

con
sult

atio
n w

here
 adv

ice 
and

 gui
dan

ce w
as g

iven
 on 

safe
gua

rdin
g an

d w
elfa

re is
sue

s bu
t th

ese
 are

 not
 

reco
rded

.  Th
irty 

thre
e re

ferra
ls re

sult
ed i

n co
nve

ning
 a s

trate
gy m

eeti
ng o

r dis
cus

sion
.   

 This
 ma

kes
 for 

an a
vera

ge o
f les

s th
an t

wo 
con

tact
s a 

wee
k, w

hich
 is l

owe
r tha

n th
e ov

eral
l ref

erra
l rat

e in
 the

 las
t 6 m

onth
s of

 201
2-1

3. 
 In th

e 12
 mo

nths
 bet

wee
n Ap

ril 2
013

 and
 Ma

rch 
201

4, 4
5%

 (15
) of 

the 
alle

gati
ons

 tak
en t

o st
rate

gy m
eeti

ng w
ere 

sub
stan

tiate
d, s

ix le
d to

 
disc

iplin
ary 

acti
on, 

five
 to 

inve
stig

atio
n by

 the
 pol

ice 
- on

e of
 wh

ich 
is w

aitin
g on

 a d
ecis

ion 
rega

rdin
g pr

ose
cuti

on. 
One

 fos
ter 

care
r wa

s 
refe

rred
 to t

he F
oste

ring
 Pan

el to
 det

erm
ine 

whe
ther

 the
y sh

ould
 con

tinu
e fo

ster
ing.

 The
 num

ber 
of s

ubs
tant

iate
d re

ferra
ls is

 slig
htly

 low
er 

than
 in t

he p
revi

ous
 rep

ortin
g pe

riod
 wh

ere 
56%

 of a
lleg

atio
ns w

ere 
sub

stan
tiate

d.   
39%

 (6) 
wer

e no
t su

bsta
ntia

ted,
 2 w

ere 
dee

med
 not

 
to h

ave
 me

t the
 thre

sho
ld a

t the
 stra

tegy
 me

etin
g an

d 2 
rem

ain 
ope

n. T
he n

umb
ers 

invo
lved

 are
 sm

all a
nd s

ligh
t ch

ang
es a

re n
ot s

een
 as 

part
icul

arly
 sig

nific
ant,

 wh
at is

 imp
orta

nt is
 the

 qua
lity 

of in
ves

tiga
tion

 and
 dec

isio
n m

akin
g on

 eac
h in

divi
dua

l ca
se. 

 The
 num

ber 
of r

efer
rals

 to 
the 

LAD
O fo

r 20
13-

201
4 as

 rec
ord

ed a
ppe

ars 
quit

e lo
w. T

hes
e ar

e in
 fac

t th
ose

 tha
t led

 to 
stra

tegy
 me

etin
gs 

bein
g co

nve
ned

. Th
e re

cord
s of

 adv
ice 

and
 con

sult
atio

n ar
e no

t av
aila

ble 
and

 this
 mig

ht in
dica

te a
 mu

ch h
ighe

r nu
mbe

r of
 enq

uirie
s th

at 
wer

e d
eem

ed 
not 

to h
ave

 me
t th

e th
resh

old 
for 

LAD
O in

terv
enti

on. 
This

 ha
s b

een
 rec

tifie
d s

ince
 Ap

ril 2
014

 wh
ere 

all r
efer

rals
 are

 
reco

rded
 on 

the 
data

bas
e an

d th
e Fr

ame
wor

k-i s
yste

m re
gard

less
 of o

utco
me.

  
 

    

Page 59



2
4

 

 

66  EE
ffffeecc

ttiivvee
nneess

ss  ooff
  SSaa

ffeegguu
aarrdd

iinngg  
iinn  HH

aarriinn
ggeeyy

  
66..11  

CCoouu
nncciill

  ddaatt
aa  

 
The

 Co
unc

il re
port

s on
 a ra

nge
 of p

erfo
rma

nce
 targ

ets 
for 2

013
-14,

 of w
hich

 sev
eral

 are
 rele

van
t to 

the 
wor

k of
 the

 LSC
B. 

The
 foll

owi
ng a

reas
 are

 per
form

ing 
wel

l: 
 

The
 nu

mbe
r of

 sch
ools

 rat
ed 

goo
d o

r ou
tsta

ndin
g b

y O
fste

d (a
ll 11

 sec
ond

ary 
sch

ools
, an

d 4
9 o

ut o
f 60

 ins
pec

ted 
prim

arie
s, a

re 
judg

ed g
ood

 or o
utst

and
ing)

 
 

The
 num

ber 
of e

ligib
le fa

milie
s re

ceiv
ing 

serv
ices

 from
 Ha

ring
ey F

ami
lies 

Firs
t (on

 targ
et to

 ach
ieve

 targ
eted

 num
bers

 of f
ami

lies)
 

 
Num

ber 
of s

ucc
ess

ful a
dop

tion
s an

d sp
ecia

l gu
ardi

ans
hip 

orde
rs. (

64, 
aga

inst
 a ta

rget
 of 4

5). 
 

Num
ber 

of c
ase

s de
alt w

ith b
y th

e of
fend

er m
ana

gem
ent 

unit
 (25

5 ag
ains

t a t
arge

t of 
150

) 
 

Num
ber 

of g
ang

 me
mbe

rs s
upp

orte
d in

 the
 Ga

ng E
xit P

rogr
amm

e (7
4 ag

ains
t a t

arge
t of 

70) 
 

The
 Co

unc
il re

port
s th

e fo
llow

ing 
area

s as
 req

uirin
g fu

rthe
r foc

us: 
 

imp
rove

men
t) 

 
Earl

y ac
ces

s to
 ma

tern
ity s

ervi
ces

 
 

Rat
e of

 chi
ldre

n su
bjec

t to 
a ch

ild p
rote

ctio
n pl

an 
 

Tim
elin

ess
 of a

dop
tion

 pla
cem

ents
 (red

ucin
g fro

m 7
78 d

ays
 to 5

40, 
but 

still 
abo

ve t
he n

atio
nal 

targ
ets)

  
 

Tim
elin

ess
 of C

hild
 and

 Fam
ily a

sse
ssm

ents
 (83

% o
f ref

erra
ls se

en w
ithin

 10 
day

s, a
gain

st a
 targ

et o
f 95

%).
 

6
  

o
 

The
re h

as b
een

 a d
own

war
d tr

end
 in t

he n
umb

er o
f cchh

iillddrree
nn  ssuu

bbjjeecc
tt  ttoo

  aa  cc
hhiilldd

  pprroo
tteecctt

iioonn  
ppllaann

..  Ch
ildre

n on
 a p

lan 
hav

e re
duc

ed b
y 30

% 
sinc

e th
e en

d o
f M

arch
 201

3, 8
0 fe

wer
 chi

ldre
n. A

t th
e en

d o
f M

arch
 the

re w
ere 

201
 chi

ldre
n on

 chi
ld p

rote
ctio

n p
lans

, a 
rraattee

 of 
35 p

er 
10,0

00 p
opu

latio
n, b

elow
 the

 201
2/13

 rat
e fo

r ou
r sta

tisti
cal 

neig
hbo

urs 
(40)

, th
e 20

12/1
3 ra

te o
f 47

 and
 the

 tar
get 

rate
 of 

43. 
The

 ma
in 

issu
e to

 be 
con

cern
ed w

ith h
ere 

is e
nsu

ring
 the

 thre
sho

ld is
 set

 at t
he r

ight
 lev

el.  

Page 60



2
5

 

 

o
 

A cc
hhiilldd

rreenn
  aann

dd  ffaa
mmiillii

eess  
ssiinngg

llee  aa
ssssee

ssssmm
eenntt

 we
nt l

ive 
from

 1 J
uly 

and
 init

ial a
nd 

core
 ass

ess
men

ts w
ere 

repl
ace

d w
ith 

sim
ple 

and
 

com
plex

 ass
ess

men
ts. 1

091
 of 

thes
e as

ses
sme

nts 
hav

e be
en cc

oommpp
lleettee

dd  in
 the

 yea
r so

 far,
 77%

  iinn  
4455  

wwoorr
kkiinngg

 ddaa
yyss a

gain
st a

 tar
get 

of 
85%

. Ne
w a

sse
ssm

ents
 are

 bei
ng u

nde
rtak

en i
n a 

time
ly m

ann
er d

ue t
o tig

hter
 ma

nag
eme

nt a
nd s

yste
ms 

cha
nge

s. 
o

 
83%

 of  
cchhiill

ddrree
nn  aass

sseess
sseedd

  wwee
rree  ss

eeeenn
  wwiitt

hhiinn  
1100  

ddaayy
ss in

 the
 yea

r be
low

 the
 95%

 tar
get 

but 
mor

e ch
ildre

n ha
ve b

een
 see

n in
 10 

day
s in

 
rece

nt m
onth

s (8
7%

 in F
ebru

ary)
. 

o
 

9.9%
 of 

cchhiill
dd  pp

rroottee
ccttiioo

nn  pp
llaannss

  tha
t ce

ase
d th

is y
ear  

llaasstt
eedd  

22  yyee
aarrss  

oorr  mm
oorree

,,  clo
se t

o st
atis

tica
l ne

ighb
our 

pos
ition

 of 9
%. 

The
 targ

et is
 

7%
.   

o
 

10%
 of c

hild
ren 

hav
e be

com
e th

e ssuu
bbjjeecc

tt  ooff
  aa  CC

hhiilldd
  PPrroo

tteecctt
iioonn  

PPllaann
  ffoorr

  aa  ss
eeccoo

nndd  
oorr  ss

uubbss
eeqquu

eenntt  
ttiimmee

,, in 
line

 wit
h 10

% t
arge

t. 
o

 
The

re h
ave

 bee
n 51

81  CC
hhiilldd

  ccoonn
ttaacctt

ss re
cord

ed i
n th

e ye
ar, a

roun
d 1,

000
 few

er c
onta

cts 
in 2

013
/14 

com
pare

d w
ith 2

012
/13 

o
 

RReeff
eerrrraa

llss  a
re a

lso 
redu

cing
, 20

% r
edu

ctio
n fo

reca
st in

 add
ition

 to a
 14%

 red
ucti

on o
n nu

mbe
rs in

 201
1/12

. Th
is is

 equ
ivale

nt to
 a re

ferr
al 

rate
 of 3

00 p
er 1

0,00
0 po

pula
tion

. 
o

 
The

 rate
 of rr

ee--rree
ffeerrrr

aallss  
wwiitthh

iinn  11
22  mm

oonntt
hhss  oo

ff  tthh
ee  pprr

eevviioo
uuss  rr

eeffeerr
rraall a

t 14
% is

 in l
ine 

with
 targ

et (1
6%

) an
d st

atis
tica

l ne
ighb

ours
. 

o
 

90%
 of 

cchhiill
dd  pp

rroottee
ccttiioo

nn  cc
aassee

ss  hhaa
vvee  bb

eeeenn
  rreevv

iieeww
eedd  

wwiitthh
iinn  tt

iimmee
ssccaa

llee f
or t

he c
urre

nt c
oho

rt, b
elow

 the
 100

% t
arge

t an
d b

elow
 lev

els 
ach

ieve
d by

 sta
tisti

cal 
neig

hbo
urs.

  
o

 
The

re h
as b

een
 a 3

% r
edu

ctio
n in

 the
 num

ber 
of cc

hhiilldd
rreenn  

iinn  cc
aarree

 sin
ce t

he e
nd o

f Ma
rch 

201
3. 5

23 c
hild

ren 
wer

e in
 car

e on
 the

 las
t da

y 
of F

ebru
ary 

or 9
1 pe

r 10
,000

 pop
ulat

ion,
 wh

ich 
rem

ains
 hig

her 
than

 the
 lev

el in
 sim

ilar 
boro

ugh
s al

thou
gh a

 sig
nific

ant 
redu

ctio
n on

 this
 

poin
t las

t ye
ar (r

ate 
93).

  
66..33  

PPooll
iiccee  

DDaatt
aa  

The
 Me

trop
olita

n P
olic

e is
sue

s q
uart

erly
 su

mm
arie

s o
f pe

rfor
man

ce 
acro

ss L
ond

on, 
seg

rega
ted 

into
 ea

ch 
loca

l au
thor

ity 
area

, co
veri

ng 
viol

ent 
offe

nce
s, s

exu
al o

ffen
ces

 rob
beri

es, 
and

 com
mon

 ass
ault

, a
n
c
e
 a

c
r
o
s
s
 L

o
n
d
o
n
, 
s
e
g
r
e
g
a

te
d

 i
n

to
 e

a
c
h

 l
o
c
a
l 
a -up

). Th
roug

hou
t 20

13-
14 

the 
data

 sho
wed

 tha
t the

 num
bers

 of c
rime

s re
cord

ed a
s co

mm
itted

 aga
inst

 chi
ldre

n un
der 

the 
age

 of 1
8 w

as b
road

ly c
ons

iste
nt w

ith r
ates

 in 
com

para
ble 

Lon
don

 au
thor

ities
, an

d d
etec

tion
 rat

es w
ere 

bro
adly

 hig
her 

than
 in 

com
para

ble 
auth

oriti
es. 

The
 LS

CB 
is e

xplo
ring

 wa
ys o

f 
imp

rovi
ng t

he w
ays

 of a
naly

sing
 this

 reg
ular

 pol
ice 

data
. 

66..44  
HHeeaa

lltthh  RR
eeppoo

rrttss  
Har

inge
y C

linic
al C

omm
issio

ning
 Gr

oup
 pu

blis
hed

 the
ir a

nnu
al s

afeg
uard

ing 
repo

rt in
 No

vem
ber 

201
4, c

ove
ring

 20
13-

14. 
It p

rovi
des

 an
 

ove
rvie

w o
f sa

fegu
ardi

ng a
rran

gem
ents

 acr
oss

 the
 hea

lth s
ervi

ces
 in H

arin
gey

, inc
ludi

ng a
 sum

mar
y of

 the
 per

form
anc

e of
 hea

lth p
rovi

ders
 

aga
inst

 the
ir tra

inin
g ta

rget
s. 

All 
Nam

ed 
safe

gua
rdin

g p
rofe

ssio
nals

 in 
the 

Pro
vide

r Tr
usts

 we
re u

p-to
-da

te w
ith 

safe
gua

rdin
g c

hild
ren 

train
ing 

duri
ng 

201
3/14

. Tr
aini

ng 
com

plia
nce

 for
 all 

emp
loye

rs w
as s

et a
t 80

% o
r ab

ove
 wit

h th
e ex

cep
tion

 of 
BEH

-MH
T w

ho 
set 

thei
rs a

t 85
%. 

In a
ddit

ion 
to e

ach
 Tru

st 

Page 61



  2
6

 

 

hav
ing 

spe
cific

ally 
tailo

red 
train

ing 
ther

e ar
e se

vera
l so

urce
s of

 mo
re g

ene
ral a

nd s
ubje

ct s
pec

ific 
chil

d p
rote

ctio
n (C

P) t
rain

ing 
ava

ilab
le fo

r 
Har

inge
y he

alth
 pro

fess
iona

ls:  
 

E-le
arni

ng v
ia H

SCB
 

 
E-le

arni
ng v

ia N
HS 

Skil
ls fo

r He
alth

 Co
re L

earn
ing 

Unit
  

 
Mul

ti-ag
enc

y da
y co

urse
s vi

a H
SCB

 
 

Lun
ch t

ime
 lea

rnin
g se

ssio
ns v

ia H
SCB

 
 

E-le
arni

ng p
rodu

ced
 by 

the 
Roy

al C
olle

ge o
f Pa

edia
trics

 and
 Ch

ild H
ealt

h 
 The

 tab
les 

belo
w s

how
 the

 per
form

anc
e of

 eac
h pr

ovid
er a

gain
st th

eir c
hild

 pro
tect

ion 
train

ing 
targ

ets 
in 2

013
-14

.  
 NNoorr

tthh  MM
iiddddll

eessee
xx  UU

nniivvee
rrssiittyy

  HHoo
ssppiitt

aall  NN
HHSS  

TTrruu
sstt    

         The
 Tru

st u
nde

rtoo
k a 

num
ber 

of a
ctio

ns t
o tr

y to
 ad

dres
s th

e lo
w c

omp
lian

ce w
ith s

afeg
uard

ing 
train

ing.
 Th

ese
 inc

lude
d c

omm
issio

ning
 

add
ition

al c
apa

city
 for 

leve
l 2 &

 lev
el 3

 trai
ning

, en
suri

ng s
taff 

wer
e aw

are 
of a

ll tra
inin

g da
tes,

 sen
ding

 em
ail a

lerts
 to i

ndiv
idua

l sta
ff m

emb
ers 

and
 the

ir m
ana

ger 
whe

n no
n-at

tend
anc

e oc
curr

ed a
nd 

proa
ctiv

ely 
boo

king
 sta

ff o
nto 

futu
re s

ess
ions

. Th
e is

sue
 of 

low
 tra

inin
g co

mpl
ianc

e 
rate

s w
as d

iscu
sse

d at
 the

 Co
ntra

ct a
nd Q

uali
ty R

evie
w M

eeti
ngs

 (CQ
RG)

. 
  

0
.0

0
%

 

2
0

.0
0

%
 

4
0

.0
0

%
 

6
0

.0
0

%
 

8
0

.0
0

%
 

1
0

0
.0

0
%

 

1
2

0
.0

0
%

 

Q
1

 
Q

2
 

Q
3

 
Q

4
 

N
M

U
H

 C
P

 T
ra

in
in

g
 Q

1
-4

 

Le
v
e

l 
1

 

Le
v
e

l 
2

 

Le
v
e

l 
3

 

Page 62



  2
7

 

 

BBaarr
nneett,,

  EEnn
ffiieelldd

  aanndd
  HHaa

rriinngg
eeyy  MM

eennttaa
ll  HHee

aalltthh
  TTrruu

sstt  ((BB
EEHH--

MMHH
TT))  

  

 

 
 

 
 

BEH
-MH

T re
port

ed t
hat 

Lev
el 1

&2 
com

plia
nce

 wa
s lo

wer
 tha

n ex
pec

ted 
des

pite
 con

side
rabl

e tr
aini

ng h
avin

g ta
ken

 pla
ce. 

Larg
e nu

mbe
rs o

f 
staf

f be
cam

e no
n-co

mpl
iant

 at t
he e

nd o
f the

 thre
e ye

arly
 trai

ning
 cyc

le. T
o in

crea
se c

omp
lian

ce a
ddit

iona
l se

ssio
ns w

ere 
com

mis
sion

ed a
nd 

indi
vidu

als 
give

n a 
date

 to a
tten

d.  
 Lev

el 3
 sho

wed
 som

e im
prov

eme
nt a

nd i
ncre

asin
g ac

cura
cy a

ltho
ugh

 atte
nda

nce
 at c

ours
es w

as s
till t

hou
ght 

likel
y to

 be 
und

er-r
epo

rted
 due

 
to h

isto
rica

l iss
ues

 of l
imit

ed L
SCB

 and
 sta

ff fe
edb

ack
 sys

tem
s. In

divi
dua

l sta
ff w

ho w
ere 

non
-com

plia
nt w

ere 
iden

tifie
d an

d na
mes

 circ
ulat

ed 
to m

ana
gers

 to c
has

e su
bmi

ssio
n of

 evi
den

ce o
r att

end
anc

e at
 trai

ning
. 

    

0
.0

0
%

 

2
0

.0
0

%
 

4
0

.0
0

%
 

6
0

.0
0

%
 

8
0

.0
0

%
 

1
0

0
.0

0
%

 

Q
1

 
Q

2
 

Q
3

 
Q

4
 

Axis Title 

B
E

H
-M

H
T

 C
P

 T
ra

in
in

g
 Q

1
-Q

4
 Le

v
e

l 
1

 

Le
v
e

l 
2

 

Le
v
e

l 
3

 

Page 63



2
8

 

 

WWhh
iittttiinn

ggttoo
nn  HH

oosspp
iittaall  

NNHHSS
  TTrruu

sstt  ((WW
hhiitttt

iinnggtt
oonn  HH

eeaalltt
hh))  ((WW

HH))    

 
 

       

Page 64



2
9

 

 

GGeenn
eerraall

  PPrraa
ccttiicc

ee  SS
ttaaffff

 

 

HHaarr
iinnggee

yy  LLoo
ookkee

dd  AA
fftteerr

  CChh
iillddrree

nn  ((LL
AACC))

  
In 2

013
/14  

ther
e w

ere 
208

 Ha
ring

ey c
hild

ren 
new

 into
 car

e. 6
7%

 of 
chil

dren
 rec

eive
d th

eir i
nitia

l he
alth

 ass
ess

men
ts w

ithin
 the

 sta
tuto

ry 4
 

th
e
r
e
 w . Th

e C
hild

ren 
in C

are 
(CIC

) Te
am 

had
 not

 bee
n re

ceiv
ing 

time
ly re

ferra
ls fr

om 
the 

Loc
al A

utho
rity 

whi
ch t

hen
 pre

ven
ted 

the 
chil

dren
 bei

ng s
een

 wit
hin 

time
sca

les.
   

Wor
k w

as d
one

 bet
wee

n th
e C

iC t
eam

 and
 loc

al a
utho

rity 
coll

eag
ues

 sup
port

ed b
y th

e C
CG 

- fo
r ex

amp
le re

gula
r me

etin
gs a

nd t
he c

reat
ion 

of a
 car

e pa
thw

ay f
low

 cha
rt - 

and
 the

 sys
tem

 dem
ons

trat
ed i

mpr
ove

men
t by

 qua
rter

 4. 

0
.0

0
%

 

2
0

.0
0

%
 

4
0

.0
0

%
 

6
0

.0
0

%
 

8
0

.0
0

%
 

1
0

0
.0

0
%

 

Apr 13 

May 13 

Jun 13 

Jul 13 

Aug 13 

Sep 13 

Oct 13 

Nov 13 

Dec-13 

Jan-14 

Feb-14 

Mar-14 

G
P

 C
P

 T
ra

in
in

g
 A

p
ri

l 
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 1
4

 Le
v
e

l 
1

 

Le
v
e

l 
2

 

Le
v
e

l 
3

 

Page 65



3
0

 

 

66..55  
MMiiss

ssiinngg
  CChh

iillddrree
nn  MM

iissssii
nngg  ff

rroomm
  CCaa

rree  
Dur

ing 
the 

cou
rse 

of 2
013

-14
, 24

 chi
ldre

n in
 car

e w
ere 

repo
rted

 as 
mis

sing
 fro

m th
eir p

lace
men

t, in
 a to

tal o
f 32

 epi
sod

es. 
The

 cas
es o

f an
y 

mis
sing

 chi
ldre

n in
 car

e, o
r ab

sen
t wi

thou
t au

thor
ity, 

are 
revi

ewe
d on

 a w
eek

ly b
asis

 by 
the 

lead
 me

mbe
r. W

ork 
has

 com
men

ced
 to r

evie
w th

e 
way

s in
 wh

ich 
thes

e ca
ses

 are
 rec

ord
ed, 

in o
rder

 to 
syn

chro
nise

 rec
ords

 wit
h th

e ca
se m

ana
gem

ent 
sys

tem
s, a

nd 
a m

ore 
relia

ble 
pro

ces
s 

sho
uld 

be i
n pl

ace
 dur

ing 
the 

com
ing 

yea
r.  

CChhii
llddrree

nn  MM
iissssii

nngg  EE
dduucc

aattiioo
nn    

A ke
y in

dica
tor f

or s
afeg

uard
ing 

is sc
hoo

l att
end

anc
e an

d th
e LS

CB 
see

ks t
o ha

ve o
vers

ight
 of t

he d
egre

e of
 abs

ente
eism

  
- 

 
-20

13).
 Per

sist
ent 

abs
enc

e in
 

hoo
ls is

 
5.2%

 com
pare

d w
ith t

he n
atio

nal 
ave

rage
 of 6

.5%
 (ac

ade
mic

 yea
r 20

12-2
013

).  
 

- 
The

 coh
ort 

who
se a

tten
dan

ce r
aise

s th
e m

ost 
con

cern
 is t

he G
yps

y, R
oma

 and
 Tra

velle
r (G

RT)
 pop

ulat
ion.

 Att
end

anc
e of

 GR
T p

upil
s is

 
poo

r thr
oug

hou
t the

ir tim
e at

 sch
ool 

but 
seri

ous
ly d

eter
iora

tes 
in s

eco
nda

ry s
cho

ol. P
aren

ts w
ill o

ften
 sta

te th
at th

eir c
hild

 has
 left

 hom
e/is

 
trav

ellin
g w

ith 
fam

ily/h
as r

etur
ned

 to 
thei

r co
untr

y o
f or

igin
 etc

. Sc
hoo

l sta
ff a

nd 
Edu

cati
ona

l W
elfa

re O
ffice

rs w
ill w

ork 
with

 all 
GRT

 
fam

ilies
 as 

they
 wo

uld 
the 

pare
nts 

of a
ny p

upil
 wh

ose
 atte

nda
nce

 is a
 con

cern
, an

d w
ill u

nde
rtak

e to
 loc

ate 
any

 chi
ldre

n cl
aim

ed t
o ha

ve 
mov

ed a
way

. Un
fort

una
tely

 som
e ch

ildre
n ar

e in
volv

ed i
n cr

imin
al a

ctiv
ities

 and
 sch

ool 
will 

bec
ome

 aw
are 

of th
is th

roug
h th

e w
ork 

of t
he 

You
th O

ffen
ding

 Ser
vice

 and
 the

 Pol
ice.

  
 

- 
In M

arch
 20

14 
16 

chil
dren

 in 
care

 we
re r

epo
rted

 to 
hav

e b
een

 mis
sing

 fro
m s

cho
ol. 

The
 Vir

tual
 Sc

hoo
l ha

s ef
fect

ive 
mec

han
ism

s fo
r 

mon
itori

ng t
he a

tten
dan

ce, 
and

 per
form

anc
e, o

f ch
ildre

n in
 car

e in
 sch

ool 
sett

ings
. 

A fu
rthe

r co
nce

rn is
 chi

ldre
n w

ho a
re n

ot re
gist

ered
 at a

 sch
ool 

and
 the

refo
re m

ay b
e m

issin
g ed

uca
tion

.  
- 

The
 dat

a fo
r th

is c
oho

rt o
f ch

ildre
n an

d yo
ung

 peo
ple 

is ta
ken

 fro
m c

ase
s re

ferre
d b

etw
een

  1 S
epte

mbe
r 20

13 a
nd 1

8 Ju
ly 2

014
. Du

ring
 

this
 per

iod 
ther

e w
ere 

590
 refe

rrals
 rec

orde
d; 4

52 h
ave

 bee
n lo

cate
d, 1

2 un
able

 to t
race

 and
 124

 of t
hos

e re
mai

n op
en f

or c
ase

wor
k. 

 

Page 66



  3
1

 

 

- 
Of 

thos
e c

hild
ren 

and
 yo

ung
 pe

ople
 to 

hav
e b

een
 loc

ated
 74

% 
wer

e s
upp

orte
d to

 en
rol 

at s
cho

ol, 
17%

 we
re t

rack
ed 

and
 the

ir 
whe

reab
outs

 con
firm

ed b
y th

e ne
w lo

cal 
auth

ority
, 3.5

% e
lect

ed t
o ho

me 
edu

cate
, 0.5

% w
ere 

abo
ve s

tatu
tory

 sch
ool 

age
 and

 refe
rred

 to 
You

th C
omm

unit
y an

d P
artic

ipat
ion 

Ser
vice

, 2.5
% w

ere 
give

n ad
vice

. Th
e 2.

5%
 tha

t co
uld 

not 
be l

oca
ted 

wer
e cl

ose
d fo

llow
ing 

exte
nsiv

e 
inve

stig
atio

ns. 
 

 
- 

The
 ma

in s
ourc

e of
 all 

refe
rrals

 are
 fro

m o
ut o

f bo
roug

h ed
uca

tion
 de

part
men

ts (3
0%

) an
d H

arin
gey

 Sc
hoo

l Ad
mis

sion
s (2

8%
). H

ealt
h 

Ser
vice

s c
omp

risin
g o

f G
ene

ral 
Pra

ctiti
one

rs, 
Hea

lth 
Visi

tors
/Clin

ics,
 Ho

spit
als,

 Sp
eec

h a
nd 

Lan
gua

ge 
The

rapy
, an

d S
cho

ol N
ursi

ng 
Ser

vice
 tak

e up
 11%

 of 
all t

he r
efer

rals
 rec

eive
d. S

ocia
l Ca

re li
aise

s cl
ose

ly re
ferri

ng 1
1%

 of 
all c

ase
s. S

cho
ols 

from
 wit

hin 
Har

inge
y an

d 
outs

ide 
Har

inge
y re

fer 
chil

dren
 and

 you
ng 

peo
ple 

thes
e ac

cou
nt f

or 7
.5%

 and
 3.5

% r
esp

ecti
vely

. Th
e re

mai
ning

 ref
erra

ls a
re f

rom
 the

 
Ben

efits
 Ag

enc
y, H

ous
ing,

 me
mbe

rs o
f th

e p
ubli

c, o
ther

 age
ncie

s su
ch a

s th
ose

 wo
rkin

g w
ith d

ome
stic

 vio
lenc

e, P
olic

e an
d P

roba
tion

 
Ser

vice
s, s

elf r
efer

rals
, UK

 Bo
rder

/Ho
me 

Offi
ce/I

mm
igra

tion
 Age

ncy
, in 

boro
ugh

 and
 out

 of b
orou

gh Y
outh

 Off
end

ing 
Ser

vice
s. 

The
 larg

est 
grou

p w
ithin

 the
 refe

rral 
set 

is y
ear 

one
 chi

ldre
n at

 14%
 wit

h ye
ar e

ight
s an

d te
ns a

t 10
% e

ach
. Nu

rser
y 2%

, rec
epti

on 7
%, 

yea
r 

two
 9%

, ye
ar th

ree 
7%

, ye
ar fo

ur 4
%, 

yea
r fiv

e 5%
, ye

ar s
ix, s

eve
n an

d ei
ght 

at 8
% e

ach
, ye

ar e
leve

n 6%
 and

 yea
r tw

elve
 2%

. 
 CChhii

llddrree
nn  MM

iissssii
nngg  ff

rroomm
  HHoo

mmee  
 Dur

ing 
201

3-1
4, p

olic
e d

ata 
repo

rts 
319

 ch
ildre

n a
s ha

ving
 be

en 
repo

rted
 mis

sing
 fro

m h
ome

. Ch
ildre

n a
re t

rack
ed 

in r
elat

ion 
to r

isk 
of 

eng
age

men
t w

ith 
gan

gs, 
and

 po
tent

ial 
risk

 of
 CS

E. 
Dat

a r
eco

rdin
g s

yste
ms 

are 
curr

entl
y b

eing
 re

view
ed, 

in t
he 

ligh
t o

f O
fste

d 
reco

mm
end

atio
ns. 

 
66..66  

RReevv
iieeww

ss  
 The

 par
tner

ship
 und

erta
kes

 aud
its, 

revi
ews

 and
 eva

luat
ions

 thr
oug

hou
t the

 yea
r, b

oth 
mul

ti-ag
enc

y an
d si

ngle
 age

ncy
, to 

pro
vide

 ass
uran

ce 
of th

e sa
fegu

ardi
ng p

ract
ices

 and
 arra

nge
men

ts in
 Ha

ring
ey a

nd t
o im

prov
e si

ngle
 and

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy p

ract
ices

. 
In th

e pa
st y

ear 
thes

e in
clud

ed: 
 

  
66..66..

11  PP
oolliicc

yy  aann
dd  PP

rroocc
eedduu

rreess  
AAuudd

iitt  2200
1133//

1144  
A ke

y ro
le o

f the
 LS

CB 
as o

utlin
ed i

n W
orki

ng T
oge

ther
 to 

Safe
gua

rd C
hild

ren 
201

3  is
 to 

dev
elop

 loc
al p

olic
y an

d gu
idan

ce a
nd 

ens
ure 

that
 

this
 is a

cce
ssib

le to
 the

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy n

etw
ork.

   
  

Page 67



  3
2

 

 

The
 aud

it in
volv

ed a
 tick

 bo
x su

rvey
 wh

ereb
y re

spo
nde

nts 
wer

e as
ked

 wh
ethe

r th
ey w

ere 
awa

re o
f a 

doc
ume

nt, h
ad u

sed
 it a

nd 
if so

, ho
w 

use
ful i

t wa
s. T

his 
was

 con
fine

d to
 loc

al g
uida

nce
 rat

her 
than

 Lon
don

 or 
nati

ona
l gu

idan
ce. 

Ret
urns

 we
re la

rgel
y fro

m h
ealt

h p
rofe

ssio
nals

. 
The

 res
ults

 pro
vide

d so
me 

reas
sura

nce
 con

cern
ing 

the 
deg

ree 
to w

hich
 cur

rent
 pol

icies
 we

re k
now

n an
d un

ders
tood

, bu
t als

o id
enti

fied
 som

e 
poli

cies
 wh

ich 
requ

ired
 gre

ater
 em

pha
sis. 

The
 aud

it al
so h

ighl
ight

ed s
ome

 are
as o

f ov
erla

p or
 dup

lica
tion

, wh
ich 

hav
e be

en a
ddr

ess
ed. 

 
 66..66..

22  SS
cchhoo

oollss  
aauudd

iitt  2200
1133//

1144  
Dur

ing 
the 

yea
r an

 aud
it w

as u
nde

rtak
en o

f ho
w a

ll Ha
ring

ey s
cho

ols 
are 

und
erta

king
 the

ir sa
fegu

ardi
ng d

utie
s, a

s de
scri

bed
 und

er S
ecti

ons
 

157
 and

 175
 of t

he E
duc

atio
n Ac

t 20
02. 

We 
use

d a 
self

-aud
it to

ol w
hich

 has
 bee

n de
velo

ped
 to a

llow
 sch

ools
 to r

evie
w th

eir o
wn 

prac
tice

.   
 Alth

oug
h no

t all
 sch

ools
 com

plet
ed t

he a
udit

, the
 res

ults
 we

re b
road

ly c
ons

iste
nt a

nd e
nco

urag
ing.

  
 

 
All r

etur
ns i

den
tifie

d cl
ear 

arra
nge

men
ts in

 rela
tion

 to t
he D

esig
nate

d S
afeg

uard
ing 

Lea
d an

d D
epu

ty a
nd t

rain
ing 

for t
his 

role
  

 
The

re w
as c

omp
lian

ce w
ith s

taff 
train

ing 
and

 all 
had

 bee
n tr

aine
d at

 lea
st e

very
 3 y

ears
 and

 in m
any

 cas
es m

ore 
freq

uen
tly. 

 Va
riou

s 
met

hod
s of

 del
iver

y w
ere 

use
d in

clud
ing 

on l
ine 

train
ing,

 cas
cad

e by
 the

 De
sign

ated
 Lea

d an
d ex

tern
ally 

com
mis

sion
ed t

rain
ing.

   
 

All r
etur

ns e
vide

nce
d co

mpl
ianc

e w
ith C

hild
 Pro

tect
ion 

poli
cies

 and
 pro

ced
ures

 wh
ich 

are 
clea

rly c
omm

unic
ated

 to s
taff 

  
 

One
 sch

ool 
iden

tifie
d th

e ne
ed t

o re
view

 the
 pol

icy 
on s

taff 
con

duc
t to 

ens
ure 

it in
clud

ed b
eha

viou
r ou

tsid
e of

 the
 sch

ool 
  

 
Sch

ools
 are

 usi
ng 

vari
ed 

and
 cre

ativ
e m

ean
s of

 pro
mot

ing 
com

mun
icat

ion 
with

 ch
ildre

n an
d yo

ung
 pe

ople
 an

d p
rovi

ding
 sup

port
. 

The
se i

nclu
de i

nitia
tive

s su
ch a

s Ci
rcle

 Tim
e an

d w
orks

hop
s on

 top
ics 

suc
h as

 bul
lying

 
 

All r
esp

ond
ents

 ide
ntifi

ed a
rran

gem
ents

 for
 cou

nse
lling

 and
 pas

tora
l su

ppo
rt w

here
 nee

ded
 and

 pup
il vo

ice 
was

 refl
ecte

d vi
a su

rvey
s 

and
 que

stio
nna

ires
  

 
E sa

fety
 pol

icy 
and

 aw
aren

ess
 wa

s un
iver

sally
 me

ntio
ned

  
 

All s
cho

ols 
are 

usin
g th

e C
AF a

nd r
epo

rt th
at s

taff 
hav

e re
ceiv

ed a
ppr

opri
ate 

train
ing 

 
All s

cho
ols 

gav
e ex

amp
les 

of h
ow 

they
 ma

inta
in c

onta
ct w

ith p
aren

ts a
nd p

rovi
ded

 info
rma

tion
 and

 adv
ice 

on i
ssu

es s
uch

 as 
e sa

fety
 

 
The

re w
ere 

man
y ex

amp
les 

give
n of

 how
 the

 sch
ool 

has
 use

d th
e cu

rricu
lum

 to p
rom

ote 
safe

gua
rdin

g, fo
r ex

amp
le, t

hrou
gh P

HSE
 and

 
initi

ativ
es s

uch
 as 

anti
 bul

lying
 we

ek, 
ass

emb
lies 

and
 visi

ts fr
om 

orga
nisa

tion
s su

ch a
s St

one
wal

l    
 

The
 De

sign
ated

 Ch
ild P

rote
ctio

n le
ad 

is e
vide

nce
d a

s p
layin

g a
n a

ctiv
e ro

le in
 att

end
ing 

rele
van

t m
eeti

ngs
, CP

 co
nfer

enc
es, 

core
 

grou
ps e

tc o
r in 

som
e ca

ses
 del

ega
ting

 wh
ere 

they
 are

 una
ble 

to a
tten

d  
 

Rec
ruitm

ent 
and

 Sel
ecti

on d
emo

nstr
ated

 com
plia

nce
  

          

Page 68



3
3

 

 

AArree
aass  ff

oorr  DD
eevvee

llooppmm
eenntt  

  
  

 
Role

 of G
ove

rnin
g B

ody
 : S

eve
ral s

cho
ols 

in th
e sa

mpl
e id

enti
fied

 tha
t thi

s w
as a

n ar
ea f

or r
evie

w o
r fur

ther
 dev

elop
men

t, fo
r ex

amp
le, 

in re
latio

n to
 trai

ning
 and

 mo
nito

ring
 CP

 arra
nge

men
ts   

 
Man

y sc
hoo

ls h
ad u

sed
 this

 to i
den

tify 
a ne

ed f
or u

pda
ting

 som
e of

 the
ir po

licie
s an

d pr
oce

dure
s  

  CCoonn
cclluuss

iioonnss
      

 This
 is t

he f
irst 

time
 tha

t sc
hoo

ls h
ave

 bee
n in

volv
ed i

n a 
safe

gua
rdin

g au
dit, 

and
 fee

dba
ck s

ugg
ests

 tha
t thi

s ha
s be

en a
 use

ful e
xpe

rien
ce i

n 
high

ligh
ting

 are
as f

or d
eve

lopm
ent 

and
 rev

iew
. So

me 
sch

ools
 hav

e un
dert

ake
n th

is in
 par

tner
ship

 wit
h a 

repr
ese

ntat
ive 

of th
e G

ove
rnin

g B
ody

 
whi

ch h
as e

nab
led 

a co
here

nt re
view

 of s
afeg

uard
ing 

prac
tice

 and
 com

plia
nce

.   
The

 find
ings

 ind
icat

e a 
stro

ng s
afeg

uard
ing 

etho
s in

 tho
se s

cho
ols 

that
 res

pon
ded

, wi
th m

any
 exa

mpl
es o

f ho
w th

e cu
rricu

lum
 can

 be 
use

d to
 

pro
mot

e pr
otec

tion
. Th

ere 
is e

vide
nce

 of 
rob

ust 
arra

nge
men

ts fo
r De

sign
ated

 Lea
ds, 

the 
deli

very
 of 

train
ing 

and
 dis

sem
inat

ion 
of g

uida
nce

. 
How

eve
r, cu

rren
tly i

t is 
not 

pos
sibl

e to
 det

erm
ine 

whe
ther

 the
 res

pon
ding

 sch
ools

 are
 a r

epre
sen

tativ
e sa

mpl
e of

 sch
ools

, or
 wh

ethe
r th

ose
 

sch
ools

 mo
st c

omm
itted

 to 
safe

gua
rdin

g w
here

 mo
re li

kely
 to 

resp
ond

. Th
e bo

ard 
agre

ed a
 set

 of 
acti

ons
 for

 201
4-1

5 to
 fur

ther
 stre

ngth
en 

the 
eng

age
men

t of 
sch

ools
 in t

he w
ork 

of th
e Bo

ard.
 

 
66..66..

33  PP
rriivvaa

ttee  FF
oossttee

rriinngg
  DDaa

ttaa::  
 As a

t 31
/03/

14 t
here

 are
 15 

chil
dren

 and
 you

ng p
eop

le o
pen

 to 
the 

priv
ate 

fost
erin

g te
am,

 and
 one

 sib
ling

 wh
o is

 not
 con

side
red

 as 
priv

atel
y 

fost
ered

 due
 to h

is a
ge. 

 The
re h

ave
 bee

n 10
 enq

uirie
s/no

tific
atio

ns s
ince

 No
vem

ber 
201

3 (n
o da

ta a
vaila

ble 
from

 the
 per

iod 
Apr

il  
Nov

emb
er 2

013
)  5

 led
 to r

efer
rals

 
and

 are
 now

 ope
n ca

ses
.   

 12 c
ase

s ha
ve c

lose
d si

nce
 Ap

ril 2
013

  
 Chil

d an
d Fa

mily
 Ass

ess
men

ts a
re c

urre
ntly

 bei
ng c

arrie
d ou

t on
 9 o

f the
 14 

ope
n ca

ses
 to 

ass
ess

 thr
esh

olds
 for

 Ch
ild i

n N
eed

 and
 wh

ethe
r 

CIN
 pla

ns a
re re

quir
ed i

n ad
ditio

n to
 sup

port
/mo

nito
ring

 und
er p

riva
tely

 fos
terin

g re
gula

tion
s 

 
 

Page 69



  3
4

 

 

66..66..
44  VV

ooiiccee
  ooff  

tthhee  
CChhii

lldd    
 It w

as a
gree

d th
at a

 sur
vey

 wo
uld 

be d
eve

lope
d us

ing 
the 

View
poin

t sy
stem

 to d
irec

tly c
omm

unic
ate 

with
 chi

ldre
n an

d yo
ung

 peo
ple 

abo
ut a

 
rang

e of
 saf

egu
ardi

ng i
ssu

es. 
View

poin
t is 

an o
n lin

e re
sou

rce 
that

 ena
bles

 dire
ct s

urve
y w

ork 
with

 par
ticip

ants
. It i

s al
read

y in
 use

 in H
arin

gey
 

to g
aug

e th
e vi

ews
 of p

artic
ular

 coh
orts

 of y
oun

g pe
ople

, for
 exa

mpl
e, y

oun
g pe

ople
 wh

o ar
e lo

oke
d af

ter. 
Sch

ools
 we

re in
vite

d to
 par

ticip
ate 

in th
is w

ork,
 ask

ing 
que

stio
ns a

bou
t the

ir sa
fety

 and
 we

lfare
 at s

cho
ol, a

t ho
me 

and
 trav

ellin
g ou

t an
d ab

out 
in H

arin
gey

. Th
e su

rvey
 pro

duc
ed 

a lim
ited

 am
oun

t of 
use

ful i
nfor

mat
ion 

to in
form

 the
 wo

rk o
f the

 LS
CB.

 
 Wor

k ha
s be

en u
nde

r wa
y to

 dis
sem

inat
e gu

idan
ce t

o al
l pa

rtne
rs o

n ef
fect

ive 
way

s of
 ens

urin
g th

at th
e vi

ews
 of 

chil
dren

 and
 you

ng p
eop

le 
info

rm 
the 

wor
k of

 eac
h ag

enc
y. E

ach
 age

ncy
 has

 the
ir ow

n m
etho

ds o
f ca

ptur
ing 

the 
view

s of
 chi

ldre
n an

d yo
ung

 pe
ople

, an
d th

e B
oard

 
com

mis
sion

ed 
an 

aud
it o

f th
e ra

nge
 of 

met
hod

olog
ies 

curr
entl

y em
ploy

ed. 
Give

n th
e w

ide-
rang

ing 
con

sult
atio

n sy
stem

s in
 pla

ce, 
it w

as 
dec

ided
 tha

t es
tabl

ishin
g a 

furth
er m

ech
anis

m s
pec

ifica
lly f

or t
he L

SCB
 wo

uld 
be d

ispr
opo

rtion
ate.

 All 
age

ncie
s no

w in
clud

e su
mm

arie
s of

 
the 

view
s of

 chi
ldre

n an
d yo

ung
 peo

ple 
with

in th
eir a

nnu
al s

afeg
uard

ing 
repo

rts t
hat 

the 
Boa

rd c
ons

ider
s. 

Page 70



3
5

 

 

66..77  
AAggee

nnccyy
  IInnss

ppeecc
ttiioonn

ss  

TThhee
mmaatt

iicc  NN
eeggllee

cctt  iinn
ssppee

ccttiioo
nn    

 
of n

egle
ct. T

he i
nsp

ecti
on r

esu
lted

 in a
 wid

e-
com

preh
ens

ive 
acti

on p
lan,

 wh
ich e

d
 i
n

 a
 w

id
e

-16
.  

PPrroo
bbaatt

iioonn  
  

Lon
don

 Pro
bati

on 
Trus

t w
as 

insp
ecte

d in
 Ja

nua
ry 2

014
 by

 HM
I Pr

oba
tion

. Th
is In

spe
ctio

n o
f Ad

ult 
Offe

ndin
g W

ork 
(IAO

W) 
also

 ha
d a

 
them

atic
 com

pon
ent 

focu
sed

 on 
safe

gua
rdin

g ch
ildre

n.  
The

 rep
ort 

was
 pu

blis
hed

 in 
May

 20
14 

and
 in 

rela
tion

 to 
safe

gua
rdin

g c
hild

ren 
Insp

ecto
rs a

ckn
owl

edg
ed 

that
 sta

tuto
ry r

elat
ions

hips
 wit

h 
part

ners
 we

re s
tron

g a
nd 

effe
ctiv

e; m
ost 

staf
f ha

d a
ppr

opri
ate 

train
ing 

in r
elat

ion 
to c

hild
 pro

tect
ion 

in th
e la

st 2
 yea

rs a
nd 

Mul
ti-A

gen
cy 

Safe
gua

rdin
g H

ub (
MA

SH)
 arr

ang
eme

nts 
wor

ked
 rea

lly w
ell. 

How
eve

r, m
ore 

was
 nee

ded
 to 

be d
one

 in t
erm

s of
 ens

urin
g M

APP
A a

nd c
hild

 
prot

ecti
on o

utco
mes

 are
 full

y re
flec

ted 
in s

ente
nce

 pla
nnin

g, fo
llow

 thro
ugh

 wit
h ho

me 
visit

s an
d re

pea
t wh

ere 
app

ropr
iate

, ca
rry o

ut p
erio

dic 
che

cks
 wit

h C
SC 

and
 Po

lice
 du

ring
 the

 Or
der 

or L
icen

ce, 
reco

rd d
ecis

ions
 fro

m c
hild

 pro
tect

ion 
con

fere
nce

s an
d fo

llow
 thr

oug
h o

n a
ny 

acti
ons

 and
, eff

ecti
ve m

ana
gem

ent 
ove

rsig
ht in

 all 
cas

es i
nvo

lving
 saf

egu
ardi

ng c
hild

ren 
issu

es ..  
 

eme
nt, 

The
se A

reas
 for 

Imp
rove

men
t wi

ll be
 tak

en f
orw

ard 
into

 the
 two

 new
 pro

bati
on o

rgan
isat

ions
 in 2

014
/15;

 the
 

Nat
iona

l Pro
bati

on S
ervi

ce a
nd t

he C
omm

unit
y Re

hab
ilitat

ion 
Com

pan
y an

d m
onit

ored
 thro

ugh
 con

tinu
ed i

nter
nal 

cas
e au

ditin
g. 

  
nt. O

fste
d 

en a
reas

 for 
imp

rove
men

t 
wer

e id
enti

fied
, inc

ludi
ng t

he n
eed

 to a
cce

lera
te th

e ro
ll-ou

t of 
a co

mpr
ehe

nsiv
e ea

rly h
elp 

offe
r, fu

rthe
r im

prov
e pe

rfor
man

ce a
roun

d th
e 

time
line

ss a
nd r

igou
r of 

ass
ess

men
ts, a

nd e
nsu

re th
at s

trate
gy m

eeti
ngs

 app
ropr

iate
ly e

nga
ge a

ll re
leva

nt a
gen

cies
. Th

e LS
CB 

revi
ewe

d th
e 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 r
ig

o
u
r
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 
a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
r
e
 t
h
a

t 
s
tr
a

te
g
y
 m

e
e

ti
n
g
s
 a

p
p
r
o
p

r
ia

te
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e

a
ll 

r
e
le

v
a
n

t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 L
S
C omm

ente
d on

. Th
e 

   

Page 71



  3
6

 

 

  66..88  
SSuumm

mmaarr
yy  aann

dd  CC
oonncc

lluussii
oonnss

  
This

 rep
ort 

aim
s to

 refl
ect 

the 
curr

ent 
stat

e of
 saf

egu
ardi

ng a
ctiv

ity a
cros

s H
arin

gey
 and

 som
e of

 the
 wo

rk th
at h

as g
one

 on 
in th

e la
st y

ear.
 

Man
y ar

eas
 of t

he w
ork 

the 
LSC

B an
d its

 par
tner

s co
ndu

ct a
re c

onc
erne

d w
ith a

ctiv
ity o

r ou
tput

. It i
s no

t alw
ays

 eas
y to

 ide
ntify

 the
 out

com
e, 

or t
he r

esu
lt of

 the
 act

ions
 we

 tak
e, b

ut o
ur a

im i
s to

 try 
and

 ma
inta

in a
 foc

us o
n w

hat 
is h

app
enin

g on
 the

 fro
ntlin

e fo
r pr

acti
tion

ers 
and

 the
 

acti
ons

 tha
t ma

ke a
 diff

eren
ce t

o a 
chil

d o
r yo

ung
 per

son
. Th

e bo
ard 

will 
con

tinu
e to

 ask
 the

 que
stio

ns o
n ho

w w
ell a

re c
hild

ren 
and

 you
ng 

peo
ple 

help
ed, 

care
d fo

r an
d p

rote
cted

. Th
is w

ill s
ome

time
s in

volv
e m

akin
g in

form
ed 

judg
eme

nts 
abo

ut l
ikely

 im
pac

t, fo
r ex

amp
le, t

he 
effe

ctiv
ene

ss o
f tra

inin
g in

 hel
ping

 pro
fess

iona
ls ta

ke a
ctio

n if 
they

 are
 con

cern
ed a

bou
t a 

chil
d. T

he B
oard

 has
 kno

wle
dge

 of 
man

y of
 the

 
serv

ices
 tha

t the
 par

tner
s of

fer a
roun

d ea
rly h

elp 
and

 chi
ld p

rote
ctio

n, b
oth 

indi
vidu

ally 
and

 col
lect

ively
. In 

man
y ar

eas
 the

 boa
rd c

an s
ay t

hat 
part

ners
hip 

wor
king

 is g
ood

, for
 exa

mpl
e: th

e M
ASH

. 
The

 bo
ard 

has
 co

llec
tive

ly c
hall

eng
ed 

and
 ass

ured
 itse

lf ar
oun

d th
e e

ffec
tive

nes
s o

f sa
fegu

ardi
ng 

in a
 nu

mbe
r of

 are
as d

urin
g th

e ye
ar 

incl
udin

g:  
 

Info
rma

tion
 sha

ring
 

 
Sup

port
 to c

hild
ren 

exp
erie

ncin
g ne

glec
t 

 
Sch

ool 
safe

gua
rdin

g pr
acti

ce 
 

Mis
sing

 chi
ldre

n ch
eck

s 
 

Sup
port

 to c
hild

ren 
in c

are 
 

Role
 of c

hild
 pro

tect
ion 

adv
iser

s 
 

Role
 of M

ASH
 

 
Thre

sho
lds 

 
Stru

ctur
e ch

ang
es w

ithin
 CY

PS 

Page 72



  3
7

 

 

 
Earl

y he
lp p

athw
ays

 
 

Gan
gs s

trate
gy 

Exte
rnal

 ins
pec

tion
s ha

ve s
ugg

este
d th

at th
e qu

ality
 of 

safe
gua

rdin
g pr

ovis
ion 

in a
ll pa

rtne
r ag

enc
ies 

mee
ts s

tatu
tory

 req
uire

men
ts, a

nd t
he 

key
 les

son
s ar

e su
mm

aris
ed a

bov
e. H

owe
ver,

 a n
umb

er o
f co

mm
on f

acto
rs c

an p
rese

nt c
hall

eng
es t

o th
e qu

ality
 of p

ract
ice 

on t
he g

roun
d. 

The
 fina

ncia
l pr

ess
ures

 fac
ed 

by a
ll ag

enc
ies 

hav
e ha

d a
n im

pac
t on

 the
 ser

vice
s th

at c
hild

ren 
and

 fam
ilies

 rec
eive

. So
me 

part
ners

 fac
ed 

eno
rmo

us c
hall

eng
es i

n re
crui

ting
 suf

ficie
nt s

taff 
to fi

ll av
aila

ble 
pos

ts, p
artic

ular
ly in

 the
 eas

t of 
the 

boro
ugh

 wh
ere 

man
y so

cial
 pro

blem
s ar

e 
at th

eir m
ost 

sev
ere.

 Ha
ring

ey c
onti

nue
s to

 targ
et th

e of
fer o

f he
alth

y ch
ild p

rogr
amm

e to
 tho

se c
hild

ren 
mos

t in 
nee

d. 
Man

y se
rvic

es h
ave

 intr
odu

ced
 cha

nge
s in

 ma
nag

eme
nt s

truc
ture

s, a
s pa

rt o
f th

eir r
esp

ons
e to

 fina
ncia

l pre
ssu

res,
 wit

h co
nse

que
nt la

ck o
f 

con
tinu

ity i
n ap

pro
ach

. Go
od 

qua
lity 

safe
gua

rdin
g p

ract
ice 

dep
end

s up
on 

con
tinu

ities
 at 

all l
eve

ls o
f th

e sy
stem

, an
d fr

equ
ent 

cha
nge

s in
 

pers
onn

el c
an i

mpa
ct o

n th
e qu

ality
 of c

are 
that

 chi
ldre

n an
d fa

milie
s re

ceiv
e, a

nd o
n th

e qu
ality

 of m
ulti-

age
ncy

 par
tner

ship
. 

The
 hig

h le
vels

 of 
chil

dren
 wit

hin 
the 

chil
d p

rote
ctio

n sy
stem

 wit
hin 

Har
inge

y co
ntin

ue t
o m

ake
 it c

hall
eng

ing 
for 

the 
auth

ority
 to 

affo
rd t

he 
des

ired
 ran

ge o
f Ea

rly H
elp 

serv
ices

. Pa
rtne

rs a
re c

lear
 abo

ut t
he i

mpo
rtan

ce o
f se

ekin
g to

 tra
nsfe

r re
sou

rces
 tow

ards
 ear

ly h
elp 

and
 aw

ay 
from

 sup
por

ting
 chi

ldre
n on

 chi
ld p

rote
ctio

n pl
ans

 or i
n ca

re; b
ut th

e pr
oce

ss o
f ma

nag
ing 

suc
h a 

cha
nge

 is c
hall

eng
ing 

for a
ll se

rvic
es. 

. 
   

Page 73



3
8

 

 

77..  PP
rriioorr

iittiieess
  ffoorr

  220011
44--  22

001155
  

The
se p

riori
ties

 inc
lude

 prio
ritie

s ch
ose

n as
 a re

sult
 of l

oca
l iss

ues
 and

 dem
and

s an
d w

ill b
e ad

dres
sed

 ove
r 20

14-
16 b

y th
e B

oard
. Th

ey w
ill 

be 
inco

rpor
ated

 into
 wo

rk p
lans

 aim
ed 

at im
prov

ing 
outc

ome
s pr

ogre
sse

d th
roug

h th
e B

oard
s ag

end
a, o

r ad
dres

sed
 mo

re s
pec

ifica
lly b

y 
sub

 gro
ups

 or t
ask

 gro
ups

. 
 

PPRRII
OORRII

TTYY  
OONN

EE  GG
aanngg

ss    
Stre

ngth
enin

g th
e co

nne
ctio

ns b
etw

een
 wo

rk a
roun

d a)
 mis

sing
 chi

ldre
n, C

SE 
and

 gan
gs, 

b) s
upp

ortin
g an

d m
onit

orin
g th

e de
velo

pme
nt o

f a 
mul

ti-ag
enc

y re
spo

nse
, an

d c)
 ass

ess
ing 

the 
effe

ctiv
ene

ss o
f ea

rly i
nter

ven
tion

 in r
edu

cing
 gan

g m
emb

ersh
ip 

 
PPRRII

OORRII
TTYY  

TTWW
OO - 

EEaarr
llyy  HH

eellpp  
Scr

utin
ise 

the 
mov

e to
war

ds s
tren

gthe
ning

 ear
ly h

elp 
offe

r ac
ross

 Ha
ring

ey, 
see

king
 ass

uran
ce o

n th
e co

mm
on u

nde
rsta

ndin
g of

 def
initi

ons
, 

on t
he i

mpa
ct o

n ch
ild p

rote
ctio

n se
rvic

es, 
and

 on 
app

ropr
iate

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy e

nga
gem

ent.
 

 
PPRRII

OORRII
TTYY  

TTHHRR
EEEE 

 NNee
gglleecc

tt  
Imp

rovi
ng e

ffec
tive

nes
s of

 all 
age

ncie
s in

 rec
ogn

ising
 and

 res
pon

ding
 to n

egle
ct 

 
PPRRII

OORRII
TTYY  

FFOOUU
RR - 

PPrroo
mmoott

iinngg  
ggoooo

dd  pp
rraacctt

iiccee 
Shif

t the
 ove

rall 
bala

nce
 of o

ur a
ctiv

ities
 mo

re to
war

ds i
den

tifyi
ng a

nd p
rom

otin
g el

eme
nts 

of g
ood

 pra
ctic

e. 
 

PPRRII
OORRII

TTYY  
FFIIVV

EE - 
EEnngg

aaggiinn
gg  tthh

ee  vvoo
iicceess

  ooff  
cchhiill

ddrree
nn  aann

dd  yyoo
uunngg

  ppeeoo
ppllee 

Iden
tify 

an e
ffec

tive
 and

 pro
port

iona
te w

ay o
f tap

ping
 into

 the
 alre

ady
 ava

ilab
le v

iew
s of

 chi
ldre

n an
d yo

ung
 peo

ple,
 to i

nfor
m th

e w
ork 

of th
e 

LSC
B   

Page 74



3
9

 

 

SSeecc
ttiioonn

  88  BB
uussiinn

eessss
  PPllaa

nn  2200
1144  

  220011
66  

This
 bus

ines
s pl

an o
utlin

es t
he a

gree
d pr

iorit
ies 

and
 act

ions
 to b

e un
dert

ake
n by

 the
 Bo

ard 
and

 its 
part

ners
 to d

elive
r thi

s 
prio

ritie
s.    

This
 bus

ines
s pl

an o
utlin

es t
he a

gree
d pr

iorit
ies 

and
 act

ions
 to b

e un
dert

ake
n by

 the
 Bo

ard 
and

 its 
part

ners
 to d

elive
r thi

s 
prio

ritie
s. T

he a
ctio

ns a
lso 

take
 into

 acc
oun

t are
as o

f im
prov

eme
nt a

s id
enti

fied
 in t

he M
ay 2

014
 Ofs

ted 
revi

ew 
of th

e LS
CB.

 
P1 

AAcctt
iioonn 

LLeeaa
dd  

ggrroo
uupp//

ppeerr
ssoonn

 
BByy  

WWhh
eenn 

EEvviidd
eenncc

ee  rree
qquuiirr

eedd 
1 

Rev
iew

 th
e c

urre
nt 

rang
e o

f 
mul

ti-ag
enc

y 
grou

ps 
wor

king
 

with
 hig

hly 
vuln

erab
le g

roup
s of

 
you

ng 
peo

ple 
(gan

gs, 
CSE

, 
mis

sing
 

chil
dren

, 
viol

enc
e 

aga
inst

 wo
men

 & 
girls

, et
c) &

 
reco

mm
end

 
(if 

app
ropr

iate
) 

mor
e fu

ncti
ona

l & 
prop

ortio
nate

 
syst

ems
  

Vuln
erab

le 
 

Mar
ch 2

015
 

    Sep
 14 

Wor
k pl

ans
 of e

xist
ing 

grou
ps 

 Stat
istic

al 
info

rma
tion

 fro
m 

mul
ti-

age
ncy

 par
tner

s 
 Risk

 ass
ess

men
ts 

OOFFSS
TTEEDD

  22 -
 

 
CSE

 mu
lti-a

gen
cy g

uida
nce

 and
 

con
side

r 
whe

ther
 

the 
invo

lvem
ent 

or a
sso

ciat
ion 

with
 

gan
gs 

by 
you

ng 
wom

en 
sho

uld 
be 

incl
ude

d a
s a

 ris
k fa

ctor
 to 

stre
ngth

en 
arra

nge
men

ts 
to 

prov
ide 

a c
oord

inat
ed 

resp
ons

e 
to 

this
 v

ulne
rabl

e 
grou

p 
of 

you
ng p

eop
le. 

Page 75



4
0

 

 

2 
Com

plet
e 

Mis
sing

 
Chil

dren
 

stra
tegy

, em
pha

sisin
g th

e li
nks

 
to g

ang
s 

Vuln
erab

le 
 

Mar
ch 2

015
 

 Nov
 201

4 
All a

gen
cy l

oca
l str

ateg
ies 

to in
form

 
the 

mul
ti-ag

enc
y o

vers
ight

 by
 th

e 
LSC

B 
OOFFSS

TTEEDD
  44 

--  E
nsu

re 
that

 th
e 

Boa
rd r

ece
ives

 an 
ann

ual 
repo

rt 
on 

chil
dren

 mis
sing

 fro
m h

ome
, 

mis
sing

 fro
m c

are 
and

 mi
ssin

g 
from

 ed
uca

tion
 to 

ass
ure 

itse
lf 

that
 ap

prop
riate

 pro
ces

ses
 an

d 
prac

tice
 a

re 
in 

plac
e 

to 
safe

gua
rd t

his 
vuln

erab
le g

roup
 

of c
hild

ren 
and

 yo
ung

 pe
ople

. 
o

f 
c
h
ild

r
e
n

 
a
n
d

 
y
o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

ann
ual 

repo
rt a

rran
gem

ents
 to

 
incl

ude
 an

 eva
luat

ion 
of s

ervi
ce 

resp
ons

es 
for 

mis
sing

 ch
ildre

n, 
to s

upp
ort 

mul
ti-ag

enc
y ac

tion
s 

and
 re

duc
e 

risk
s 

pos
ed 

to 
chil

dren
 

3 
Com

plet
e a

nd 
imp

lem
ent 

CSE
 

stra
tegy

 
Vuln

erab
le 

 
Dec

emb
er 2

014
 

Clea
r e

vide
nce

 o
f m

ulti-
age

ncy
 

sys
tem

s 
OOFFSS

TTEEDD
  33 -

 Ac
cele

rate
 pla

ns t
o 

form
ally 

agre
e t

he 
draf

t C
SE 

stra
tegy

 an
d e

nsu
re i

t is 
clea

rly 
link

ed 
to t

he 
gan

g a
ctio

n p
lan.

 
Mak

e cl
ear 

how
 the

 stra
tegy

 wil
l 

link
 to

 fro
nt-li

ne 
prac

tice
, an

d 
wha

t s
ucc

ess
 cr

iteri
a w

ill b
e 

use
d to

 me
asu

re a
nd 

eva
luat

e 
prog

ress
. 

4 
Rev

iew
 eng

age
men

t of
 dis

able
d 

chil
dren

 wit
h ga

ngs
  

 
Disa

bled
 c

hild
ren 

poli
cy 

and
 re

view
 

grou
p  

Mar
ch 2

015
  

The
 LS

CB 
will 

hav
e th

e fin
ding

s o
f 

the 
revi

ew 
pres

ente
d to

 the
 LS

CB 
boa

rd 
and

 
the 

Cha
ir 

or 
repr

ese
ntat

ive 
will 

disc
uss

 fin
ding

s 

Page 76



4
1

 

 

with
 ap

prop
riate

 str
ateg

ic l
ead

s to
 

ass
ure 

that
 the

 ne
eds

 of 
disa

bled
 

chil
dren

 a
ffec

ted 
by 

gan
gs 

is 
app

ropr
iate

 res
pon

ded
 to. 

5 
Rev

iew
 re

leva
nt 

perf
orm

anc
e 

data
 a

nd 
info

rma
tion

-sha
ring

 
syst

ems
  

 
Qua

lity 
Ass

uran
ce 

Sub
 gro

up  
Mar

ch 2
015

 
The

 
LSC

B 
perf

orm
anc

e 
man

age
men

t 
repo

rt. 
This

 w
ill 

inco
rpor

ate 
the 

find
ings

 o
f t

his 
revi

ew.
 

6 
Rev

iew
 the

 im
pac

t of
 the

 Ea
rly 

Help
 o

ffer 
on 

futu
re 

gan
gs 

eng
age

men
t 

 
Vuln

erab
le 

Bes
t pr

acti
ce g

roup
  Mar

ch 2
015

 
The

 find
ings

 will
 be 

pres
ente

d to
 the

 
LSC

B a
nd 

incl
ude

d in
 th

e a
nnu

al 
repo

rt 14
/15.

  
7 

Mak
e t

his 
a f

eatu
re 

of 
our 

Sec
tion

 11 
revi

ew 
 

Qua
lity 

Ass
uran

ce 
grou

p  
Dec

emb
er 2

014
 

The
 S1

1 au
dit 

will 
hav

e g
ang

s as
 a 

safe
gua

rdin
g ar

rang
eme

nts.
  

P2 
AAcctt

iioonn 
LLeeaa

dd  
ggrroo

uupp//
ppeerr

ssoonn
 

BByy  
WWhh

eenn 
EEvviidd

eenncc
ee  rree

qquuiirr
eedd 

1 
Agr

ee 
proc

ess
 of 

LSC
B re

gula
r 

eng
age

men
t 

in 
earl

y 
help

 
stra

tegy
 

 
Bes

t 
Pra

ctic
e 

Gro
up/C

hair
 

Mar
ch 2

015
 

A c
omp

lete
d d

etai
led 

plan
 on

 ho
w 

the 
LSC

B w
ill e

nga
ge w

ith t
he e

arly
 

help
 str

ateg
y w

ill b
e in

clud
ed 

in th
e 

Ann
ual 

repo
rt 20

14/1
5. 

2 
Rev

iew
 the

 de
finit

ions
 us

ed 
by 

part
ners

 in r
elat

ion 
to e

arly
 hel

p 
 

Bes
t 

Pra
ctic

e 
Gro

up  
Mar

ch 2
015

 
The

 
LSC

B 
will 

ens
ure 

the 
part

ners
hip 

hav
e 

a 
clea

r 
und

erst
and

ing 
of 

the 
defi

nitio
n o

f 
earl

y h
elp,

 p
lus 

list 
of 

curr
ent 

defi
nitio

ns 
3 

See
k a

ssu
ranc

e th
at p

ropo
sals

 
to e

xpa
nd t

he e
arly

 hel
p of

fer d
o 

not 
imp

act 
neg

ativ
ely 

on 
chil

d 
Cha

ir  
Mar

ch 2
015

 
Tbd

 
 a

gree
 k

ey 
perf

orm
anc

e 
indi

cato
rs 

with
 

Earl
y 

Help
 

Page 77



4
2

 

 

prot
ecti

on s
ervi

ces
 

 
Par

tner
ship

 Bo
ard,

 & 
agre

e re
gula

r 
repo

rting
 to B

oard
  

4 
curr

ent 
train

ing 
offe

r 
 

Trai
ning

 
and

 
lear

ning
 gro

up  
Sep

tem
ber 

201
5 

All 
LSC

B 
com

mis
sion

ed 
and

 
deli

vere
d tr

aini
ng w

ill b
e re

view
ed t

o 
ens

ure 
earl

y h
elp 

is a
ppr

opri
atel

y 
incl

ude
d. 

Cou
rses

 w
ill b

e q
uali

ty 
ass

ured
. 

5 
Mak

e t
his 

a f
eatu

re 
of 

our 
Sec

tion
 11 

revi
ew 

 
Qua

lity 
Ass

uran
ce 

Gro
up  

Dec
emb

er 2
014

 
  

The
 S1

1 au
dit w

ill h
ave

 ear
ly h

elp 
as 

a th
eme

d a
rea 

to a
sse

ss 
age

ncie
s 

safe
gua

rdin
g ar

rang
eme

nts.
 

P3 
AAcctt

iioonn 
LLeeaa

dd  
ggrroo

uupp//
ppeerr

ssoonn
 

BByy  
WWhh

eenn 
EEvviidd

eenncc
ee 

1 
Sign

 off 
Neg

lect
 Str

ateg
y  

 
Bes

t 
Pra

ctic
e 

Gro
up  

Sep
tem

ber 
201

4 
  

The
 de

velo
pme

nt a
nd 

mon
itori

ng 
of 

the 
neg

lect
 stra

tegy
 wil

l be
 inc

lude
d 

in th
e w

ork 
plan

 of t
he B

est 
Pra

ctic
e 

grou
p. 

2 
Ove

rsee
 d

elive
ry 

of 
Neg

lect
 

Stra
tegy

  
 

Bes
t Pr

acti
ce  

Mar
ch 2

016
 

3 
Mak

e t
his 

a f
eatu

re 
of 

our 
Sec

tion
 11 

revi
ew 

 
Qua

lity 
Ass

uran
ce 

Gro
up  

Dec
emb

er 2
014

  
The

 S1
1 au

dit w
ill h

ave
 neg

lect
 as 

a 
them

ed 
area

 to
 as

ses
s a

gen
cies

 
safe

gua
rdin

g ar
rang

eme
nts.

 
P4 

AAcctt
iioonn 

LLeeaa
dd  

ggrroo
uupp//

ppeerr
ssoonn

 
BByy  

WWhh
eenn 

EEvviidd
eenncc

ee 
1 

Cre
ate 

an a
nnu

al G
ood

 pra
ctic

e 
in 

Safe
gua

rdin
g 

Awa
rd ti

c
e
  

perh
aps

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

a w
ider

 Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Oct

obe
r 20

15 
The

 LS
CB 

will 
incl

ude
 the

 de
tails

 of 
the 

awa
rd w

inne
rs i

n th
eir 

201
5/16

 
ann

ual 
repo

rt.  

Page 78



4
3

 

 

Har
inge

y A
war

ds s
che

me;
 inv

ite 
nom

inat
ions

 fo
r e

xam
ples

 o
f 

effe
ctiv

e m
ulti-

age
ncy

 pr
acti

ce, 
crea

te p
osit

ive 
pub

licity
 aro

und
 

the 
awa

rds  
 

2 
Dev

elop
 a

 p
rogr

amm
e 

for 
diss

emi
nati

ng e
xam

ples
 of 

goo
d 

prac
tice

 in s
afeg

uard
ing 

thro
ugh

 
exis

ting
 a

gen
cy 

new
slet

ters
. 

Hav
e re

gula
r slo

ts in
 ag

enc
y e-

H
a
v
e
 r

e
g
u
la

r
 s

lo
ts

 i
n

 a
g
e
n
c
y
 e

e-b
ulle

tin, 
CCG

 new
slet

ter e
tc). 

  
 

Cha
ir/Tr

aini
ng 

Offi
cer 

Nov
emb

er 2
014

 
Loc

al 
and

 n
atio

nal 
safe

gua
rdin

g 
new

s w
ill b

e av
aila

ble 
to a

ll pa
rtne

rs 
via 

the 
LSC

B 
and

 th
eir 

inte
rnal

 
com

mun
icat

ions
. 

3 
Des

ign 
and

 de
liver

 at 
leas

t on
e 

spe
cific

 
cam

paig
n, 

in 
part

ners
hip 

with
 loc

al a
gen

cies
. 

 The
se w

ill in
clud

e S
CR 

lear
ning

, 
FGM

 in
 s

cho
ols 

and
 t

he 
com

mun
ity, 

prom
otin

g p
osit

ive 
pare

ntin
g a

nd 
invo

lving
 ch

ildre
n 

and
 you

ng p
eop

le. 
    

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r/Tr
aini

ng 
Offi

cer 
July

 201
5 

The
 LS

CB 
will 

hav
e a

gree
d a

 on
e 

yea
r  ca

mpa
ign 

pro
gram

me 
 firs

t to
 

run 
Jan

/Ap
ril 1

5 o
n le

arni
ng 

from
 

SCR
s. 

4 
Rev

iew
 an

d u
pda

te b
rand

ing 
of 

LSC
B.  

    
 

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Mar

ch 2
015

 
The

 LSC
B w

ill re
-lau

nch
 its 

visio
n fo

r 
safe

gua
rdin

g ch
ildre

n in
 Ha

ring
ey. 

 

5 
Dev

elop
 a n

ew 
visio

n fo
r LS

CB 
and

 3-5
 yea

r str
ateg

y  
Cha

ir/B
oard

  
July

 201
5 

Par
tner

s an
d th

e pu
blic

 wil
l be

 cle
ar 

Page 79



4
4

 

 

ens
urin

g sa
fegu

ardi
ng a

rran
gem

ents
 

in th
e bo

roug
h 

6 
Exp

lore
 

pote
ntia

l 
for 

E
x
p
lo

r
e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

fof  a 
prop

osa
l f

rom
 th

e 
volu

ntar
y 

sec
tor 

to a
ctiv

ely 
eng

age
 loc

al 
peo

ple 
in s

pec
ific 

safe
gua

rdin
g 

acti
vitie

s.  

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Sep

tem
ber 

201
5 

The
 

chil
dren

 
and

 
adu

lts 
safe

gua
rdin

g b
oard

s w
ith 

the 
third

 
sec

tor 
will 

disc
uss

 the
 via

bilit
y o

f 
this

 pro
pos

al.  
7 

OOFFSS
TTEEDD

  11-- 
Ens

ure 
that

 sch
ools

 
are 

fully
 inv

olve
d a

t Bo
ard 

leve
l 

so t
hat 

thei
r re

pres
enta

tion
s ar

e 
kno

wn,
 

und
erst

ood
 

and
 

con
side

red 
and

 
thei

r 
con

tribu
tion

 fu
lly 

harn
ess

ed 
to 

influ
enc

e th
e sh

ape
 of s

ervi
ces

. 
 

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Mar

ch 2
015

 
The

 bo
ard 

will 
be 

able
 to 

evid
enc

e 
clea

r d
ialo

gue
 an

d in
flue

nce
 fro

m 
sch

ools
 on 

the 
safe

gua
rdin

g ag
end

a 
whi

ch w
ill b

e o
utlin

ed 
in t

he a
nnu

al 
repo

rt.  

P5 
AAcctt

iioonn 
LLeeaa

dd  
ggrroo

uupp//
ppeerr

ssoonn
 

BByy  
WWhh

eenn 
EEvviidd

eenncc
ee 

1 
Exp

lore
 p

oten
tial 

for 
focu

s 
grou

ps 
of 

you
ng 

peo
ple 

to 
disc

uss
 pa

rticu
lar 

issu
es 

bas
ed 

arou
nd o

ur p
riori

ties
  

 

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Mar

ch 2
015

 
Eng

age
men

t of
 yo

ung
 pe

ople
 an

d 
part

icip
atio

n te
am 

 

2 
Exp

lore
 p

oss
ible

 w
ays

 o
f 

E
x
p
lo

r
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

w
a
y
s
 

o
f 

Nov
emb

er.  
 

Cha
ir/B

oard
 

Man
age

r 
Nov

emb
er 2

014
 

The
 LS

CB 
will 

hav
e en

gag
ed 

you
ng 

peo
ple 

in n
ew 

crea
tive

 wa
ys. 

 

Page 80



4
5

 

 

AApppp
eenndd

iixx  11
  

IInnccoo
mmee  

220011
33//11

44  AAggee
nnccyy

  CCoo
nnttrrii

bbuutt
iioonn  

AAmm
oouunn

tt  ££  
MET

ROP
OLI

TAN
 PO

LIC
E  

5,00
0.00

  
LOC

AL A
UTH

ORI
TY 

(incl
udin

g st
affin

g co
sts 

and
 cou

ncil 
emp

loye
r 

con
tribu

tion
 NI &

 Pen
sion

)   
180

,064
.00  

BEH
 Me

ntal
 He

alth
 ser

vice
s 

5,00
0.00

  
CAF

CAS
S 

550
.00  

Whi
tting

ton 
Hea

lth  
5,00

0.00
  

Nor
th M

iddl
ese

x H
osp

ital 
Hea

lth  
5,00

0.00
  

Pro
bati

on  
2,00

0.00
  

Tott
enh

am 
Hot

spu
r 

2,00
0.00

 
Har

inge
y CC

G 
 He

alth
 

5,00
0.00

 
DCS

 fun
ding

 
15,0

00.0
0 

Bud
get 

carr
ied 

ove
r fro

m 
47,0

00.0
0 

 
271

,614
.00 

Page 81



  4
6

 

 

EExxpp
eenndd

iittuurr
ee  2200

1133//
1144  EExxpp

eenndd
iittuurr

ee  --  
11sstt  

AApprr
iill  ttoo

  3311ss
tt  MM

aarrcchh
  220011

44  
  

  
AAmm

oouunn
tt  ££  

Adm
inist

ratio
n/st

affin
g S

taff 
wag

es (
2.5 

inclu
ding

 sta
ffing

 cos
ts a

nd 
cou

ncil 
emp

loye
r co

ntrib
utio

n NI
 & P

ens
ion)

,  
pho

ne, 
stat

iona
ry, e

quip
men

t ex
clud

ing 
HE 

108
,055

.69 

Cat
erin

g  
Ref

resh
men

ts: t
rain

ing 
and

 ext
end

ed 
mee

ting
s  

523
.10 

Inde
pen

den
t 

con
sult

ants
  

Cha
irs, 

3 x 
ove

rvie
w w

riter
s, a

udit
ors 

incl
udin

g H
E  

115
,810

.95 
Trai

ners
  

Exte
rnal

 trai
ners

  
14,5

69.0
0 

Ven
ue  

Mee
ting

s an
d tr

aini
ng  

 4,6
45.0

0 
 

OOvvee
rraallll  

TToott
aall  

243
,603

.74 
  

Bud
get 

201
3-1

4 
£    

271
,614

.00 
1st 

Apr
il 20

13 t
o 31

st M
arch

 201
4 

Exp
end

iture
 201

3-1
4 

£    
243

,603
.74 

1st 
Apr

il 20
13 t

o 31
st M

arch
 201

4 
Inco

me 
201

3-1
4 

 
1st 

Apr
il 20

13 t
o 31

st M
arch

 201
4 

Bala
nce

 rem
aini

ng 
£    

  28
,010

.26 
1st 

Apr
il 20

14 
          

Page 82



4
7

 

 

AAPPPP
EENNDD

IIXX  22
  

LLSSCC
BB  cc

uurrrree
nntt  MM

eemmbb
eerrsshh

iipp  11
44//11

55  
CChhaa

iirr  
Sir P

aul 
Enn

als 
(Ind

epe
nde

nt) 
LLoocc

aall  AA
uutthh

oorriitt
yy  

Lisa
 Red

fern
 (Dir

ecto
r CY

PS)
 

Inte
rim 

AD 
of  Q

uali
ty A

ssu
ranc

e an
d S

afeg
uard

ing,
 CY

PS)
 

Sus
an O

titi (
Ass

ista
nt D

irec
tor, 

Pub
lic H

ealt
h) 

PPooll
iiccee  

  
DCI

 Joh
n Fo

ulke
s (C

AIT-
 No

rth S
ecto

r) 
DCI

 Vic
tor O

lissa
 (Bo

roug
h C

omm
and

er) 
DI S

imo
n W

ebb
 (CA

IT 
 Ha

ring
ey) 

PPrroo
bbaatt

iioonn  
And

rew
 Blig

ht (A
CO 

Har
inge

y) 
Dou

glas
 Ch

arlto
n  

HHeeaa
lltthh  SS

eerrvvii
cceess

  
Jen

nie 
Will

iam
s  (E

xec
utiv

e N
urse

 and
 Dir

ecto
r of 

Qua
lity 

and
 Go

vern
anc

e, N
HS 

Har
inge

y CC
G) 

Dav
id E

llima
n (D

esig
nate

d D
octo

r for
 Ch

ild P
rote

ctio
n an

d C
hild

 De
ath,

 NH
S H

arin
gey

 CC
G) 

Kar
en B

agg
aley

 (As
sist

ant 
Dire

ctor
 for 

Safe
gua

rdin
g an

d D
esig

nate
d nu

rse 
for C

hild
 Pro

tect
ion,

 NH
S 

Har
inge

y CC
G) 

Mar
y Se

xton
 Dir

ecto
r of 

Nur
sing

 and
 Exe

cuti
ve L

ead
 for 

Safe
gua

rdin
g C

hild
ren 

BEH
-MH

T 
Geo

ff Is
aac

 (Na
med

 Do
ctor

 for 
Chil

d P
rote

ctio
n B

EH-
MH

T) 
Juli

e Th
oma

s (N
ame

d G
P fo

r Ch
ild P

rote
ctio

n , H
arin

gey
) 

Alis
on K

ett (
Dep

uty 
Dire

ctor
 of N

ursi
ng W

hitti
ngto

n H
ealt

h)  
 

Juli
e Fi

rth (
Dep

uty 
Dire

ctor
 of N

ursi
ng N

orth
 Mid

dles
ex H

osp
ital 

LLeeaa
dd  MM

eemmbb
eerr    

Cllr 
Ann

 Wa
ters

, Le
ad M

emb
er fo

r Ch
ildre

n  
CCaaff

ccaass
ss  

Phy
llis D

yer 
(Ser

vice
 Ma

nag
er) 

 
VVoolluu

nnttaarr
yy  SSee

ccttoorr
  

 (Ch
ief E

xec
utiv

e, H
AVC

O) 
HHoouu

ssiinngg
  

Den
ise 

Gan
dy (

Hea
d of

 Ho
usin

g S
upp

ort &
 Op

tion
s) 

SScchh
oooollss

  
Joa

n M
cVit

tie, 
Hea

d Te
ach

er -
 Wo

ods
ide 

Hig
h  

Ang
ela 

Rya
n, P

rima
ry H

ead
 Tea

che
r  C

amp
sbo

urne
 

AAdduu
llttss  SS

aaffeegg
uuaarr

ddiinngg
  

Hele
n C

ons
tant

in ( 
Hea

d of
 Joi

nt G
ove

rnan
ce a

nd B
usin

ess
 Imp

rove
men

t Se
rvic

es) 
LLeegg

aall  SS
eerrvvii

cceess
  

Step
hen

 Law
renc

e  (A
ssis

tant
 He

ad o
f Le

gal 
Ser

vice
s: S

ocia
l Ca

re)  

Page 83



4
8

 

 

AApppp
eenndd

iixx  33
  

Har
inge

y LS
CB 

Mem
bers

 atte
nda

nce
 201

3-14
 

 
Den

otes
 rep

rese
ntat

ive 
atte

nde
d on

 beh
alf o

f the
 me

mbe
r  

OOrrgg
aanniiss

aattiioo
nn  

JJoobb
  TTiittll

ee  
DDaatt

ee  ooff
  MMee

eettiinn
ggss  

NNoo::
  ooff  

mmeeee
ttiinngg

ss  
mmeemm

bbeerr
  

aattttee
nnddee

dd//ww
aass  

rreepp
rreessee

nntteedd
  

    
    

29/5
/201

3 
31/7

/201
3 

2/10
/201

3 
27/1

1/20
13 

29/1
/201

4 
26/3

/14 
 

Inde
pen

den
t  

Cha
ir 

  
  

  
  

  
  

6 / 6
 

Inde
pen

den
t 

Lay
 Me

mbe
r 

 
--  

  
 

 
--  

3 / 4
 

CAF
CAS

S 
Sen

ior S
ervi

ce M
ana

ger 
 

--  
  

  
- 

- 
3 / 6

 

Loc
al A

utho
rity 

Dire
ctor

 of C
hild

ren'
s Se

rvic
es, 

Safe
gua

rdin
g 

--  
  

--  
- 

 
 

3 / 6
 

Ass
ista

nt D
irec

tor, 
Safe

gua
rdin

g  
--  

  
--  

 
 

 
2 / 4

 
Hea

d of
 Ser

vice
, QA

 and
 Saf

egu
ardi

ng  
--  

  
  

 
 

 
4 /5

 
Hea

d of
 Ser

vice
, Ad

ditio
nal 

Nee
ds a

nd D
isab

ilitie
s 

--  
  

  
 

 
- 

4 / 6
 

Hea
lth 

 

Dire
ctor

 of Q
uali

ty a
nd i

nteg
rate

d go
vern

anc
e (C

CG)
 

--  
--  

  
 

- 
 

3 / 6
 

Des
igna

ted 
Nur

se f
or C

P (C
CG)

 
  

  
 

  
  

  
6 /6

 
Con

sult
ant 

Pae
diat

ricia
n, D

esig
nate

d D
octo

r (C
CG)

 
  

  
 

  
  

  
6 /6

 
Nam

ed G
P N

HS 
Eng

land
 Lon

don
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

6 /6
 

Dire
ctor

 of N
ursi

ng (
NM

UH)
 

 
 

-- 
--  

-- 
-- 

2 / 6
 

Ass
ista

nt D
irec

tor, 
Univ

ersa
l an

d Sa
fegu

ardi
ng C

hild
ren'

s Se
rvic

es 
(Wh

ittin
gton

) 
  

  
  

  
  

  
6 /6

 
Ass

ista
nt D

irec
tor (

CAM
HS-

 BE
H-M

HS)
) 

--  
--  

--  
--  

--  
--  

0 /6
 

Con
sult

ant 
Psy

chia
trist

 (BE
H-M

HS)
 

--  
  

  
--  

  
  

4 /6
 

Dire
ctor

 of N
ursi

ng Q
uali

ty a
nd S

afet
y (B

EH-
MH

S) 
  

  
  

  
--  

--  
4 / 6

 
 

Dire
ctor

 of N
ursi

ng N
HS 

Eng
land

 Lon
don

) 
 

 
2 / 2

 
Loc

al A
utho

rity 
Dru

g an
d A

lcoh
ol P

artn
ersh

ip M
ana

ger 
--  

-- 
  

- 
 

 
3 / 6

 
Pub

lic H
ealt

h 
Ass

ista
nt D

irec
tor 

  
 

  
  

 
 

6 / 6
 

Hou
sing

 
Hea

d of
 Ho

usin
g Su

ppo
rt an

d O
ptio

ns 
--  

 
  

  
- 

--  
3 / 6

 

Page 84



4
9

 

 

Leg
al S

ervi
ces

 
Ass

ista
nt H

ead
 of L

ega
l 

 
 

  
  

  
 

6 / 6
 

Poli
ce 

Bor
oug

h C
omm

and
er 

 
 

--  
  

 
  

5 / 6
 

DI, 
CAI

T 
 

--  
  

  
  

 
5 / 6

 
DCI

, CA
IT 

 
  

--  
--  

- 
2 / 6

 
Pro

bati
on 

Sen
ior P

roba
tion

 Off
icer

 
  

- 
  

  
 

- 
4 / 6

 
Volu

ntar
y 

HAV
CO 

-- 
 

--  
 - 

1 / 4
 

Lea
d M

emb
er 

Cou
ncil

lor 
  

- 
  

  
  

  
5 / 6

 
Prim

ary 
Sch

ool 
Hea

d Te
ach

er 
--  

- 
  

--  
--  

--  
1 / 6

 
Sec

ond
ary 

Sch
ool 

Hea
d Te

ach
er 

--  
 

  
--  

  
--  

3 / 6
 

Lon
don

 Am
bula

nce
 Ser

vice
 

Amb
ulan

ce O
pera

tion
s M

ana
ger 

 
 

 
  

  
  

6 / 6
 

Adu
lt an

d H
ous

ing 
Serv

ices
 

Dep
uty 

Dire
ctor

  
 

  
 

--  
--  

 
4 / 6

 
YOS

 
YOS

 He
ad o

f Se
rvic

e 
-- 

 
--  

--  
--  

 
2 / 6

 
LSC

B 
LSC

B B
usin

ess
 Ma

nag
er 

  
  

  
  

  
  

6 / 6
 

                    

Page 85



  5
0

 

 

AApppp
eenndd

iixx  44
  

  WWee
bbssiitt

ee  TTrr
aaffffiicc

  YYee
aarrllyy

  BBrree
aakkdd

oowwnn
    

  

  
         

338833
0011

449922
6644

667733
7744

885511
7733

229900
8822

337755
3311

552255
0011

667733
2299

0
100

00
200

00
300

00
400

00
500

00
600

00
700

00
800

00
900

00

201
0-20

11
201

1-20
12

201
2-20

13
201

3-20
14

Pag
evie

ws
Uniq

ue P
age

view
s

CCoonn
ttaacctt

ss    
For 

mor
e in

form
atio

n a
bou

t th
e w

ork 
of H

arin
gey

 Lo
cal 

Safe
gua

rdin
g C

hild
ren 

Boa
rd, 

plea
se 

con
tact

 the
 LS

CB 
Tea

m: 
020

 84
89 

147
0 o

r em
ail 

lscb
@ha

ring
ey.g

ov.u
k  

 

Page 86



           
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13 January 2015 

 

Title: LSCB Annual Report 2013-14 

 

Organisation: 
 
Haringey LSCB 

 

Lead Officer: Sir Paul Ennals - Chair 

 
 
 

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

1.1 The Haringey Local Safeguarding Board is set up under statute, to coordinate what 
is done by each partner agency to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in 
the area, and to ensure the effectiveness of those services. All key statutory 
agencies are members.  
 

1.2 DfE guidance “Working Together 2013” sets out the duties and responsibilities of 
the LSCB. One specific responsibility relates to the publishing of an annual report. 
The guidance states the following:  

 
1.3 “The Chair must publish an annual report on the effectiveness of child safeguarding 

and promoting the welfare of children in the local area.
 
The annual report should be 

published in relation to the preceding financial year and should fit with local 
agencies’ planning, commissioning and budget cycles. The report should be 
submitted to the Chief Executive, Leader of the Council, the local police and crime 
commissioner and the Chair of the health and wellbeing board.  

 
1.4 “The report should provide a rigorous and transparent assessment of the 

performance and effectiveness of local services. It should identify areas of 
weakness, the causes of those weaknesses and the action being taken to address 
them as well as other proposals for action. The report should include lessons from 
reviews undertaken within the reporting period.”  

 
1.5 This report constitutes fulfilment of that responsibility. It covers the period 2013-14, 

prior to my appointment in May 2014. It has been published later than we had 
intended, owing to the current vacancy in the post of Board Business Manager 
 

Page 87



           
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1.6  I would draw to the attention of the Health and Well-Being Board the following 
sections in particular, though I am happy to respond to comments or questions on 
any section: 
 
1.6.1 My foreword pages 2-3 
1.6.2 Summary of safeguarding, page 36-37 
1.6.3 Board priorities page 38. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 Note the Annual Report of the Haringey LSCB 2013-14 
2.2  Note the priorities for 2014-16.  

 
 

Page 88



           
 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13th January 2015 

 

Title: Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat 

 

Organisation: 
 
Haringey Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

Lead Officer: Sarah Price, Chief Officer 

 
 
 

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
The Mental Health Crisis Concordat was published in February 2014 by the 
Department of Health and the Home Office. Twenty two national organisations 
signed the concordat. It sets out how organisations will work together better to 
make sure that people get the help they need when they are having a mental health 
crisis.   
 
There is a requirement to achieve local sign up and to develop an action plan to 
deliver the aims of the concordat.   Following a London workshop in October local 
organisations signed the concordat before the 31st December deadline. Project 
support has been secured to develop a multi-agency action plan by March 2015.   
 
Progress is being publicised via the Crisis Concordat website which colour codes 
current status; Haringey is currently coded amber (signed the concordat but action 
plan to be produced).  When the action plan is submitted the website map will show 
Haringey as green. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes and endorses the Concordat. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12Page 89



           
 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Introduction 
 
The Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat is a national agreement between services and 
agencies involved in the care and support of people in crisis. It sets out how organisations 
will work together better to make sure that people get the help they need when they are 
having a mental health crisis. 

In February 2014, 22 national bodies involved in health, policing, social care, housing, 
local government and the third sector came together and signed the Crisis Care 
Concordat. It focuses on four main areas: 

• Access to support before crisis point – making sure people with mental health 
problems can get help 24 hours a day and that when they ask for help, they are 
taken seriously. 

• Urgent and emergency access to crisis care – making sure that a mental health 
crisis is treated with the same urgency as a physical health emergency. 

• Quality of treatment and care when in crisis – making sure that people are 
treated with dignity and respect, in a therapeutic environment. 

• Recovery and staying well – preventing future crises by making sure people are 
referred to appropriate services. 

Although the Crisis Care Concordat focuses on the responses to acute mental health 
crises, it also includes a section on prevention and intervention. The Concordat builds on 
and does not replace existing guidance. Current service provision should continue while 
the Action Plan is being devised. 

 

Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat: the joint statement 

We commit to work together to improve the system of care and support so people in crisis 
because of a mental health condition are kept safe and helped to find the support they 
need – whatever the circumstances in which they first need help – and from whichever 
service they turn to first. 

We will work together, and with local organisations, to prevent crises happening whenever 
possible through prevention and early intervention. We will make sure we meet the needs 
of vulnerable people in urgent situations. We will strive to make sure that all relevant public 
services support someone who appears to have a mental health problem to move towards 
Recovery. 

Jointly, we hold ourselves accountable for enabling this commitment to be delivered 
across England. 

 

 

 

Page 90



           
 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

Signatories to the Concordat 

Association of Ambulance Chief Executives 
Association of Chief Police Officers 
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 
Association of Directors of Children’s Services 
Association of Police and Crime Commissioners 
British Transport Police 
Care Quality Commission 
College of Emergency Medicine 
College of Policing 
The College of Social Work 
Department of Health 
Health Education England 
Home Office 
Local Government Association 
Mind 
NHS Clinical Commissioners 
NHS Confederation 
NHS England 
NHS Providers 
Public Health England 
Royal College of General Practitioners 
Royal College of Nursing 
Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health 
Royal College of Psychiatrists 

Third sector and charity supporters of the Concordat 

Centre for Mental Health 
Mental Health Foundation 
Mental Health Providers Forum 
National Housing Federation 
National Survivor User Network 
Rethink Mental Illness 
Richmond Fellowship 
Stonewall 
Together for mental wellbeing 
Turning Point 
Young Minds 

 

 

Page 91



           
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

London Implementation 

A London workshop was held on 27th October 2014 to prompt further work to deliver the 
concordat. Following the workshop, all London agencies agreed to sign the concordat, 
individually or through ADASS, London Councils and the London Office of CCGs, before 
the target date of 31 December 2014. This has been completed and the London 
declaration is attached as Appendix A.  There is a Crisis Concordat website 
(http://www.crisiscareconcordat.org.uk/explore-the-map/) which shows amber for the 
Borough of Haringey. This will move to green when our action plan is submitted before 31 
March 2015. 
 
The action plan will require us to agree processes and timelines to work towards the best 
practice models of service described in the Crisis Concordat supporting commissioning 
documentation.  The Barnet, Enfield and Haringey CCGs have been successful in a bid for 
additional 2014/15 mental health early access funding recently announced by Norman 
Lamb, Minister for Care Services.  This includes £30k for project management costs to 
help develop the action plan. The majority of the funding, a further £600k, is being used to 
increase early access to mental health services in the three boroughs over the winter 
period. 
 
Multi Agency Collaboration 

At the London conference the metropolitan police gave an example of the success of 
multiagency collaborative working to positively impact upon people in mental health crisis 
and detained in police cells under section 136 of the mental health act.  Through 
implementation of the Mental Health Partnership Board section 136 protocol, people are 
detained at an NHS place of safety, resulting in the numbers detained in police cells falling 
from more than 80 in 2013 to less than 20 in 2014. The MHPB ambition is that no one 
should be detained under a section136 in a police cell in London. 

Further information 

A full copy of the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat can be found at: 

http://www.crisiscareconcordat.org.uk/about/ 

A map showing national progress to adoption and implementation of the Concordat can be 
found at: 

http://www.crisiscareconcordat.org.uk/explore-the-map/ 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A – 2014 London Declaration on next page 

Page 92



The 2014 London Declaration           
 

Page 5 of 5 

 

The 2014 London Declaration on improving outcomes for people experiencing 
mental health crisis, 27th October 2014.  
 

We, as partner organisations in London, will work together to put in place the principles 
of the national Concordat to improve the system of care and support so that people in 
crisis because of a mental health condition are kept safe. We will help them to find the 
help they need − whatever the circumstances − from whichever of our services they turn 
to first. 
 

We will work to improve the system of care and support that is provided for such people in 
London before, during and after the crisis itself. 
 
We will work together to prevent crises happening whenever possible, through intervening 
at an early stage.  
 
We will make sure we meet the needs of vulnerable people in urgent situations, getting 
the right care at the right time from the right people to make sure of the best outcomes. 
 
We will do our very best to make sure that all relevant public services, contractors and 
independent sector partners support people with a mental health problem to help them 
recover. Everybody who signs this declaration will work towards developing ways of 
sharing information to help front line staff provide better responses to people in crisis. 
 
We are responsible for delivering this commitment in London by putting in place local 
action plans which reflect the new crisis care commissioning standards and which are 
regularly reviewed and updated.   
 
This declaration supports ‘parity of esteem’ between physical and mental health 
care in the following ways: 
 

•    Through adopting the new crisis care commissioning standards in London  

• Through everyone agreeing a shared ‘care pathway’ to safely support, assess and 
manage anyone who asks any of our services in London for help in a crisis. This will result 
in the best outcomes for people with suspected serious mental illness, provide advice and 
support for their carers, and make sure that services work together safely and effectively. 

• Through agencies working together to improve individuals’ experience (professionals, 
people who use crisis care services, and carers) and reduce the likelihood of harm to the 
health and wellbeing of patients, carers and professionals. 

• By making sure there are safe and effective services in London with clear and agreed 
policies and procedures in place for people in crisis. 

•      By all organisations who sign this declaration working together and accepting our 
responsibilities to reduce the likelihood of future harm to service users, patients, carers 
and staff, or the wider community and to support people’s recovery and wellbeing. 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



           

Page 1 of 4 

 

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Board – 13 January 2015 

 

Title: Board Member Appointment and Change to Voting Rights  

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

Jeanelle de Gruchy 
Director of Public Health 

 

Lead Officer: 
Stephen Lawrence-Orumwense  
Assistant Head of Legal Services Social Care and Contract 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board (‘Board’) is being asked to consider appointing the 

Chair of the Haringey Local Safeguarding Children Board as a member of the 
Board. Also, following the appointment by Full Council of an additional elected 
member to the Board, there has been an in-balance in the voting rights between 
Council and non-Council members of the Board. Therefore, the Board is also being 
asked to consider recommending to Full Council to alter the voting rights of the Lay 
Board Member Clinical Commissioning Group to restore the balance.    

 
2. Cabinet Member introduction 

 
2.1 This is not applicable (N/A)  
 
3. Recommendation 

 
3.1 It is recommended that: 
 

a) The Board appoint the Chair of the Haringey Local Safeguarding Children Board 
as a non-voting member of the Board; 
 

b) The Board request that Full Council alter the voting rights of the Lay Board 
Member of the Clinical Commissioning Group to a voting member; and   

 
c) The Board accept this report as consultation by Full Council for the purpose of 

altering the voting rights of the Board member.   
 
4. Alternative options considered 

 
N/A 

Agenda Item 13Page 95



           

Page 2 of 4 

 

5. Background information 
 

5.1 The Board is a Committee of the Council. The Council’s Constitution (at Part 3 
Section B Paragraph 8) sets out the governance arrangement for the Board. The 
Constitution provides for the following persons to be a member of the Board:  

§ The Leader of the Council 
§ The Cabinet Member for Children and Families 
§ The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 
§ Chair, Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice Chair of HWB) 
§ Chair of Healthwatch 
§ Director of Adult and Housing Services 
§ Director of Children and Young People’s Services 
§ Director of Public Health 
§ Chief Officer, Clinical Commissioning Group 
§ Lay Board Member, Clinical Commissioning Group 
§ GP Board Member, Clinical Commissioning Group 
§ HAVCO representative 
§ Representative for the NHSCB ( when requried) 

 
The Council and the Board can appoint additional members as they deem 
appropriate. But the Council must consult with the Board prior to such appointment.  

 
5.2 The Constitution restricts voting rights in the Board to the following members;  
 

a) Local authority councillors (Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for 
Children and Families and Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing);  

 
b) Chair, Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice Chair of HWB); and  
 
c) Chair, Healthwatch.  
 
Any additional member appointed to the Board by the Council or by the Board are 
non-voting members. However, Full Council can make a direction to alter the voting 
right of Board members following consultation with the Board.  
 

5.3 The recent Ofsted Inspection of Haringey Children Services (July 2014) flagged up 
the need to ensure that the Board’s priorities are sufficiently linked to the children 
social care priorities. As a consequence, the Independent Chair of the LSCB has 
been attending and participating in the meeting of the Board to ensure a strategic 
focus on the agenda for promoting and safeguarding the welfare of children. The 
recommendation that the Board appoint the Chair of the LSCB is intended to 
confirm this existing arrangement. The Chair of the LSCB will be a non-voting 
member.  

 
5.4 There is an underlying principle of consensus, equality and parity in decision 

making in the Board. This is reflected in parts in the balance between the voting 

Page 96



           

Page 3 of 4 

rights of Council members and non-Council members of the Board. In the last 
municipal year (2013/14), there were two Council members with voting rights and 
two non-Council members with voting rights. In this municipal year (2014/15), this 
position has altered with the appointment by Full Council of an additional elected 
member to the Board. The recommendation to Full Council to alter the non-voting 
right of the Lay Board Member of the Clinical Commissioning Group is intended to 
restore this voting balance in decision making between Council and non-Council 
members of the Board.  

 
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 

 
N/A 
 

7. Comments of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and legal 
implications 

 
7.1 Section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2014 provides for the establishment 

and membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board. This section (subsection (2)) 
sets out that the Board’s membership must include the director of children’s 
services, the director of adult social services and the director of public health. There 
must be at least one elected representative, which may be the leader of the local 
authority and/or councillors nominated by the Leader (subsections (3) and (4)). The 
Local Healthwatch organisation and each relevant CCG must also appoint 
representatives (subsections (5) and (6)). The section (subsection (8)) enables the 
Board to appoint additional persons as members. The local authority is also able to 
invite other persons (other than councillors) or representatives of other persons to 
become members (subsection (2)(g)). The local authority must consult the Health 
and Wellbeing Board before appointing additional persons after the Board has been 
established (Subsection (9)).  

7.2 Regulation 6 of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards 
and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 provides that a person who is a member of a 
Health and Wellbeing Board shall not be treated as a non-voting member of that 
Board unless the local authority which established the Board otherwise directs. 
Before making such a direction, the local authority must consult the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. At the Full Council meeting on 20th May 2013, following 
consultation with the Board, it was directed that the then local authority elected 
members of the Board, the Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group and the 
Chair of Healthwatch will have voting rights. That any additional persons appointed 
to the HWB either by the Local Authority or the HWB will be appointed on a non-
voting basis. This direction is reflected in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
7.3 All voting members of the Board are required to comply both with the Members’ 

Code of Conduct and the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 relating to Standards. 
In particular, voting members will be required to complete a register of interests 
which must be kept up to date. Voting members must also declare any disclosable 
pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest in any matter being considered and must 
not take part in any discussion or decision with respect to these items. 

Page 97



           

Page 4 of 4 

 
 8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

 
N/A 
 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
N/A 
 

10. Policy Implication 
 
N/A 
 

11. Reasons for Decision  
 
This is dealt with above.  
 

12. Use of Appendices 
 
N/A 

 
13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

Page 98


	Agenda
	1 Welcome and introductions
	6 Minutes
	7 Strategic Commissioning Framework for Primary Care Transformation in London
	8 Primary Care Task and Finish Report
	Item 8 Appendix Haringey Primary Care Task and Finish Group Report HWB Dec 14 revised

	9 Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-2018 - Launch of consultation
	10 Health and Care Integration Update
	Item 10 Health and Care Integration Update Appendix A - Proposed governance model 141209 I1

	11 LSCB Annual Report 2013-14
	Item 11 Final LSCB Annual Report cover paper (2)

	12 Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat
	13 HWB Governance: Board Membership Appointment and change to voting rights

